% ATk ERAT
— TIANJIN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

B985 Stock Code: 882

—TT\FFH
Annual Report 2008




Contents H %

2 Corporate Information
NEER
4 Key Business Structure
TEXGRE
6 Financial Highlights
s E
8 Chairman’s Statement
TREWmEE
13 Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE S RO
22 Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEABRERE
31 Corporate Governance Report
hERERARE
42 Report of the Directors
BExegmsE
72 Independent Auditor's Report
BB E
74 Consolidated Income Statement
mEBEmK
75 Consolidated Balance Sheet
meEBEERAER
77 Balance Sheet
BEAER
78 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mEEeRER
80 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BARSEDR
81 Notes to the Financial Statements
PSR P E
168 Financial Summary
I E



Corporate Information

DNEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS BEEE
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Yu Rumin (Acting Chairman) ThaREE (KEEE)
Mr. Wu Xuemin RERSLE

Mr. Nie Jiansheng EEBELLE

Mr. Dai Yan BIE S A

Mr. Hu Chengli HARK RIS

Dr. Wang Jiandong FEREL

Mr. Bai Zhisheng HEE%E

Mr. Zhang Wenli SRS

Mr. Sun Zengyin FRIGEN A&

Mr. Gong Jing BIESE

Mr. Zheng Daoquan BB R
Non-executive Directors FEHITES

Mr. Cheung Wing Yui SRIKER ST A

Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon* [ ReG: e

Mr. Lau Wai Kit* BB E

Dr. Cheng Hon Kwan* ghzEE L

(*  Independent Non-executive Directors) (* BIIHMITEE)
COMPANY SECRETARY NEAME

Mr. Tsang Wai Yip, Patrick BEESE
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES EERR

Mr. Wu Xuemin REBREE

Mr. Tsang Wai Yip, Patrick BEXESEE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR B A% B
PricewaterhouseCoopers BB RSB
SOLICITORS AR

Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo FARAZS R RRD YT

—“ Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERER AT




Corporate Information

DNEER

REGISTERED OFFICE

Suites 7-13, 36/F

China Merchants Tower

Shun Tak Centre

168-200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2162 8888

Fax: (852) 2311 0896

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
26/F, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen'’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange 882

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Calyon

Rabobank International, Hong Kong Branch

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

AMRER

B

FFEIEH 168-200 5%
BEERL
BERRE
36IET-13E

TaE 1 (852) 2162 8888
fHH : (852) 23110896

RITBFEETLRE

BEBERERAT
BEET
ERKNER28%
SEEP L2612

BRATR R

A BHE A2 FT 882

FEERERIT

RERTT () ERAE
RITEIRIRTT

A AFRITEA DT
BB LSESRITERAA
BAERITARAR

Annual Report 2008 —Z =& )\ FF “_



—“ Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERER AT

Key Business Structure
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Prior to year end, the Group intended to dispose of the operation of Eastern Outer Ring Road. The transaction is expected to be
completed in 2009.
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Key Business Structure

EE%? BE

INFRASTRUCTURE OPERATIONS EL7# 50 e 278

Operations/ Share-
Investments holding Company Name Principal Activities
Y RE FREEH  LARER TEEK
PORT SERVICES 65.66%  Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited Provision of port services in the port of Tianjin
78 O R %5 REBEREZERBEA AREE DR O AR
ROAD OPERATION 83.93% Tianjin Jin Zheng Transportation Operation of Eastern Outer Ring Road
NS0 Development Co, Ltd. RASHNRER PR
RERBBERAR AR
6.62% 14 equity joint ventures in the PRC Operation of Tang Jin Expressway
RHE14REERA] KEFES RN
24%  Tianjin Mass Transit (Group) Development Co, Ltd.  Operation of Jinbin Expressway
RERR(EE) BZERBRAA KEEES RN

UTILITY OPERATIONS A FiG i 3 7%

Operations/

Investments holding Company Name Principal Activities

% RE BREG DEEE FTEEK

ELECTRICITY 94.36% Tianjin TEDA Tsinlien Electric Power Distribution of electricity in TEDA

OPERATION Company Limited RRZEFREREESE S

EPIE S RERERBENERA

WATER OPERATION 91.41%  Tianjin TEDA Tsinlien Water Supply Distribution of water in TEDA

EBE S Company Limited AR R [ e B 2RoK
RAERE B RKERAF

HEAT AND THERMAL 90.94%  Tianjin TEDA Tsinlien Heat & Power Co,, Ltd. Distribution of steam in TEDA

POWER OPERATION RRFEEHABHRAT AR 2FBE GRS

COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES B ¥ E ith =

Operations/
Investments

®iBE

HOTELS
BIE

Company Name Principal Activities

AR AERE FTEEK

Tsinlien Realty Limited Operation of Courtyard by Marriott Hong Kong
R BEXARAR KEEBERBE

Tianjin First Hotel Ltd.
REE—RERRAA

Operation of Hyatt Regency Tianjin Hotel
EREYSAE

STRATEGIC AND OTHER INVESTMENTS R ES M & B AR &

Operations/ Share-

Investments holding Company Name Principal Activities

Y% RE BREG AEEE FEXK

WINERY 44.82%  Dynasty Fine Wines Group Limited Manufacture and sale of winery products
1] THEXEEERAR AEREEEREM

ELEVATOR & 16.55%  Otis Elevator (China) Investment Manufacture and sale of elevator and
ESCALATOR Company Limited escalator

FEERKTE BT (P ) IRERR AR B RSHE TR R F

Note : The above percentages represent effective percentage of equity interest in respective companies or group of companies.

i REZBEORRERAEEEEHARRAREE 2
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Financial Highlights
MBREE
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% Results of Eastern Outer Ring Road is classified under discontinued operation. The results prior to

2007 have not been restated.
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Turnover by Activities
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Financial Highlights
MBREE

SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS BY OPERATIONS

EBRES D

Turnover = -0
Year ended 31st December
BZE+-A=1+—HIELEE
2008 2007
ZBENF ZETHF Changes
HK$million HKSmillion 2E)
BEBTT AEBT (+/-)
Port Services B O RS 1,221 1,157 +5%
Roads" NN 128 177 -28%
Supply of Utilities REHARZRE 2,463 2,054 +20%
Commercial Properties BEREHE 103 - NA
3,915 3,388 +16%

Turnover from the operation of Eastern Outer Ring Road of approximately
HKS128 million (2007: HKS120 million) is classified under discontinued operation

since actions had been initiated prior to year end to dispose of it.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders

f L BRFERIERETTEI H ENR B AEE - A
BHEEL) 12800000057 (= EEAH1F 12000000057
BRI EEREFFE E5)

REFE ARMLRR

Year ended 31st December

BE+t-HA=1+—HLFE

2008 2007

—BENF —EEAF Changes

HK$million HKSmillion B E

BEET BEAET (+/-)

Port Services 7 0BRSS 81 151 -46%

Roads N 65 211 -69%

Supply of Utilities YN i) 156 171 -9%

Winery* i3t 64 57 +13%

Elevator and Escalator* FHREH R FER 152 132 +16%

Commercial Properties EEEME (23) - NA
Net Corporate Income/(Expenses) A RIMUA /(2 ) F58

and Others K E A 11 32) NA

506 690 -27%

*

The winery operation and the elevator and escalator operation are conducted
through associates, and the Group only shares the profits of these operations in

proportion to it's equity interests in the associates.

* BERBRITEERATFEGREEEHENA]
BT AEEERRAERZEHERRHE R
BRIV D ZEZEEB T
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Chairman’s Statement
FERES

PROFIT AND DIVIDEND FOR THE YEAR

I 'am pleased to present the 2008 annual report of the Group. The
audited consolidated profit attributable to shareholders and earnings
per share for the year ended 31st December 2008 were HK$505,861,000
and HK47.72 cents respectively, representing respective decrease by
27% and 29% over the prior year. The board of directors proposed the
payment of a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per share at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. Together with the interim dividend of HK6.0
cents per share, the total dividend for 2008 will amount to HK9.0 cents
per share, representing a decrease of 18% as compared to 2007.

STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT

In March 2009, Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (“TPD"), the
listed subsidiary of the Group, has entered into an agreement to acquire
approximately 56.81% interest in Tianjin Port Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin
Port Company"), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, with
the view of strengthening its overall competitiveness through a more
balanced portfolio, increased scale of operations, improved resource
integration and allocation and better coordination. With such strategic
move of TPD, the Group will be holding an interest in a significantly
larger port operator with better development potential. We believe that
the Group will benefit in the long run in terms of stronger earnings and
cashflow despite the dilution of the Group's relative shareholding in TPD.

In order to dedicate our resources to those operations with higher return
and greater development potential, we have resolved to divest our
investment in the Eastern Outer Ring Road which continued generating
lower-than-expected return in the past years. Actions have been
initiated to effect the disposal and the transaction is expected to be
completed in 2009.

FERARKE

RAMRARSAIREANEBR _TT \FFR - KEE
HE-_ZZNE+-_A=+-BHUFELKEZIE
& IR LR R B IRBF 9 R A 505,861,000 % 7T K&
4772784l - M EFE DRI 27% K 29% - EEGEHE
R BRNBRRAFAE LEERERPRSER
3.0/l - ATHAR SRR EARR B Bk6 0B - =TT
NER2EARLREEER0EN  BE-BTFRHD
18% °

REERR

—ETNF=A AEELTHEARXZERRE
BRARAR ([REBER]DAILHHE  WE—KEL
BREFRZALETNRARREERNARAE ([RF
BRAE B s681% s RRBERTAMAERE
BENEBES  BEAEERE  NEEREE M
B BETEERA AMEEEERHF ) - BBX
RBERIRBEE  AEERERERZRALE
FEEREBNNADEERTAAEDS - RAMEE -
BEARBERRXETERRNERBREARE K&
s AEEFREEAERDNBNERERMHZ

REERERNEERRLERERENES
AEBREREVIMRREOKE  ZAKBERF
M ERSEENTEY - RMICBRREEL SRR
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

During 2008, the Group completed the acquisition of 75% interest
in Hyatt Regency Tianjin Hotel (“Hyatt”) and the acquisition of 100%
interest in Courtyard by Marriott Hong Kong (“Courtyard”) which served
as the springboard into the commercial property arena. Courtyard has
achieved satisfactory results, generating a positive operating profit
before depreciation and amortisation within the short period since
its commencement of operation in April 2008. On the other hand,
the Group is currently planning a major renovation of Hyatt which is

expected to commence in the second half of 2009.

INTERNAL CONTROL

With a view to improving our internal control system, the Company
and its listed subsidiary and associated company, TPD and Dynasty Fine
Wines Group Limited respectively, have engaged external audit firm/
consultancy firm to review the effectiveness of their internal control
systems up to 31st December 2008, covering all material controls
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk

management functions.

The Group will continue to conduct regular review of the Group's
internal control system and its effectiveness to ensure the interests of
shareholders are safeguarded.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group has all along placed high priority on communications with
shareholders and the investor community. In addition to arranging site
visits and attending luncheons and conferences, the top management
proactively met the investor community through non-deal global
roadshows in April and September 2008. The global roadshows provided
an excellent opportunity for the top and senior management of the
Group to communicate face to face with worldwide investors, fund
managers and analysts and to share with them the strategic outlook of
the Group. Such interactive and keen communication with investors
has enhanced the management’s understanding of the interests and
concerns of investors.

We believe that regular and timely communication with the investor
community is extremely important and our goal is to create sustainable

growth to shareholders’ value in the long run.

RZZBENF » AEETRUKIBRRIBIEE (S5
BIE ) 75% s R EEBIRBE ([SI8ENE ) 1000%
@ RAKEEEREXFHEM SRS - B15E
EEREER  R-TT/\FOARKEER  BHA
IR GITE RM R EEN - Z—Jrm - AEER
EAEIRSBUEE T —BAE B T2 - TR S
BR-EZNFTHFEE -

R BREE 1

RBEANMEIERE - ARB RE LB R R
ERAREBERNINEXREERRAREDAIE
HESNEDR BRED 1T, R A Bl E ARSI RN B
EBTN\F+ A=+ —HILBHENARL - UhIA
RRREMAEAEE - 8RN 2 ERAREE
K Ek EIRIIRE

AEERSEEERRTARENANEZERGRER
MM - ARERICR AR S EMRE -

REEBE

AEE-MEEERARRRREENER - R
RE2BRHETEGRGHSI  KoREETEBR
RZZZNFUARNAETEHRFRERE - T8
BEEEEE - 2RBE/AKERSBEERSM
ERERHERRREE  EKEROTEEYHH
EITEBNRYE  YAEANEAKENRBRE -
HERKEENERESRAMER  BEREEH
FRIRE B R YR IR o

BAAEEREEFLETERLERNERERAESR
MAHMH BRI SRERNBEN RBFELR




Chairman’s Statement
FERES

OUTLOOK

Due to the stable nature of our core businesses and adherence to our
prudent financial discipline, the Group achieved healthy growth albeit
facing a very volatile year of 2008. 2009 will still be a highly challenging
year with the impact of the global financial crisis deepened and
exacerbated. But we will strive to strengthen our business capabilities
and enhance the operation efficiency in order to combat the challenges.

As affected by the subprime mortgage crisis of the United States, the
economic development of the Mainland was slowing down towards
the end of 2008. China's GDP growth for 2008 recorded the first-year
single-digit growth since 2003. But with its strong fundamentals and the
introduction of a series of effective policies and measures to stimulate
economic development, China is well positioned to recover at a faster
pace than other countries. Nevertheless, the Group especially benefits
from a series of preferential policies towards the Tianjin Binhai New Area
under the “11th Five Year Plan”. Looking ahead, we are confident in the

future prospects of the Group.

With the important strategic move of TPD to acquire the controlling
interest in Tianjin Port Company, all commercially operating port assets
within the Port of Tianjin will be consolidated under TPD, enhancing the
competitiveness of the Port of Tianjin in the Bohai Bay Region and China.
In the long run, the Group will enjoy the growth of and return from this
significantly larger port operator with huge development potential,

especially when the economy recovers.

Given the solid and healthy growth of the utilities segment, it is foreseen
that there is sustainable development potential. The Group is committed
to increasing investment in our core utilities operations in order to
capture the robust growth of the Tianjin Economic-Technological
Development Area. In addition, we are actively and cautiously looking

for investment opportunities in the Tianjin Binhai New Area.

With the successful entry into the commercial property arena in early
2008, the Group will continue to explore further opportunities to build
up a portfolio of balanced investments in this business segment. In this
kind of distressed market environment, we believe that there will be
attractive acquisition opportunities which can enhance shareholders’

value in the long term.

RE

AR AREZOEFAREN - YWRFRIRERN Y
BHE - AR RSN _—TTN\F - KEED
EERGREER - EoRERNTZERELNENS
AN —ETNAFNEHEEREN - AREGE R
AEBENRRESEERE  DEZEUE -

XEXBERREKTE  TRANBHEEEREER
BR TR N\FRREHNE - —ZZEN\FHPEE
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R N PEEREARARD - NESHE—FIIR
AEERRNERBR LG - B AGEBEAE
AEREMBIRERER « 15 - REBEITFRZER
(F+—ERFFE) THRDEEHEN —RFEE
B - REARNR - HAIHAEEORTRITMED

B RFBERWBRZEAREBE RN EERE
78 BEXEEOAMAKLEENEERTRK
RRBER - AHERREE ORGSR N B A 5
FHoREME  AREREZRERZBEALEE
RERBNNBOLERNERMOFHZE - LE

REEBERE -
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRESE

APPRECIATION

I ' would like to take this opportunity to express our thankfulness to a
team of dedicated and professional employees for their outstanding
performance at the time of global turbulence and to our shareholders

for their persistent support.

Yu Rumin

Acting Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd April 2009
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEBNWR TN

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Infrastructure Operations
Port Services

The revenue of Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (“TPD") (stock
code: 3382) increased by 5% from approximately HK$1,157.4 million in 2007
to approximately HK$1,220.6 million in 2008. The segment profit decreased
by 24% from approximately HK$269.8 million for 2007 to approximately
HK$205.9 million (excluding an impairment loss of available-for-sale financial
assets of approximately HK$25.2 million) for 2008, which was attributable to
the increase in operating cost and the reduced average container handling

fees caused by the slowdown of global economy.

In January 2008, 40% equity interest of Tianjin Port Alliance International
Container Terminal Co., Ltd. ("Alliance”) was acquired by TPD. Alliance
achieved about 1,622,000 TEUs in 2008. Due to TPD's intention to
support the growth of Alliance, the container throughput of the other
terminals reached approximately 2,771,000 TEUs in 2008, representing
only a slight increase from 2,762,000 TEUs in 2007. Taking into account
100% of Alliance’s volume, TPD's market share in Tianjin port for 2008
was 52% as compared to 39% of last year. Although the performance of
TPD's other terminals was more or less stable for the year 2008 due to its
intention to support the growth of Alliance, we believe that the growth

in these terminals will resume once the new capacity is absorbed.

R ERE
EERIERY
8 0 BR#%

FKEBBEIEREBR AR ([REBEE]) (BRHASE
3382) KW A BB = Z 4 491,157,400,000 4 7T _E 7+
5% % — T T )\ #91,220,600,000 7 7T 5 £B 4 F mB
ZETEFHI269,800000 8T N 24% E ZTEN\F
#9205,900,0007% 7T (N EHE A 4t & B S & ERE L
252000007 7T) + EFEHREEHAIGI - AREEK
KBRS ST SRR IR B T o

RZZENF— R - REBERUE R E S 8 FR
EEBBEBR AR (B BB ) 8940% 04 o B
BERR T N\FEIEL 1622000125 - HRKZE
BEREAEIFHEERMNER  HoBER 2%
NENBFEHEEL277100012F  B_TTHERH
2,762,000 1248 LLEE BRI K o 5T B BRBIFR 100% )
RIS REBEENRKZENTSOHER2% - &
FRIA3% - REAN KRB LEEE B ERE
MR -  ZARHMBER ST N\FENRRAK
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Total throughput of bulk cargo maintained at 13.1 million tonnes
in 2008, achieving a slight increase from that of 2007. There was
encouraging volume growth in imported soya beans compared to last
year, due to lowering of import duty by the government since January
2008. However, abolition of the export rebate for certain steel products
has negatively impacted the growth of the steel handling business and a
slight reduction in volume was recorded.

Road Operation

In 2008, road operation achieved toll revenue of approximately
HK$127.9 million and realised a segment profit of approximately HK$81.2
million, representing a decrease of 28% and 13% respectively over
last year. This was due to the absence of contribution to the revenue
and segment profit of 2008 by Jinbin Expressway, which has become
an associate of the Group since the completion of the toll roads
restructuring in September 2007. If Jinbin Expressway was excluded in
2007 for comparison purpose, segment profit would have increased by
9% alongside a 7% increase in toll revenue.

With the Olympic Games effect, more small vehicles traveled to and
from Tianjin on the Eastern Outer Ring Road ("EORR"). However, import
and export activities were affected due to more stringent traffic control
around the Beijing region so that the number of large vehicles using the
EORR was reduced. As a result, the average daily traffic flow increased by
8% to 19,574 vehicles during the year, while the toll revenue increased
by 7% to approximately HK$127.9 million over last year.

The Jinbin Expressway operated with satisfactory performance during
the year under review, as evidenced by an average daily traffic flow of
34,370 vehicles and toll revenue of approximately HK$137.3 million,

representing increase of 39% and 46% respectively over last year.

ZET \FHREREYBRL SR 13,100,0000F -
BROTTHFEMIEN - BRBNE ST N\F—A
BIFREEOREN  EOARTHEREZFEIUEILR -
SR BUHA T M B9 DR T S0 R I8 15K
BETE  WEEE FHEEMEIR

DEREH

AZTT)NF - ARSI EWAL)127900000787T
IR 5EHF)4981,200,000 7T + 2 BB F T 64 28%
R13% TEHREERRAK(EZZZLFNA
TERWEARSHAEEKAREENEZAR]) TH
RARITE)\FERMBARDEENAN - BEAAF
BTN T REERRABRR _ETLFNE
Bt BB BWA EF 7% DIEEFIESE 0% B R o

EREBGHMET » BEZ/NATBEIMNRERE ([INR
%EXJ)E)UEE T - |t IR E B TR
#I32 EHPESRIEE - ERINRRERE
E’Wﬁ”ﬁiﬁﬂy Hit - FANFHSEARBRE L
FH8%ZE 19574 K - MEBRAREF LA 7% EL
127,900,000 7T °

EESRABROBEFEARRSARE  FHE
T2 34,370 3R K B B LA 49 137,300,000 78
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Utility Operations

The Group's utility businesses are mainly operating in the Tianjin
Economic-Technological Development Area (“TEDA"), supplying
electricity, water, heat and thermal power to industrial, commercial and

residential sectors.

Electricity Operation

Electricity Company is principally engaged in the supply of electricity in
the TEDA. It also provides services in relation to maintenance of power
supply equipment and electric power related technological consulting.
Currently, the installed capacity of electricity transmission of Electricity

Company is approximately 498,970 kVA.

In 2008, the Group's electricity operation reported revenue of
approximately HK$1,554.0 million and a segment profit of approximately
HK$93.2 million, representing an increase of 19% and a decrease of 12%
over last year respectively. Notwithstanding the increase in quantity sold,
increase in cost of sales resulted in deteriorated profit margin. On the
other hand, there was a one-off gain on reversing loan interest payable
to a minority shareholder. The total quantity of electricity sold for the
year was approximately 2,210,368,000 kWh, representing an increase of

11% over last year.

Water Operation

Water Company is principally engaged in the supply of tap water in the
TEDA. It is also engaged in installation and maintenance of water pipes,
tap water related technological consulting, and retail and wholesale of
water pipes and related parts. The daily water supply capacity of the
Water Company reaches approximately 250,000 tonnes.

DNAREER

AEBNARAREER T BERZEE MM EE
(IREFERDKE  RIMERETHEEN B
HOKFNZREE -

BHEK

BNRRFEBHERERERCERERE - M2 dts
Rzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁ& HRERITERERE - B
B RARIRERE B A 45498970 FIKE ©

A

RZZEENF ZEBNENEBHESRALY
1,554,000,0007% 7T & 9 #8 & F 4993,200,00078 7T © 9
RIS EE EFH19% K RBE129% © ﬁ%% s 8

HEKA LFHEBUERNBLER - Z—0H - FHEE
FEN — I DB R E R F 881G — RS - FA

ﬁﬁﬁiﬁgﬁﬁum%mm¥ﬁh'f£¢iﬂ
11% o

BRIk

BRK AR E B EEREF R G 2RK - oh
IMEBKE LR RS - BARKBEEIMER R -
AR s &K E AR R E L3 - BRKAF]
T HMKEEL) 250,000 ©
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In 2008, the Group's water operation reported revenue of approximately
HK$310.3 million and a segment profit of approximately HK$91.4 million,
resulted in an increase of 20% and 33% respectively over last year. The
total quantity of water sold for the year was approximately 45,090,000
tonnes, representing an increase of 15% over last year. The favourable
result was mainly volume driven. Together with the write-back of
expenses previously accrued, the segment profit increased more than
expected despite the increase in cost of sales.

Heat and Thermal Power Operation

Heat & Power Company is principally engaged in the distribution of
steam for industrial users and heating for commercial and residential
purposes within the TEDA. The Heat & Power Company has currently
made a connection to a total of approximately 300 kilometers steam
transmission pipelines and more than 60 processing stations in the
TEDA, with a daily distribution capacity reaching 21,600 tonnes of steam.

In 2008, the Group's heat and thermal power operation reported
revenue of approximately HK$599.1 million and a segment profit of
approximately HK$13.6 million, resulted in an increase of 23% and a
decrease of 43% respectively over last year. The drop in the segment
profit for the year was mainly caused by the significant increase in costs
of sales. The total quantity of steam sold for the year was approximately
2,941,000 tonnes, representing an increase of 10% over last year.

Locating at the TEDA with a planned site area of 33 square kilometers
in the east area and 48 square kilometers in the west area, Electricity
Company, Water Company and Heat & Power Company have been
benefiting from the prosperous growth in consumption in TEDA.
Leveraging on their well-established supply network, management
expertise and customer base, the Group believes that the utility

operations will continue to be one of the growth drivers of the Group.
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Commercial Properties Operations
Courtyard by Marriott Hong Kong (“Courtyard”)

In late March 2008, the Group completed the acquisition of Courtyard,
a 4-star hotel with 245 guest rooms situated in a prime location on the
Hong Kong Island. It is positioned as the upper moderate lodging tier
for business individuals and leisure travelers. It commenced its operation
in April 2008. Upon the completion of the acquisition, an excess of fair
value of the net assets acquired over the cost of acquisition amounting
to approximately HK$199.8 million was recognised as a gain in the

income statement.

For the period from April to December 2008, Courtyard reported
revenue of approximately HK$46.0 million and a segment loss of
approximately HK$13.0 million (excluding an impairment loss on a
leasehold land of HK$150.0 million). Courtyard has achieved satisfactory
results, generating a positive operating profit before depreciation
and amortisation within the short period since its commencement of
operation. The average occupancy rate for the period was approximately
57%.

Hyatt Regency Tianjin Hotel (“Hyatt")

The Group completed the acquisition of 50% interest in Hyatt in January
2008 and a further 25% interest in March 2008. Hyatt is a 5-star hotel
with 428 guest rooms situated in a prime location in the city centre of
Tianjin. It commenced its contribution as a 50% owned jointly controlled
entity of the Group for January and February 2008 and as a 75% owned
subsidiary since March 2008. Upon the completion of the acquisition, an
excess of fair value of the net assets acquired over the cost of acquisition
amounting to approximately HK$3.3 million was recognised as a gain in

the income statement.
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For the period from March to December 2008, Hyatt reported revenue
of approximately HK$57.5 million and a segment loss of approximately
HKS$11.3 million. The average occupancy rate for the year was

approximately 47%.

The Group is currently working on the renovation plan of Hyatt which is

expected to commence in the second half of 2009.

Strategic and Other Investments
Winery Operation

In 2008, sales volume of Dynasty Fine Wines Group Limited (“Dynasty”)
(stock code: 828) increased by 13% to approximately 55.1 million bottles.
Red wine products accounted for approximately 88% of total sales
revenue. The revenue and profit attributable to the equity holders of
Dynasty amounted to approximately HKS$1,360.9 million and
HK$143.1 million respectively, representing respective increase of 21%
and 13% over last year. The improved financial results were mainly
attributable to the increase in sales volume and improvement of the
gross profit margin which was primarily due to lower purchase cost of
grape juice as compared to that of 2007.

Dynasty contributed to the Group a profit of approximately
HKS64.1 million in 2008, representing an increase of 13% over prior year.

Elevator and Escalator Operation
Otis China, the associate of the Group, has recorded continuous

satisfactory growth during the year under review. The revenue of
Otis China for 2008 amounted to approximately HK$11,549.1 million,

representing a 24% increase over 2007.
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In 2008, the contribution of Otis China to the profit of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$184.1 million, representing a 16%
increase over last year. The growth was contributed by strong demand
in both domestic and overseas markets. Increase in domestic sales was
driven by high demand in city infrastructure construction brought by
the 2008 Beijing Olympic Games. Due to its competitive selling price
in the international market, demand from overseas markets continued
achieving robust growth. The Group believes that the investment in Otis
China will continue to bring in sustainable earnings in the future.

PROSPECTS

Due to the stable nature of our core businesses and adherence to our
prudent financial discipline, the Group achieved healthy growth albeit
facing a very volatile year of 2008. 2009 will still be a highly challenging
year with the impact of the global financial crisis deepened and
exacerbated. But we will strive to strengthen our business capabilities

and enhance the operation efficiency in order to combat the challenges.

As affected by the subprime mortgage crisis of the United States, the
economic development of the Mainland was slowing down towards
the end of 2008. China's GDP growth for 2008 recorded the first-year
single-digit growth since 2003. But with its strong fundamentals and the
introduction of a series of effective policies and measures to stimulate
economic development, China is well positioned to recover at a faster
pace than other countries. Nevertheless, the Group especially benefits
from a series of preferential policies towards the Tianjin Binhai New Area
under the “11th Five Year Plan”. Looking ahead, we are confident in the
future prospects of the Group.

With the important strategic move of TPD to acquire the controlling
interest in Tianjin Port Holdings Co., Ltd. all commercially operating
port assets within the Port of Tianjin will be consolidated under TPD,
enhancing the competitiveness of the Port of Tianjin in the Bohai Bay
Region and China. In the long run, the Group will enjoy the growth
of and return from this significantly larger port operator with huge
development potential, especially when the economy recovers.

Given the solid and healthy growth of the utilities segment, it is foreseen
that there is sustainable development potential. The Group is committed
to increasing investment in our core utilities operations in order to
capture the robust growth of TEDA. In addition, we are actively and
cautiously looking for investment opportunities in the Tianjin Binhai New
Area.
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With the successful entry into the commercial property arena in early
2008, the Group will continue to explore further opportunities to build
up a portfolio of balanced investments in this business segment. In this
kind of distressed market environment, we believe that there will be
attractive acquisition opportunities which can enhance shareholders’

value in the long term.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
ANALYSIS

As at 31st December 2008, the Group's total cash on hand and total
bank borrowings stood at approximately HK$3,082 million and
approximately HK$2,591 million respectively (2007: HK$3,236 million and
HK$1,304 million respectively) of which approximately HKS$33 million
bank borrowings will be matured within one year. At 31st December
2007, loans from minority shareholders of subsidiaries which amounted
to approximately HK$165 million, bore interest at 6.4% per annum and

had no fixed terms of repayment, was fully repaid during the year.

The gearing ratio as measured by total borrowings to shareholders’
funds is approximately 28% at the end of 2008, compared to
approximately 18% at the end of 2007.

Bank borrowings of HK$2,591 million outstanding at 31st December
2008 were subject to floating rates with spread of 0.44% to 1.55% over
HIBOR and 1.55% over LIBOR of relevant interest periods.

As at 31st December 2008, 99% (2007: 100%) of the Group's total bank
borrowings was denominated in HK dollars and 1% (2007: nil) was

denominated in US dollars.

For the year under review, the Group has not entered into any derivative

contracts or hedging transactions.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Company and its subsidiary companies had a total of approximately
4,400 employees at the end of the year, of which approximately
980 were management and technical staff, with the balance being

production workers.

The Group contributes to an employee pension scheme established
by the PRC Government which undertakes to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the
Group in the PRC. The Group also contributes to a mandatory provident
fund scheme for all Hong Kong employees. The contributions are based

on a fixed percentage of the members’ salaries.
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DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

The Directors have resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK3.0 cents per share to the shareholders of the Company.
The proposed final dividend of HK3.0 cents per share and the payment
of which is subject to approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 2nd June 2009.
The final dividend will be paid to shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on 2nd June 2009 and the
payment date will be on or about Wednesday, 24th June 2009.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
1st June 2009 to Tuesday, 2nd June 2009, both days inclusive, during
which no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend, all share certificates with completed transfer
forms either overleaf or separately, must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar, Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen's
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 29th
May 2009.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

None of the Group’s assets are charged or subject to any encumbrance.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YU Rumin, aged 59, was appointed as the Vice Chairman and
Executive Director of the Company in November 1997. On 31st January
2008, he was appointed as the acting Chairman of the Company. He
was appointed as an executive director of Tianjin Port Development
Holdings Limited (“TPD") (Stock Code 3382), the listed subsidiary of the
Company and the shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), on 24th November 2006 and
the chairman of TPD on 7th May 2007. Mr. Yu graduated from Shanghai
Haiyun College in 1975 and obtained a Master degree in international
transport engineering management. He had been the assistant to the
head of Tianjin Port Authority from March 1986 to December 1988.
He had been the deputy head of the Tianjin Port Authority since
December 1988, the executive deputy head since July 1996 and the
head of Tianjin Port Authority since June 2002. He was the deputy head
of the Regulatory Commission of Tianjin Port Tax Concession (K&
RIFREEELZEE) from July 1996 to June 2002. Subsequent to the
reorganization of Tianjin Port Authority in July 2004, he acted as the
vice chairman and chief executive officer of K&/ (£E) GFE AT
(Tianjin Port (Group) Co., Ltd.) ("Tianjin Port Group”). Mr. Yu is currently
the chairman of Tianjin Port Group. He is also the chairman of K;ZER%
BB AF] (Tianjin Port Holdings Co,, Ltd), a company whose shares
are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, PRC. Mr. Yu has extensive
experience in port management for over 20 years.

Mr. WU Xuemin, aged 55, was appointed as an Executive Director and
Deputy General Manager of the Company on 31st January 2008. Mr.
Wu is also a member of the remuneration committee of the Company.
He is the vice chairman, general manager and director of Tsinlien
Group Company Limited (“Tsinlien”), the controlling shareholder of
the Company. Mr. Wu is a senior economist and possesses a university
degree. From July 1987 to November 1996, he acted as the deputy
manager and manager of Hainan office and import and export office
of Li Da Group. In November 1996, he acted as the deputy general
manager of Li Da Group. During the period, he also acted as the
chairman of Hai He Trading Company and Jin Rong International
Company of Li Da Group in Hong Kong. In 1999, he completed the
postgraduate course of international trade in the Tianjin Economics and
Finance Institute. In September 2002, he acted as the general manager
of Tianjin Li He Group. Mr. Wu worked in foreign trading corporations for
many years and is experienced with foreign economy and import and
export business.
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Mr. NIE Jiansheng, aged 54, was appointed as an Executive Director
and Deputy General Manager of the Company in February 2004. He
is also a director and deputy general manager of Tsinlien. He was
appointed as a director of TPD on 26th August 2005 and was designated
as the vice chairman and executive director of TPD on 8th September
2005. Mr. Nie acted as the executive director of Dynasty Fine Wines
Group Limited ("Dynasty”) (Stock Code 828), the listed associate of the
Company and the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange,
from August 2004 to January 2008. Mr. Nie graduated from the School
of Politics at the Tianjin Normal College in 1980, majoring in economics
and philosophy and completed a postgraduate course in international
trade at the Tianjin Economics and Finance Institute in 1999. Mr. Nie
was the deputy department head of the Liaison department of the
Foreign Affairs Office of the Tianjin Municipal People’s Government
from 1991 to 1992, the deputy head of the department of Foreign-
invested Enterprises Management of the Tianjin Foreign Economic
and Trade Commission from 1992 to 1996 and the head of the Tianjin
Foreign Investment Enterprises Management Office and the general
secretariat of the Foreign Investment Office of Tianjin Municipal People's
Government from 1998 to 2001. He has been the vice chairman of
Tianjin Heavenly Palace Winery Co., Ltd. since July 2003. Mr. Nie has over
10 years of experience in management and in particular in managing

roles within government.

Mr. DAI Yan, aged 56, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in July 2006 and Deputy General Manager of the Company
in September 2008. He is a senior economist. He is also a director and
deputy general manager of Tsinlien. Mr. Dai graduated from University
of International Business and Economics in 1980. In 1998, he completed
the professional course in law in the Party School of the Central
Committee of CP.C. and the postgraduate course of international trade
in Tianjin University of Finance and Economics, respectively. From 1988
to 2002, he acted as the deputy general manager of Tianjin Garments
Import & Export Corporation; the deputy general manager of Tianjin
Garments Associate Corporation; the director, deputy general manager
and general manager of Tianjin Zhong Fu International Group Company
Limited and acted as the director and deputy general manager of Tianjin
Textile (Holdings) Group Limited. In June 2007, he was appointed as an
executive director of Wah Sang Gas Holdings Limited (Stock Code 8035),
a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Dai has
solid experience in management for over 20 years.
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Mr. HU Chengli, aged 52, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company in July 2006. Mr. Hu was appointed as an executive director
of Dynasty on 10th February 2009. He is also a director of Tsinlien. Mr.
Hu graduated from Tianjin Textile Industrial College in 1979, majoring
in textile automation. In 1985, he completed professional course in
business management in Tianjin Administration College and completed
the postgraduate course of theory in set-up of the party at School of
Tianjin Committee of the Communist Party in 2001. He obtained a
master degree in business administration from the National University
of South Australia in 2003. From 1979 to 1982, he was engaged in the
research and development in the Tianjin Textile R&D Centre. From
1985 to 1992, he acted as the department chief and deputy head in
the research & development department, news and information centre
and secretarial department of Tianjin Committee Office. From 1992 to
1999, he acted as the deputy head and head of the Liaison Office of The
Central People’s Government in the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (formerly known as Xinhua News Agency, Hong Kong Branch).
From 1999 to 2002, he acted as the chief of Second Administrative
Division of Tianjin Committee Office. Mr. Hu has solid experience in

administration and management for over 20 years.

Dr. WANG Jiandong, aged 46, was appointed as an Executive Director
and Deputy General Manager of the Company in July 2003. In April 2006,
Dr. Wang resigned as the Deputy General Manager of the Company. He
is a senior economist. He graduated from the Faculty of Financial and
Law of Nankai University in 1989 and obtained a Master degree and a
Doctorate degree in economics from Nankai University in 1997 and 2002
respectively. He worked with the Bank of China, Tianjin Branch from 1989
to 1993, and became the general manager of Shanghai Department of
Securities Business of Tianjin International Trust & Investment Company
Limited (Bank of China) from 1993 to 1996. Dr. Wang joined Tsinlien
in 1996 as secretary of the Board and was appointed as the general
manager of department of financial market of the Company and Tianjin

Development Assets Management Company Limited in 1998.

Mr. BAIl Zhisheng, aged 53, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in January 2006. Mr. Bai graduated in 1984 from the
undergraduate programme of Peking University where he studied in
international politics. He completed a postgraduate course specializing
in law at the School of Central Committee of the Communist Party, the
PRC in 1998. He is the chairman and executive director of Dynasty. Mr.

Bai has solid experience in corporate management for over 10 years.
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Mr. ZHANG Wenli, aged 54, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in March 2006. Mr. Zhang graduated from the Faculty of
Electrical Engineering of Harbin Electrical Engineering Institute in 1982.
He completed a postgraduate course specializing in law at the School
of Central Committee of the Communist Party, the PRC in 1999. He got
the EMBA degree of Tianjin University in 2006. Mr. Zhang was the deputy
head of Tianjin Electrical and Mechanical Research Institute from 1982
to 1993; the deputy head of Tianjin Electricity Control and Mechanic
Transmission Institute from 1993 to 1995 and acted as the chairman
of Tianjin Hoisting Equipment Co.,, Ltd.. From 1996 to 2000, he was
the assistant general manager and deputy general manager of Tianjin
Electrical and Mechanical Industrial Company (currently known as Tianjin
BENEFO Machinery & Electric Holding Group Ltd.). Since July 2000, he
was appointed as the general manager and chairman of Tianjin BENEFO
Machinery & Electric Holding Group Ltd. Mr. Zhang is also the chairman
of Tianjin Benefo TelJing Electric Company Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, PRC and a director
of CFHI-National Heavy Industries R & D Center. Mr. Zhang has solid

experience in research and development for over 10 years.

Mr. SUN Zengyin, aged 63, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in May 2000. He graduated from the Faculty of Water
Engineering of Tianjin University. After graduation, he was appointed
as the head of Construction Section in the Drainage Administration
Department in Tianjin Municipal Bureau, chief director of the Drainage
Administration Department, assistant director of Tianjin Municipal
Bureau, deputy director of Tianjin Municipal Bureau and then the
director of Tianjin Municipal Bureau. He has served Tianjin government
for over 30 years and has been in charge of many large infrastructure
projects. He is extremely familiar with Tianjin's economic structure and

development.
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Mr. GONG Jing, aged 44, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company on 1 April 2009. Mr. Gong is a senior engineer and
possesses a master degree. Mr. Gong graduated from the Faculty of
Precision Instrumentation of Tianjin University in 1986, majoring in
Photo-Electronic Engineering and obtained a master degree from
Tianjin University in 1989. In September 2000, Mr. Gong completed a
postgraduate course at the Department of Finance of Nankai University.
Mr. Gong is currently studying a doctoral degree in technology
economic administration at the School of Administration of Tianjin
University. Mr. Gong acted as the chief officer and deputy director of the
Project Design Department of the Optical Fiber Instrument Factory of
Tianjin Optical Electrical Group Co., Ltd. and the department head of the
Foreign Economic and Business Department of Tianjin Optical Electrical
Group Co,, Ltd. from April 1989 to August 1993; the deputy general
manager of Tianma Entertainment Co., Ltd. from August 1993 to May
1994; the manager of Tianma Technology and Business Company from
May to August 1994; the deputy head of the Department of Foreign
Economic and Business of The Administrative Committee of Tianjin
Hi-Tech Industry Park from August 1994 to April 1996. Mr. Gong was
the secretary of the vice mayor and the Standing Committee Member
of the Tianjin Municipal Government from April 1996 to March 1998;
the secretary of the vice minister of Ministry of Information Industry
from March to July 1998 and an officer assistant of The Administrative
Committee of Tianjin Hi-Tech Industry Park from July 1998 to April 2006.
From October 2001 to January 2005, Mr. Gong also acted as the general
manager of Investment and Development Department of Tsinlien.
Since April 2006, he has been the executive director and deputy general
manager of Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding Group Co.,, Ltd.. Mr. Gong obtained
the senior professional manager qualification from China Enterprise

Confederation and China Enterprise Directors Association in 2008.

Mr. ZHENG Daoquan, aged 58, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in December 2006. Mr. Zheng was appointed as
an executive director of Dynasty on 10th February 2009. Mr. Zheng
is a senior economist and possesses tertiary academic qualification.
From 1982 to 1998, he was the official, deputy head and head of
administration section of Tianjin Engineering and Industrial Bureau.
Besides, he was also the general manager of Tianjin Tai Guang Industrial
and Trade Company at the same period. From 1998 to March 2006, he
was the head of Tianjin's representative office of Tsinlien. Mr. Zheng
is a director and deputy general manager of Tsinlien and the head of
Tianjin's representative office of Tsinlien. Mr. Zheng has solid experience

in management for over 20 years.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. CHEUNG Wing Yui, aged 59, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in November 1997 and re-
designated as Non-Executive Director of the Company in September
2004. He received a Bachelor of Commerce degree in accountancy from
the University of New South Wales, Australia. Mr. Cheung is a member
of CPA Australia. He has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong since
1979 and is consultant of the law firm Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo. He has been
admitted as a solicitor in the United Kingdom and as an advocate and
solicitor in Singapore. Mr. Cheung is also an independent non-executive
director of a number of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely
Hop Hing Holdings Limited (Stock Code 47), Agile Property Holdings
Limited (Stock Code 3383) and Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of
China, Ltd. (Stock Code 2318). He is also a non-executive director of a
number of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely SmarTone
Telecommunications Holdings Limited (Stock Code 315), Sunevision
Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code 8008), Tai Sang Land Development Limited
(Stock Code 89) and SRE Group Limited (Stock Code 1207). In addition,
he is a member of the Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance),
a director of the Community Chest, a council member of the Open
University of Hong Kong, a director of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors Limited and a member of the Appeal Board established under
the Accreditation of Academic and Vocational Qualifications Ordinance.
Mr. Cheung served as an independent non-executive director of Ching
Hing (Holdings) Limited until 25th July 2007 and as a non-executive
director of Taifook Securities Group Limited until 1st October 2007, both

companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. KWONG Che Keung, Gordon, aged 59, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 1998. Mr. Kwong has also
been serving as the chairman of the audit committee and a member
of the remuneration committee of the Company since 1998 and 2005
respectively. He is also an independent non-executive director of a
number of companies listed on the Stock Exchange, namely COSCO
International Holdings Limited, Beijing Capital International Airport
Company Limited, Frasers Property (China) Limited, NWS Holdings
Limited, China Oilfield Services Limited, OP Financial Investments
Limited, China Chengtong Development Group Limited, Global Digital
Creations Holdings Limited, Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of
China, Ltd., Quam Limited, China Power International Development
Limited, Henderson Land Development Company Limited, Henderson
Investment Limited, Agile Property Holdings Limited and CITIC 1616
Holdings Limited. From 1984 to 1998, Mr. Kwong was a partner of
Pricewaterhouse and was a council member of the Stock Exchange
from 1992 to 1997. He has a Bachelor of Social Science degree from the
University of Hong Kong and is a fellow member of both the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwong also served as an
independent non-executive director of New World Mobile Holdings
Limited until 1st February 2007 and as a non-executive director of
COSCO Pacific Limited until Tst January 2006, both companies are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Besides, Mr. Kwong also served as an
independent non-executive director of TOM Online Inc, a company
previously listed on the Stock Exchange and was privatized in
September 2007.

Mr. LAU Wai Kit, aged 46, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in March 1998. Mr. Lau is also a
member of the audit committee of the Company. He is a principal
of Gobi Partners, Inc.,, a venture capital firm focuses on technology
investments in China. He has over 13 years of experience in investment
banking and direct investment. Mr. Lau is a solicitor of the Supreme
Court of Hong Kong, an attorney and counselor at law of the Supreme
Court of the State of California, a solicitor of the Supreme Court of
England and Wales, and an advocate and solicitor of the Supreme
Court of Singapore. Mr. Lau is an independent non-executive director of
China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code
966) and Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited
(Stock Code 8199) and WSP Holdings Limited (Stock Code WH). China
Insurance International Holdings Company Limited and Shandong
Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited are listed on the
Stock Exchange. WSP Holdings Limited is listed on the New York Stock

Exchange.
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Dr. CHENG Hon Kwan, GBS, JP, aged 81, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in June 2001.
Dr. Cheng has also been serving as the chairman of the remuneration
committee and a member of the audit committee of the Company. Dr.
Cheng obtained his Bachelor's Degree in Civil Engineering from Tianjin
University and a DIC from Imperial College of Science and Technology,
London. He has been awarded Honorary Doctor's Degrees from Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology, City University of Hong
Kong, Open University of Hong Kong, and Open University, UK. He is a
Fellow of Imperial College and City and Guilds London Institute. He is a
Past President, Honorary Fellow and Gold Medallist of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers; Past Vice President, Fellow and Gold Medallist
of the Institution of Structural Engineers, Fellow of the Institution of
Civil Engineers and of the American Society of Civil Engineers and
Honorary Fellow of Engineers Australia. He is also an Honorary Member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Planners and the Hong Kong Institute
of Architects; State Class | Registered Structural Engineer Qualification.
Dr. Cheng is an authorised person and registered structural engineer;
Former Chairman of Hong Kong Housing Authority and Transport
Advisory Committee. He is a member of the Standing Committee of
the Tianjin CPPCC, Chairman of Tianjin GangJin Architects & Engineers
Ltd. and a permanent Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Tianjin
Friendship Association. Currently Dr. Cheng is an independent non-
executive director of Wing Hang Bank, Limited, Hang Lung Group
Limited, Agile Property Holdings Limited and Hang Lung Properties
Limited, all companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. GE Luncan, aged 58, is the Deputy General Manager of the
Company. Ms. Ge possesses accounting qualification and tertiary
academic qualification. From 1978 to January 1997, she was engaged
in accounting and financial management of the various departments
of the Tianjin Branch of Bank of China including the Departments of
Non-trading Foreign Currency Clearing, Audit, Deposit and Accounts.
She has been the officer of the aforesaid departments, the manager of
the Non-trading Foreign Currency Clearing Department and the Audit
Department, and the deputy head of the Deposit Department and the
Audit Department. In January 1997, she was re-designated to act as
the deputy general manager of the Accounts Department of Tsinlien.
In January 1998, she acted as the head and the chief representative of
the Tianjin representative office of the Company. In 2005, she acted
as the acting general manager of the Investment and Development
Department. In April 2006, she acted as the Deputy General Manager of
the Company and the head of the representative office of the Company
in Tianjin. Ms. Ge has working experience in banking and corporate

financial management for over 20 years.

Mr. TSANG Wai Yip, Patrick, aged 40, is the Group Financial Controller
and Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Tsang holds a bachelor
degree in accountancy and is a fellow member of both the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. Mr. Tsang started his career with
PricewaterhouseCoopers (formerly known as Price Waterhouse) from
1990 to 1994. From January 1995 to June 1996, he was the senior
accountant for The Sincere Co, Ltd. Prior to joining the Company in
November 2003, Mr. Tsang served as an accounting manager and
financial controller of China Resources Breweries Ltd. (a brewery joint
venture between China Resources Enterprises Ltd. and SABMiller) in
1996 and 2001 respectively. Mr. Tsang has over 18 years of experience in

auditing, accounting and corporate finance.

Mr. LAU Tin Cheung, Vincent, aged 45, is the Investment Director of
the Company. Mr. Lau has been educated and worked in Hong Kong
and United Kingdom. He holds a bachelor of engineering degree in
civil engineering at the University of Nottingham and a master science
degree in structural engineering at the University of Manchester
Institution of Science and Technology. Mr. Lau has about 20 years
experience in investment and project management of private company
and management consultants in Hong Kong and China, such as South
Asia Holding Limited, Lai Sun Group, Samsung Group and Parson
Brinkerhoff Consultants.
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MAINTAINING HIGH STANDARDS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE IN EVERYTHING
WE DO

Sound corporate governance practices are crucial to the smooth,
effective and transparent operation of a company and its ability to
attract investment, protect rights of shareholders and stakeholders, and
enhance shareholder value. The Company is committed to maintaining
a high standard of corporate governance with a view to being

transparent, open and accountable to our shareholders.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31st December 2008,
except for the following deviation:

Code Provision A.2.1

The code provision A.2.1 of the Code provides that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Since the beginning of the accounting period covered by this annual
report up to 31st January 2008, the positions of Chairman of the Board
and general manager of the Company were held by Dr. Ren Xuefeng,
the former Chairman of the Board. Following the resignation of Dr. Ren
Xuefeng on 31st January 2008, Mr. Yu Rumin, the Vice Chairman of the
Board, was appointed as acting Chairman of the Board, whereas the
position of general manager of the Company remained vacant at 31st
December 2008. The position of general manager of the Company will
be filled up in due course.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

As at 31st December 2008, the Board comprises fifteen members. Mr.
Yu Rumin acts as the acting Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Board.
Other executive Directors are Mr. Wu Xuemin, Mr. Nie Jiansheng, Mr. Dai
Yan, Mr. Hu Chengli, Dr. Wang Jiandong, Mr. Bai Zhisheng, Mr. Zhang
Wenli, Mr. Sun Zengyin, Dr. Zong Guoying and Mr. Zheng Daoquan. The
Company has a non-executive Director, Mr. Cheung Wing Yui, and three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon,
Mr. Lau Wai Kit and Dr. Cheng Hon Kwan, one of whom namely, Mr.
Kwong Che Keung, Gordon has appropriate professional accounting

experience and expertise.

Dr. Zong Guoying resigned as an executive Director of the Company on
1st April 2009 and Mr. Gong Jing was appointed as an executive Director

of the Company on 1st April 2009.

All directors have distinguished themselves in their field of expertise,
and have exhibited high standards of personal and professional ethics
and integrity. The biographical details of each Director are disclosed on
pages 22 to 30 of this Annual Report.

Each independent non-executive Director has, pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules, confirmed that he is independent of the Company and
the Board also considers that they are independent.

A letter of appointment has been entered into between the Company
with each of the independent non-executive Directors and non-
executive Director for a term of three years with effect from 1st January
2007, and they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the

provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Any Directors
appointed by the Board during the year is required to retire and submit
himself for re-election at the next following general meeting of the
Company (in case of filling a casual vacancy) or at the next following
annual general meeting of the Company (in case of an addition to the

existing Board) immediately following their appointments.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd)
Composition (Cont’d)

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material relationship)

among members of the Board.

Function

The Board, led by the Chairman (currently by the acting Chairman), is
responsible for formulation and approval of the Group’s development
and business strategies and policies, approval of business plans,
recommendation of dividend and supervision of management in

accordance with the Articles of Association.

The executive Directors are responsible for day-to-day management of
the Company’s operations and to conduct regular meetings with the
senior management of the Company, its subsidiaries and associated
companies, at which operational issues and financial performance are
evaluated.

The Company views well-developed and timely reporting systems and
internal controls are essential, and the Board plays a key role in the
implementation and monitoring of internal financial controls.

The Board has established procedure to enable Directors, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

The Articles of Association contain description of responsibilities and
operation procedures of the Board. The Board holds meetings to discuss
and consider significant matters relating to existing operations and
proposals for new operations and projects. Board meetings include
regular meetings and irregular meetings. The Board meets formally at

least four times a year.
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TEERWE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’'d)
Function (Cont’d)

The Board held nine Board meetings during 2008, four of which were
regular Board meetings. Due notice and board papers were given to all
Directors prior to the Board meetings in accordance with the Articles
of Association and the Code. The attendance records of the Board
meetings held in 2008 are set out below:—

EEE2(H)
BigE (4)

R-ZZZNFR  ERERTHNRESEEH H
THAREREFTEEH - ARRAINBITEFEE SR
Al ERBESEEAILRTAZREANMBESRS
BEABAREFEXMN - RZBEN\FRETESF
EERZHFEEEHIIMT

Attended/
Eligible to attend
HERE,
Executive Directors HITEE BEREERY
Dr. Ren Xuefeng (resigned on 31st January 2008) FERBL (RS N\F—A=+—H8HT) 0N
Mr. Yu Rumin FAaR%E 8/9
Mr. Wu Xuemin (appointed on 31st January 2008) RERAEE(R=ZEENF—A=+—H8%F) 8/8
Mr. Nie Jiansheng EEESE 8/9
Mr. Dai Yan B4 9/9
Mr. Hu Chengli HARK A S A 8/9
Dr. Wang Jiandong TREREL 8/9
Mr. Bai Zhisheng HEE%E 5/9
Mr. Zhang Wenli SRICH S AE 4/9
Mr. Sun Zengyin TRIBEN S A 3/9
Dr. Zong Guoying REIRIEL 0/9
Mr. Zheng Daoquan BBt 8/9
Non-Executive Directors HEHITEE
Mr. Cheung Wing Yui SR 7/9
Mr. Wang Guanghao (resigned on 31st January 2008) FREEFRERZZEZNF-A=1+—HET) 11
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHHTEE
Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon BRERSE A4 9/9
Mr. Lau Wai Kit SRR E 6/9
Dr. Cheng Hon Kwan EESE L 9/9
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TERERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’'d)
Chairman and General Manager

The Chairman is the leader of the Board and he oversees the Board
so that it acts in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman is
responsible for deciding the agenda of each Board meeting, taking
into account, where appropriate, matters proposed by other Directors
for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has overall responsibility for
providing leadership, vision and direction in the development of the
business of the Company.

The general manager, assisted by other executive Directors, is
responsible for the day-to-day management of the business of the
Group, attends to formulation and successful implementation of
policies, and assumes full accountability to the Board for all operations
of the Group. Working with the executive management team of each
core business division, he ensures smooth operations and development
of the Group. He maintains continuing dialogue with the Chairman, and
all the other Directors to keep them fully informed of all major business
developments and issues. He is also responsible for building and

maintaining an effective executive team to support him in his role.

Such division of responsibilities allows a balance of power between
the Board and the management of the Group, and ensures their

independence and accountability.

As disclosed earlier in this report, the position of general manager
has been vacant since 31st January 2008. The daily operation and
management of the Company is currently monitored by the executive
Directors as well as the senior management. The Company will ensure
the role of the Chairman and general manager of the Company to be
separated and performed by different individuals once the position of

general manager is filled up.
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TEERBE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)
Responsibilities

In the course of discharging their duties, the Directors act in good faith,
with due diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company

and its shareholders. Their responsibilities include:

- regular board meetings focusing on business strategy, operational

issues and financial performance;
- active participation on the boards of subsidiaries and associates;

- monitoring the quality, timeliness, relevance and reliability of

internal and external reporting;

- monitoring and managing potential conflicts of interest of
management, board members and shareholders, including misuse
of corporate assets and abuse in connected transaction; and

- ensuring processes are in place to maintain the overall integrity of
the Company, including financial statements, relationships with
suppliers, customers and other stakeholders, and compliance with
all laws and ethics.

Board Committees

A number of Board Committees, including Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee, have been established by the Board to
strengthen its functions and to enhance its expertise. These committees
have been formed with specific written terms of reference which deal

clearly with the committees’ authority and duties.
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TERERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee in 2005.
Mr. Wu Xuemin was appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee in place of Dr. Ren Xuefeng on 31st January 2008. After the
said change, the Remuneration Committee consists of one executive
Director, Mr. Wu Xuemin and two independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon and Dr. Cheng Hon Kwan. It is chaired by
Dr. Cheng Hon Kwan. A written terms of reference of the Remuneration

Committee was adopted with reference to the Code.

The Remuneration Committee’s responsibilities are to review and
consider the Company’s policy for remuneration of Directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee considers several
factors such as the performance, qualification and experience of the
individual and the prevailing market condition before determining the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior management
including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
and to recommend to the Board remuneration of non-executive

Director.

Three meetings were held during the financial year ended 31st
December 2008. During the meetings, the remuneration policy,
remuneration packages and bonus arrangements of the Directors
and senior management have been discussed and approved. All
Remuneration Committee members, namely, Dr. Cheng Hon Kwan, Mr.
Kwong Che Keung, Gordon and Mr. Wu Xuemin attended the aforesaid

meetings.

The Remuneration Committee also held two meetings in 2009. At the
meeting held on 12th January 2009, the total discretionary bonus for the
Company's Directors and employees for the year ended 31st December
2008 were considered and approved. At the meeting held on 16th
April 2009, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and discussed the
remuneration policy for 2008 and the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management for 2008. All members were present
at both meetings.

EEE (&)

yMEES
BEROR _ETRFRUFHEES - R-ZETN
—A=t—0 RERELRZER/FHEZEGK

m

i UREBEESE L RUEEBER  FTHEEEAR
—ERTEERBRALNMABBYIFRTEZRE
BREEREENPELAR  YABEHFLETLET
7o FNE B e 2ETAIRMEMBERLE -

\

FHEE R BEARNUBRALIFERBRE
FABHMIE - EETHITEFRSREEASH
B (R E AR RS ER R R 28 - B
MESeeLBEARR B RER  UEBITH
BIRSEE - WHIFNTES 2 BB E BRI
i -

FHMEBRENBE_TT\F+_A=+—RALYK
FERABITZRERE - NEEL  FHZESHM
BE  EFZLSREEABZHINREAIELR W
HE-FFEFHEESKE @ BIEzHBEL - BER
FEMRBRESE  HAHFE LG -

FHEZE TR _TTNAFRTTRMAGH - R_F
FAF-ATZAETZEE L SRAXRREER
BREREBE_ZTZEN\F+_A=T—HLFEZR
BREAELZEERIAE - RZZTNFHA+REE
fTresl FWEEER _ TR NFZHMBERK
BEERSRERABR TR N\FZ2HMIEL R R
Ao TARBHELELMAEE -

Annual Report 2008 —ZE )\ FF R “_



—n Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REERER AT

Corporate Governance Report

TRERME

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon, Mr. Lau Wai Kit and
Dr. Cheng Hon Kwan. It is chaired by Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon. It
reports directly to the Board and reviews matters relating to the work of
the external auditor, financial statements and internal controls. The Audit
Committee meets with the Company's external auditor to discuss the
audit process and the accounting and internal control issues raised.

A written terms of reference, which describes the authority and duties of
the Audit Committee, are reviewed and updated by the Board from time
to time to comply with the code provision of the Code.

Set out below is the summary of work done in 2008:

- reviewed the financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2007 and for the six months ended 30th June 2008;

- reviewed internal control matters with the external auditor;
- reviewed internal audit performed by the external consultant;

- reviewed the external auditor's statutory audit plan and letters to the

management; and
- considered 2008 audit fees and audit work.
The Audit Committee held two meetings during 2008. All Audit

Committee members, namely, Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon, Mr. Lau
Wai Kit and Dr. Cheng Hon Kwan attended the aforesaid meetings.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)
Nomination of Directors

The Board has not established a nomination committee. According to
the Articles of Association, the Board has the power from time to time
and at any time to appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. In assessing nomination of
new directors, the Board has taken into consideration of the nominee’s

qualification, ability and potential contributions to the Company.

With respect to the change of directors, authorised representatives and
remuneration committee members of the Company on 31st January
2008, it was reviewed and approved by the Board at the Board meeting
held on the same day where all the then Directors were present at the
meeting, except that Dr. Ren Xuefeng, Mr. Bai Zhisheng, Mr. Zhang Wenli
and Dr. Zong Guoying were absent.

Except for the appointment of Mr. Wu Xuemin as an executive Director
on 31st January 2008, no other new director has been appointed
during the year. Each newly appointed Director would be provided
with a package of orientation materials setting out the duties and
responsibilities of Directors under the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory and regulatory requirements. Orientation meeting with
newly appointed Director would be held for briefing on business and

operations of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code"). Having made specific enquiry with the
Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year
2008.

The Company has also established written guidelines regarding
securities transaction on no less exacting terms of the Model Code for
senior management and specific individual who may have access to
price sensitive information in relation to the securities of the Company.
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TRERRE

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews each year a letter from the external
auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, confirming their
independence, approves their appointment, discusses the scope of their

audit and approves their fees.

PricewaterhouseCoopers provided annual statutory audit services in
respect of the Company’s financial statements prepared under the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKFRSs") and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance for the
year 2008. PricewaterhouseCoopers also reviewed the 2008 unaudited
interim financial statements of the Company, prepared under the
HKFRSs.

During the year, the fees paid and payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers
in respect of audit and audit related services amounted to approximately
HK$6,700,000. In respect of non-audit services, the fees paid and payable
to PricewaterhouseCoopers relating to tax services amounted to
approximately HK$27,000.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal
controls within the Group and for reviewing their effectiveness. The
system of internal controls is designed to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to safeguard assets and to ensure the quality of internal and
external reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
It is also designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
that material misstatement or loss can be avoided, and to manage and

minimize risks of failure in operation systems.

Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (“TPD") and Dynasty Fine
Wines Group Limited ("“Dynasty”), being the listed subsidiary and
associate of the Company respectively, engaged external professional
firms to perform a review on the effectiveness of their internal control
procedures up to 31st December 2008. For businesses other than TPD
and Dynasty, the Board engaged RSM Nelson Wheeler Consulting
Limited ("RSM Nelson Wheeler") to perform internal audit function to
assess the effectiveness of the financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions of the Company and the

Group's major subsidiaries on a rotation basis.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (Cont'd)

At the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 16th April 2009, RSM
Nelson Wheeler reported their review work done for the year ended 31st
December 2008 performed in accordance with the detailed risk-based
audit plan approved by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
members, together with the senior management, have reviewed,
considered and discussed all the findings relating to the internal control
system and recommendations relating thereto.

GOING CONCERN

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so that they

can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include general meetings, annual reports, various notices,
announcements and circulars. Procedure for demanding voting by
poll has been included in all circulars accompanying notice convening
general meeting and the detailed procedures for conducting a poll has

been explained by the chairman at general meetings.

The general meetings provide with shareholders a useful forum and
encourage the shareholders to attend the general meetings of the
Company to raise comments and exchange views with the Board.
The Chairman, Directors, Board Committees’ chairman/members and
external auditor, where appropriate, are available to answer questions at
the meetings.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN PREPARING
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing
the financial statements. The responsibilities of the external auditor with
respect to financial reporting are set out in the Independent Auditor's
Report on pages 72 and 73.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial

statements for the year ended 31st December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities are shown in notes 43, 44 and 45 to the financial statements,

respectively.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by business and
geographical segments is set out in note 5 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2008 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 74.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HK6.0 cents per
share, totaling HK$64,048,207.5, which was paid on 6th November 2008.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK3.0 cents per share, totaling HK$32,024,103.75.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 168.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in note 31 to the financial statements. Distributable
reserves of the Company at 31st December 2008, calculated in
accordance with Section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
amounted to HK$1,282,613,000 (2007: HK$1,196,996,000).

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounted to approximately HK$4,886,000 (2007: HK$5,258,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group and the Company are shown in note 16 to the financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors

EEEREE

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 30 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31st December 2008 are set
out in note 32 to the financial statements.

LOAN AGREEMENT WITH SPECIFIC
PERFORMANCE COVENANTS

Save as disclosed below, the Directors are not aware of any
circumstances which would give rise to a disclosure obligation pursuant
to the requirements under Rule 13.18 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as at 31st December 2008.

On 21st November 2006, the Company entered into a facility agreement
(“Facility Agreement”) with a syndicate of lenders (the “Lenders”),
pursuant to which a term loan facility of up to HK$860 million and
a revolving/term loan facility of up to HK$1,140 million totaling
HK$2,000 million (the “Facility”) was made available to the Company
by the Lenders with a term of 60 months from the date of the Facility

Agreement.

Under the Facility Agreement, it will be an event of default if (i)
the Tianjin Municipal Government of the PRC ceases to maintain a
shareholding ownership directly or indirectly in the Company of more
than 50%, or (i) the Company ceases to be under the direct or indirect
management control of Tsinlien Group Company Limited (“Tsinlien”). If
any of the above-mentioned events of default occurs, it will confer on
the Lenders the right to cancel the Facility and declare all outstanding
borrowings and interest as immediately due and payable on demand.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold

any of the Company’s shares during the year.
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ESTHRES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25th May 2007,
a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) of the Company was approved
by shareholders of the Company. Relevant information relating to the
Scheme is set out as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Company with a
flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding, remunerating,

compensating and/or providing benefits to the participants.
(b) Participants of the Scheme

The board of Directors (the “Board”) may offer to grant options to
the participants which means (i) any executive or non-executive
directors including independent non-executive directors or any
employees (whether full-time or part-time) of each member of
the Group; (i) any discretionary objects of a discretionary trust
established by any substantial shareholders of the Company or any
employees, executive or non-executive directors of each member of
the Group; (iii) any consultants, professionals and other advisers to
each member of the Group; (iv) any chief executives or substantial
shareholders of each member of the Group; (v) any associates of
director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of each member
of the Group; (vi) any employees (whether full-time or part-time)
of substantial shareholder of each member of the Group; (vii) any
suppliers of goods or services to any member of the Group; and
(viii) any customers of any member of the Group, provided that the
Board shall have absolute discretion to determine whether one falls
within the aforesaid categories.

(c) Total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of approval of the Scheme. The
maximum number of shares of the Company which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares of
the Company in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme are
91,662,012 Shares, representing approximately 8.59% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this

report.
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Report of the Directors

EXEEREE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

The Company (Cont’d)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Except with the approval of the Company’s shareholders at general
meeting, the total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares

in issue as at the date of grant.

Minimum period for options to be held

No minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised unless otherwise determined by the Board of the

Company.

Period and payment on acceptance of options

An offer of grant of an option may be accepted by a grantee within
the date as specified in the offer letter issued by the Company,
being a date not later than 30 days after the date on which the offer
letter was issued. A consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance

of the offer of grant of an option.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board
and notified to the participants and shall be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; (i) the average of the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value

of a share.

Life of the Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company at general meeting
or by the Board, the life of the Scheme commenced from 25th May

2007, date of adoption, and will end on 24th May 2017.

Details of options granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled and
outstanding under the Scheme during the year are as follows:
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EEEHES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

RS (&)

The Company (Cont’d) AT (&)
Number of share options
BRERE
Held at 31st
Held at 1st Lapsed/ December 2008
January 2008 cancelled R=ZZFBENEFE
R-BENE Granted Exercised B2%%/ +=—B=+-—H
—A—B&EE B2 [EX [ 58
(Note 2)
(GEP)
Directors =
Ren Xuefeng (Note 1) {FE38% (FftzT 1) - 1,100,000 - 1,100,000 -
Yu Rumin FHR - 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000
Nie Jiansheng mEE - 900,000 - - 900,000
Dai Yan Egd - 900,000 - - 900,000
Hu Chengli HRRCH - 900,000 - - 900,000
Wang Jiandong TER - 600,000 - - 600,000
Bai Zhisheng HE4 - 300,000 - - 300,000
Zhang Wenli R X - 300,000 - - 300,000
Sun Zengyin TRIZE] - 300,000 - - 300,000
Zong Guoying REIR - 300,000 - - 300,000
Zheng Daoquan gER - 900,000 - - 900,000
Cheung Wing Yui SRk - 500,000 - - 500,000
Kwong Che Keung, BPEoR
Gordon - 500,000 - - 500,000
Lau Wai Kit ZIEA - 500,000 - - 500,000
Cheng Hon Kwan ElpEEa - 500,000 - - 500,000
Continuous contract  HESKNES
employees - 2,400,000 - - 2,400,000
- 11,900,000 - 1,100,000 10,800,000
Notes: 3T

1. The share options of Dr. Ren Xuefeng lapsed on 30th April 2008 following his

resignation on 31st January 2008.

2. Pursuant to the Scheme, a total of 11,900,000 share options were granted on
19th December 2007 and accepted by the above grantees on 17th January
2008, with an exercise price of HK$8.04 and are exercisable from 17th January

2008 to 24th May 2017.

3. The closing price of the shares immediately before the date on which the

share options were granted was HK$7.45.

FREBTNBEREZEN _TTN\F-A=+—H
FEEHE  ER-ER/\FHOA=TRKXK -

BIEEHE] - 53511900000 REREENR T LF+=
A+hB#EE  TRZZTN\F—A+t i A
ABEW - TEE RSB IR_ETNF—A++
ARE-F—tF 7 A =+mA - HBRETE -

BN ER BRI E BRI mER 74587
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Report of the Directors

EXEEREE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
The Company (Cont’d)

Details of the value of options granted under the Scheme during the
year ended 31st December 2008 and the accounting policy adopted for
the options are set out in note 9 and note 2 to the financial statements
respectively.

Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (“TPD")

By a written resolution passed by the sole shareholder of TPD on 26th
April 2006, a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
approved and adopted by TPD. Subject to earlier termination by TPD in
general meeting or by the board of directors of TPD, the Share Option
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the date
of its adoption, i.e. 26th April 2006.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive and
recognition to eligible persons for their contribution to TPD and its
subsidiaries (“TPD Group”). The board of directors of TPD may offer to
grant share options to any full-time or part-time employees, executives
or officers of TPD or any of its subsidiaries; any directors of TPD or any
of its subsidiaries; any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents to TPD or any of its subsidiaries and such other persons who, in
the sole opinion of the board of directors of TPD, will contribute or have
contributed to TPD Group.

Unless approved by the shareholders of TPD in general meeting, the
total number of shares in TPD in respect of which share options may be
granted (including shares in respect of which share options, whether
exercised or still outstanding, have already been granted) under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of TPD must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on
the date on which the shares commence listing on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”). The maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of TPD at any time shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by the shareholders of TPD in general meeting,
the maximum entitlement of each participant (including exercised,
outstanding and cancelled share options) in any 12-month period under
the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares

in issue on the offer date.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (“TPD")
(Cont’d)

A total of 154,300,000 shares are available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme, representing approximately 8.6% of the issued share
capital of TPD as at the date of TPD's annual report.

HKS$1T by way of consideration for the grant of an option is payable by
the grantee to TPD on acceptance of the option within 30 days from the
offer date.

The exercise period of the share options is determinable by the directors
of TPD and shall not exceed a period of 10 years commencing on the
date upon which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted in

accordance with the Share Option Scheme.

Unless otherwise determined by the board of directors of TPD, there is
no minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

The exercise price in respect of any particular option granted under
the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the board of directors
of TPD in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price
will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange on the offer
date; (i) the average of the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d) BRRRERTEI(E)

Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (“TPD”) AERBBRERBRIAB(TRERAZRED
(Cont’d) (%&)

Details of the share options granted, exercised, lapsed and cancelled ERNEBEE—_ZEEN\F+_A=1+—"HULFERN R
under TPD’s Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31st BRAEBERERETEIRD 176« BN EHEN

December 2008 are as follows: EARERFFBT
Asat
Asat 31/12/2008
Date of Exercise  01/01/2008 R-EENE Exercise
Grant Price R=ZBENE Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled +=H Period
RHAH i@ -A-H ERE B1T# BANM B  =t-8 T8
HKS (Note 1)
BT (GiE2D)
Directors
£z
Yu Rumin 03/02/2007 274 1,900,000 - - - - 1,900,000  03/08/2007 -
TaR 03/02/2017
25/01/2008 424 - 400,000 - - - 400,000 25/07/2008 -
24/01/2018
Nie Jiansheng 01/08/2006 228 2,100,000 - - - - 2,100,000  01/02/2007 -
BEE 01/08/2016
Wang Guanghao 01/08/2006 228 2,300,000 - - - - 2,300,000  01/02/2007 -
TES 01/08/2016
Other directors 01/08/2006 228 4,200,000 - - - - 4,200,000 01/02/2007 -
HnES 01/08/2016
25/01/2008 424 - 900,000 - - - 900,000  25/07/2008 -
24/01/2018
Employees 01/08/2006 228 1,400,000 - - - - 1,400,000  01/02/2007 -
E& 01/08/2016
21/07/2008 345 - 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000  21/01/2009 -
20/07/2018
Total 11,900,000 2,300,000 - - - 14,200,000
Az

[=0-)
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (“TPD")
(Cont’d)

Notes:

1. The closing prices of the shares of TPD immediately before 1,300,000 and
1,000,000 share options granted on 25th January 2008 and 21st July 2008
were HK$3.81 and HK$3.33 respectively.

2. All options granted are subject to a vesting period of six months from the

date of grant.

Details of the value of options granted under TPD’s Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31st December 2008 and the accounting
policy adopted for the options are set out in note 9 and note 2 to the

financial statements respectively.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the share option scheme of the Company, at no time
during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yu Rumin

Dr. Ren Xuefeng
Mr. Wu Xuemin
Mr. Nie Jiansheng
Mr. Dai Yan

Mr. Hu Chengli

Dr. Wang Jiandong
Mr. Bai Zhisheng
Mr. Zhang Wenli
Mr. Sun Zengyin

(resigned on 31st January 2008)
(appointed on 31st January 2008)

Dr. Zong Guoying  (resigned on Tst April 2009)

Mr. Gong Jing (appointed on 1st April 2009)

Mr. Zheng Daoquan
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EEEHES

DIRECTORS (Cont’'d)
Non-executive Directors:

Mr.Wang Guanghao  (resigned on 31st January 2008)
Mr. Cheung Wing Yui

Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon *

Mr. Lau Wai Kit *

Dr. Cheng Hon Kwan *

*  Independent Non-executive Directors

In accordance with Article 92 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Gong Jing will hold office until the next following general meeting

and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

In accordance with Article 101 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Yu Rumin, Mr. Nie Jiansheng, Mr. Dai Yan, Mr. Lau Wai Kit and Dr.
Cheng Hon Kwan will retire from office by rotation and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers that all of them are

independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
in the Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management section

of this Annual Report.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACT

Mr. Yu Rumin has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for a period of three years commencing 1st December 1997 and will
continue thereafter until terminated by either party giving not less than

six months' prior written notice to the other.

Save for the above, none of the Directors of the Company has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not terminable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Report of the Directors

EXEERES

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETITORS

Mr. Yu Rumin is a chairman and a director of Tianjin Port (Group) Co.,
Ltd. (“Tianjin Port Group”), as well as a chairman and a director of Tianjin
Port Holdings Co., Ltd, which is a subsidiary of Tianjin Port Group.
Tianjin Port Group operates the businesses of container and bulk cargo
handling through its various subsidiaries and associated companies, the
businesses of which is competing with the businesses of TPD, the listed

subsidiary of the Company.

As the Board of the Company and the board of TPD are independent
of the board of Tianjin Port Group (save for Mr. Yu, who is the only
common director in these companies) and Mr. Yu has no control over
the Board of the Company and the board of TPD, the Group is capable of
carrying on its businesses independently of the businesses of Tianjin Port
Group.

Save as disclosed above and within the knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this report, none of the Directors and their respective
associates had any interest in a business which competes or may

compete with the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company's business to
which the Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding
company was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31st December 2008, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the "SFQO") as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”),

were set out below:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont’d)

(i) Interestin the Company

Personal interests

(i) RARTF 2

Number of
underlying shares
held pursuant to
share options

EERRMO P 2B (&)

Approximate
percentage of
shares in issue

Name of Directors in shares RIEEIRIEIRE  Totalinterests HEBITRM
EEnA B2 2 B A REZS ZHEERDEE iR BHBES®
Yu Rumin FLR - 1,000,000 1,000,000 N 0.09%
Nie Jiansheng mEE - 900,000 900,000 Mot 0.08%
Dai Yan =T - 900,000 900,000 M= 0.08%
Hu Chengli BARK A - 900,000 900,000 "ot 0.08%
Wang Jiandong TER - 600,000 600,000 NoeHE 0.06%
Bai Zhisheng Sk - 300,000 300,000 "< 0.03%
Zhang Wenli SRS - 300,000 300,000 Mt 0.03%
Sun Zengyin TRILEN - 300,000 300,000 NoeHE 0.03%
Zong Guoying REH - 300,000 300,000 Mo 0.03%
Zheng Daoquan e - 900,000 900,000 "¢ 0.08%
Cheung Wing Yui oK - 500,000 500,000 Mt 0.05%
Kwong Che P58 - 500,000 500,000 Mo 0.05%
Keung, Gordon

Lau Wai Kit 2=t - 500,000 500,000 M 0.05%
Cheng Hon Kwan LIpER S - 500,000 500,000 Mt 0.05%
Note: These interests are held in the capacity as a beneficial owner. MisE : EFREUERMAEAFGRES -

The interests of the Directors in the share options of the Company

as beneficial owner are also set out in the section headed “Share

Option Scheme” above.

(ii) Long position in shares of associated corporation of

the Company

TPD

KEEHE

REX [BREFTS ] — P TSR AERERER
BEAAMRARBIBIED A 2 -

(i) RAERRAFEBEERG 2HFR

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shares in issue
Name of Director Capacity Nature of interests shares held HERTRE
EEnE 54 EEME FERHEE BHUESL
Wu Xuemin Interest of spouse Family interest 10,000 0.0006%
RER IS s EN) T
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (Cont’d) BEENRDAP 2R (E)

(i) R AR FEBEE 2 BREZ TR

(iiilLong position in share options of associated
corporations of the Company

TPD

KEEERE

Number of
shares over
which options
are exercisable

Approximate
percentage of
shares in issue

Name of Directors Capacity Nature of interests FITEBREY HEBTRSG
HEME 37 EEME ReBRGOHE BHOBED
Yu Rumin Beneficial owner Personal interest 2,300,000 0.13%
THER EmEBA (EPN: £

Nie Jiansheng Beneficial owner Personal interest 2,100,000 0.12%
WLt BREAA (BN

Dynasty Fine Wines Group Limited THEREFEGRA]

Number of

shares over
which options
are exercisable

Approximate
percentage of

shares in issue

Name of Director Capacity Nature of interests FITHEEREY HERTRSE
BEEHE 513 ERME RzBRHEE BHREDL
Bai Zhisheng Beneficial owner Personal interest 2,300,000 0.18%
BEE EmEEA (BN £

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2008, none of the BrEXHEEEN RZEENFTF A=+ —

Directors or chief executive or their respective associates had

any interests or short positions in shares, underlying shares and

debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations

B HEEERR

?TEAU\,\IJUEZS Ak 3

ALTRARRSEAIEBER (E& R EHF LY
BEIRPIZEXVER) Bty - HRRRD REEES -

BEERRARTIREE S RS IEDIE 352167F
BBz EmsikR - sBREIZESTEIA
SRR R 2 SRR o

(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange

pursuant to the Model Code.

—“ Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERER AT
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EXEEREE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2008, the interests or short positions of the
following persons or corporations, other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERR

RIBZENF+-A=+—8  UATALTIEE (L
XHAREZARREERREGTRABRIMNRALR
Ay KRR E AR B RN AR RIRIBE H L
BI&HIFE B EFEZ ERM 2 EEIOARWT

Approximate
Number of shares/ percentage of

underlying shares held shares in issue

Name of Shareholders Capacity RS, HERITRAG
REREH 3 HEROHE BHOBED
(Note 1)
(B&E)
Tsinlien (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 570,039,143 (L) 53.40%
=R (FIFE2) REHEEER
Merrill Lynch & Co. Inc. Interest of controlled corporation 128,260,014 (L) 12.02%

REfhEEER
Notes:
1. “L"denotes a long position in shares.

2. As at 31st December 2008, Tianjin Investment Holdings Limited (“Tianjin
Investment”) and Tsinlien Venture Capital Company Limited (“Tsinlien
Venture”), both being wholly-owned subsidiaries of Tsinlien, held 568,017,143
shares and 2,022,000 shares respectively. By virtue of the SFO, Tsinlien is taken

to have interest in the shares held by Tianjin Investment and Tsinlien Venture.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2008, the Company
had not been notified by any persons or corporations, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered
into or existed during the year.

GEE
1L RRRRA R A -

2. RZZZNF+ZA=+—8 REREIERAR AR
(TRERE ) RRBAIZIREBR AT (DERBENR ) (W
ERREM2EMBAR) D RIFE 568017143 K&
2,022,000 & AR 17 - RIRE F R EE KRG - =BAR AR
RERE KRB BRI 2RI A o

BEXHEEN  R-FT\F+-A=+—H &
AR R NEEAEMALLEE (RATES
HB/ETHA BRI RAAFRG AR A
BEERADFAREES RE OIS 36 HEES
BRMZESIAR -

EEBEESH

FAXER] L RIFEY RAEEE IR FEATD
ERATMERBRITHAL
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five
largest customers were less than 30% of the Group's sales.

The percentage of the Group's purchases for the year attributable to the

Group's major suppliers are as follows:

- the largest supplier 42%
— the five largest suppliers in aggregation 63%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company's share

capital) had an interest in the major suppliers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31st December 2008, the Group has entered into
the following connected transaction in the ordinary and usual course of

the Group’s business:

(i) Capital injection in Tianjin Tian Fa Heavy Electric
Equipment Manufacturing Limited (“Tian Fa
Equipment”)

On 29th February 2008, Tianjin Tai Kang Industrial Co., Ltd. (‘Tai
Kang") (a 82.74% owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into
the Capital Injection Agreement (the “Capital Injection Agreement”)
with Tianjin Benefo Tejing Electric Co,, Ltd. ("Benefo”) pursuant to
which each of Tai Kang and Benefo, agreed that the registered
capital of Tian Fa Equipment be increased from RMB180,598,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$196,302,000) to RMB635,248,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$690,487,000) by injection of the
followings:

(1) Tai Kang would pay the consideration of RMB154,650,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$168,098,000) in cash; and

(2) Benefo would pay the consideration of RMB300,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$326,087,000) which would be
raised by way of a private placement of its A shares.

TREFREER

FR - AEBRATPHR ZBHEEBERNANEEH
ERE.2 30% °

FAAKREIEHERZREROEASERER L
AL

— A ER 429%
—RAAHEEAET 63%

- HBR AR (B E B AT EE AR
BB 5% bA L% ) R A ik 3 B AR R A £ ]
s -

BEXS

REBZE-ZZNF+_A=+T—RIEFER  KEEH
RERER—REFBIEPCALATHERS

(i) RETABRERKERBREARLA
([R#RE] 2FE

RZZEZENFZAZ+THIH RERREEER
AR FER]) (R RBHA 82.74% 2 B A 7)) £
REBNEBERBROHBERAR(BFNERDR]
SR EHE(TEERE]D Bt TERBFE
REBEEB NI EEFANBREREZZME
N AREE 180,598,000 7T (FHE R 49 196,302,000 75
T0)IEE ARME 635,248,000 7T (FHEHA £ 690,487,000
BT

() FEHZAFRESNREARE 154,650,000 7T (#8
FEH4)168,098,000787T) ¢+ M

Q) BMERGZAREARE 3000000007T (8
£ #)326,087,0007870) © ZREHEBILA
FREHEARSESE -

== TR
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION (Cont’'d)

(i) Capital injection in Tianjin Tian Fa Heavy Electric
Equipment Manufacturing Limited (“Tian Fa
Equipment”) (Cont’d)

As at the date of entering into of the Capital Injection Agreement,
Tianjin Machinery & Electric Industry Holding Group Limited
("Machinery & Electric Group”) (currently known as “Tianjin BENEFO
Machinery & Electric Holding Group Ltd.") held 17.26% interest in
Tai Kang. Therefore, Machinery & Electric Group was a connected
person of the Company. As Benefo was an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of Machinery & Electric Group, Benefo was also a

connected person of the Company.

After completion of the transaction, Tai Kang and Benefo would
be interested in approximately 34% and 66% of the equity interest
in Tian Fa Equipment respectively. The transaction is yet to be
completed pending fulfillment of a condition in respect of the
completion of the private placement(s) of A shares in Benefo by
Benefo contemplated under the Capital Injection Agreement and
the successful raising of the requisite amount of funds for the Capital
Injection contemplated under the Capital Injection Agreement by
Benefo.

Details of the transaction were disclosed in the announcement
dated 29th February 2008 and the circular dated 20th March 2008 of
the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERED INTO BY TPD

TPD has entered into a number of connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions with certain associates of Tianjin Port
Group during the year ended 31st December 2008. The Stock Exchange
has exercised its discretion under Rule 14A.06 of the Listing Rules to

deem Tianjin Port Group and its associates as a connected person of the
Company and TPD.

FEXZ (&)

(i) RETARBERKERBEREBRAT
(TX#=mE] 2ixE (])

REINIEEWEF B REMBETEIERE
ERR([HEE®]) RBA [ XEEFKELR
EEBRABNHERRZ17.26% 5 - B - #
BEEAARBIZEEALT - HREFNERHK
BEEECMEIEZENERG  BAERTAR
NRZBEEANT -

MR HTKIE  FEERBMNERKD B ERRE
A 34% F2 66% AR AR o IR B iR AR FERK -
DFFER — IR - AR BRTKRBIEE %
THAETHENERMALREBNERAR » ARk
BHNERKNEEREEENAFETIIES
BZ&EER -

BRMBERZZHE  SRARABEHAE-FT
NEFZAZTNBZRAER-ZEENF=A_+
BZEEA

REBBRRI VU CHERZ RIFE
BEXS

RBE-_ZZENF+_A=+—HILFE  RELH
REBXZERBZETHEALITIZHBERS
RFFERER S o BRMETE LMARRE 14A.06 5
HWEIEHE - EXREEBNEBBALTRARRRIL
REBERZAENL -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERED INTO BY TPD (Cont’d)

A. Connected Transactions

Details of the connected transactions for the year ended 31st
December 2008 are as follows:

(i) Acquisition of 40% equity interest in Tianjin Port Alliance
International Container Terminal Co., Ltd. (“Alliance”)

On 26th July 2007, TPD and Tianjin Port Group entered into an
equity interest transfer agreement, pursuant to which TPD has
conditionally agreed to acquire 40% equity interest in Alliance
from Tianjin Port Group at a consideration of RMB524,343,480
(equivalent to approximately HK$570,186,000). The transaction
was completed in January 2008.

Details of the above connected transaction were disclosed in
the joint announcement of the Company and TPD dated 26th
July 2007, the circular of the Company dated 16th August 2007
and the Annual Report of the Company for the year ended 31st
December 2007.

(i) Acquisition of 33% equity interest in Tianjin Port Labour Services
Company Limited (“Tianjin Port Labour”)

On 18th December 2007, Tianjin Harbour Second Stevedoring
Co., Ltd. ("Second Company”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of TPD, entered into an equity interest transfer
agreement with Tianjin Port Labour Exchange Service Centre,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tianjin Port Group, pursuant to
which Second Company agreed to acquire 33% equity interest
in Tianjin Port Labour at a cash consideration of RMB1,260,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,425,000). The transaction was
completed in March 2008.

Details of the above connected transaction were disclosed in
the joint announcement of the Company and TPD dated 18th
December 2007 and the Annual Report of the Company for the
year ended 31st December 2007.

A.

= )H
i i

il
ﬂ

R M ZBEXR S RIGE

Xt e

EERE
X 5

(&)
HEXS
ECETE N \F+_A=+-—HIFEBERS
ZEBWT
() WFERE BT BB E 2R 5 A A R 2 7] ([

(ii)

BAETRR |) 40% fig1E

RZZELFLAZ+RA - REBBEREKX
EBRER I IREEE RS - Bt REER
B 51 R B R R 7S 5 B Uk i Bk BR BB 40%
RAE - RIE A ARYE 524,343480 7 (FEER 4L
570,186,000 7T) « IBR HER_E ;)\¢
— A% o

ERBER B - MOAATET AR
BEMA-TTLELA-tARMBAL
HARFEAR-ZEELFE AT NAHE
HEAARRE-TELET A= +— A
4 -

WIERX E e BL BB REF LG ([ K Ew EE
/) 33% R 1E

RZZTEF+ZA+NB - REBFEBR
BRAR([ZARD (REBRENEES2E
MEAR) BXEBOBTIRREH O (K
EEEENZEMB ARG RIEEER
FOBRW —ARRABERE  MAEBOR

TR mBRIEHOREE L ERER B L1 33% MK
% BeREAARE,2600007T (FHERL
1425000 7C) « WHEXSGER-_ZTZN\F=
B5ERk °

LAEERHOFE - MRARFERZEH
EESPR-ZETLF+-A+/\EHNBEAE
RARRHE-_ZZLF+-A=+—HBNF
) o
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERED INTO BY TPD (Cont’d)

A. Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

(iii) Connected transactions with Tianjin Port Haifeng Bonded
Logistics Co., Ltd. (“HaiFeng”)

On 16th July 2008, HaiFeng, a jointly controlled entity of TPD

which is deemed to be a subsidiary of TPD under the Listing

Rules by the Stock Exchange, entered into the following

agreements:

@)

Project Consulting Agreement

HaiFeng entered into the Project Consulting Agreement
with Tianjin Port Engineering Supervisory & Consultant
Co, Ltd, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tianjin Port Group,
relating to the consulting service of the logistics warehouse
construction project situated in Tianjin Dongjiang Bonded
Port Area for a cash consideration of RMB2,200,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,503,000).

Project Management Agreement

HaiFeng entered into the Project Management Agreement
with Tianjin Port Construction Company (“Tianjin Port
Construction”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tianjin Port
Group, relating to the project management service, which
mainly includes project coordination, progress monitoring
and completion verification services, provided by Tianjin
Port Construction in relation to the logistics warehouse
construction project situated in Tianjin Dongjiang Bonded
Port Area for a cash consideration of approximately
RMBS5,117,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,822,000).

N
24

RERBI M ZBAERSZ RFE
BR 5 (&)

A BEXRS (&)
(i) BEXEEGLRFE Y HERAE]([FE)) 26
#LE
R-IBTZ NFELA+H BE(REZEEE
L EIEHIERS - B ATIRIE TR B EAS
BREBERHOMBAR)) RIS Nl

) BRIEZAEEAR

HERXRATREREANBRAR (K
EREENTENB AR AT ERTRE
ZREEAR  ARBERUNKERE
REARNYTERERIREHEIER
RIRRTS - e EARM 22000007 (B
##472,503,000787L) °

ZEKEaR

BEERFBEERAR([RBEER])

(RREEEENZ2ENBRAR) IR
KEAR  ABRBRREZBERMLNK

ERBRASRNMTEASESIRIEH
ZEERERG  XZREIRGH  EE
ERNERBIRRE  BeEREHARE
5,117,000 7T (FB S 49 5,822,000 87T ) °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERED INTO BY TPD (Cont’d)

A. Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

(iii) Connected transactions with Tianjin Port Haifeng Bonded
Logistics Co., Ltd. (“HaiFeng”) (Cont'd)

(c) Low Voltage Electricity System Purchase Agreement

HaiFeng entered into the Low Voltage Electricity System
Purchase Agreement with Tianjin Port Communication
Project Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tianjin
Port Group, relating to the purchase, material supply,
installation and testing of low voltage electricity system
in relation to the logistics warehouse construction project
situated in Tianjin Dongjiang Bonded Port Area for a cash
consideration of approximately RMB2,998,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3,411,000).

(d) Electricity Distribution System Purchase Agreement

HaiFeng entered into the Electricity Distribution System
Purchase Agreement with Tianjin Port Electricity Project Co.,
Ltd. ("Tianjin Port Electricity”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Tianjin Port Group, relating to the supply of electricity
distribution system and the respective installation and
testing services by Tianjin Port Electricity for a cash
consideration of approximately RMB16,016,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$18,221,000).

Details of the above connected transactions were disclosed in
the joint announcement of the Company and TPD dated 16th
July 2008.

B. Continuing Connected Transactions

The Board has approved and the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company have reviewed and confirmed that
the continuing connected transactions set out below have been
entered into:

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
ii. onnormal commercial terms; and
iii. in accordance with the relevant written agreements governing

them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests

of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

REBRRI U CHAER S RIFE
BERXS ()

)22
=

A. BEXRZ (&)

(i) BAFEALREYRBERA A AE]) 2R
ERX5 (E)

) BERGKEER

REIRIREBEIREARAR(RE
BEENEENB AR5 ERAK
AR - RAABRNRRERBRTE
EHYRERRRIIEZHERGIRMEF
B MRMEE R E AR - BeRE
#I AR ¥ 2,998,000 7T (ABEHAKY 3,411,000
T e

(d) HEEERGHREAR

EEIEEEENTRREGRAR (X2
BEEN]) (REAEENZEWBE QA
FIVHEERGRESR  RAEHEARX
EBEENRHERERARABELER
AR - R RELHARK16,0160007T
(AR #718,221,000787T) °

B LM 52 HEN AL AR TR
REBAZZEZENFELATAANBEAENRN
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B. HEBERS
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND XREBREIIICZHEEXZRIGE
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS RIEX S (48)
ENTERED INTO BY TPD (Cont'd)

B. Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd) B. HEBERS (&)

In accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board BIE EMRAIE 1403815 EFSREARRREZEE
engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain factual Bt A T ArB 2 BB B E Aot Ae®
finding procedures on the continuing connected transactions ([BESHMAE]) B 2 FEAER| 4400 5% &
set out below on a sample basis in accordance with Hong Kong IRTS [ ER T HERF 2L | ZHBAE
Standard on Related Services 4400 "Engagements to Perform B BITETEEACRER ZEAICRESES
Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding Financial Information” M EZREFRLE TEKEZ ENEREEE
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants FAELER -

("HKICPA"). The auditor has reported their factual findings for the
selected samples based on the agreed procedures to the Board.

The auditor of the Company confirmed to the Board in writing in AKARZEMER THNEEZE-_ZZNE+ A
respect of the continuing connected transactions set out below for E‘f—— H Ltifth*ﬁ']?-iréﬁfﬁf_x% MEEFGEME
the year ended 31st December 2008: R RERHERE

have been approved by the Board of the Company; . CEARAEZEFSIE
ii. have been entered into in accordance with the relevant i. TRBMEZERSNB@HERIL R

agreement governing the transactions; and

iii. have not exceeded the relevant caps. i. WHEBBAEBRLR -
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERED INTO BY TPD (Cont’d)

B. Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

Details of the continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31st December 2008 are as follows:

(i) Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

REBRRI U CHAER S RIFE
BEXS (&)

B. BHEBEXS (&)

i

FRARE_ZEEN\FT_A=+—HBIEFEZHF
BREZSFBNT

() FHARIFEFERS

Water Supply Services

Date of agreement:

heE H AR -

Parties:

RIA977

Term:

BRI -

Transactions involved:

B

Annual cap for the year ended
31st December 2008:
HE_ZZN\E+_A

=+ —RULEFENFELR

Actual amount for the year ended
31st December 2008:

HE-ZZ)N\F+=A

ST HALEFENERDSHE

—a Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERER AT

1. HKER

12th April 2007 (“Water Services Framework Agreement”)
“ETHFMA+ A (KBERGZE]D)

() TPD;

(i) Tianjin Port Facilities Management Company (formerly known as Tianjin
Port Construction and Engineering Company) (“Tianjin Port Facilities”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tianjin Port Group

() REBERE

(i REBREEERB AR (FERREEREIREAR) ([ RF
Wl)  REEEENZEMBE AR

12th April 2007 to 31st December 2009 (extension on similar terms subject to
mutual agreements)
“ETHFMA+—RAE-ZE
PUEFIER)

NEFETZA=+—HB (EHREBHTIZEA

Provision of water supply services by Tianjin Port Facilities to TPD and its

subsidiaries (“TPD Group”)
KEBRIEAFEZBERELREMNB AR ([ REBRRER | IREHKRY

RMB?7,860,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$8,831,000)

AR 7,860,000 7T (AEEFA4Y8,831,00087T)

RMB4,786,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,377,000)
AR ¥ 4,786,000 7T (FHZE XY 5,377,000 7 7T)




Report of the Directors

EEEHES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERED INTO BY TPD (Cont’d)

B. Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)
(i) Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

2. Communication Services

REBBRRI VU CHERZ RIFE
FEXS (&)

B. HEMERS (&)

() FHHARIFEBELS ()

Date of agreement:

e A H -

Parties:

RIA977

Term:

BRI -

Transactions involved:

FRRS

Annual cap for the year ended
31st December 2008:
HE-ZTEN\F+=A

=t —RALEFENFELR

Actual amount for the year ended
31st December 2008:
HE_ZZN\E+_HA

=t HLEFENERSE

N

rﬁi
fill3
=)

R

12th April 2007 (“Communications Services Framework Agreement”)

—EEFNAT R (BERBERRE]D

(i) TPD;

(i) Tianjin Communications Navigation Company (“Tianjin Communications”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tianjin Port Group

() REBBER

(iy REEBHREMAR (RBEBA])  REBEENZENBE QR

12th April 2007 to 31st December 2009 (extension on similar terms subject to
mutual agreements)
TEZLFMAT CRECTTAF T A=+ R (KR BRI RER
PUEFRIER)

Provision of various communications services by Tianjin Communications to
TPD Group
REBBEAARZEEREERIESBBERS

RMB2,390,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,685,000)
AR 2,390,000 7T (#H5 247 2,685,000 B 7T)

RMB998,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,121,000)
AR5 998,000 7T (FHFEFA) 1,121,000 87T )
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERED INTO BY TPD (Cont’d)

B. Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)
(i) Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

3.

Electricity Supply Services

Date of agreement:

[SE SR

Parties:

HESRE

Term:

B

Transactions involved:

FRR5

Annual cap for the year ended
31st December 2008:
HE_ZZN\E+_A

=+ —RULEFENFELR

Actual amount for the year ended
31st December 2008:
BE-TEN\F+-A

=T HALEFENERSHE

—“ Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERER AT

i&%%@?ﬁZ@Eﬁ%&%ﬁ
BERXS (&)

B. HERMERS (&)

() FBEIEAESS (E)

3.

e

HEIRTS

12th April 2007 (“Electricity Services Framework Agreement”)
“ETHFMA+ZH ([HERBIER D)

(i) TPD;

(i) Tianjin Port Electricity Company Limited (formerly known as Tianjin Port
Electricity Company) (‘Tianjin Port Electricity”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Tianjin Port Group

() REBERE

(i REBBNAERARGIBREEENRA(REFEESN]) - XEE
SEOHZEHBAR

12th April 2007 to 31st December 2009 (extension on similar terms subject to
mutual agreements)
—EEHFNA+AE_ETNF T A=+ —H (EHEEHHEIRE
PHERFER )

Provision of electricity supply services by Tianjin Port Electricity to TPD Group

REBENARZEEREBRHHERS

RMB46,100,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$51,798,000)
A 46,100,000 7T (FEEF 49 51,798,000 7T )

RMB34,734,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$39,027,000)
AR ¥ 34,734,000 7T (FRZ 4 39,027,000 8 7T )
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERED INTO BY TPD (Cont’d)

B. Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)
(i) Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

4.

EDI Services

Date of agreement:

[SE SR

Parties:

RIA977

Term:

BRI -

Transactions involved:

FRRS

Annual cap for the year ended
31st December 2008:

HE-ZZ)\F+=A

=t+—HIEFENFELR :

Actual amount for the year ended
31st December 2008:
HE_ZTN\F+_H

=T —RALEFENERESRE

REBBRRI VU CHERZ RIFE
FEXS (&)

B. HEBERS (&)
() R FRIFEHELSS ()
4. EDI RS

12th April 2007 (“EDI Services Framework Agreement”)
“ZTHFMA+ A ([0 RBER D)

() TPD;

(i) Tianjin Port Information Centre (‘Tianjin Port Information”), a department
under Tianjin Port Group

() REBER:

(i REBERHOL(REBBER]D  REBEEHH —(EALFT

12th April 2007 to 31st December 2009 (extension on similar terms subject to
mutual agreements)

TEZLFMAT CRECTTAF T A=+ R (KR BEARER
PUEFRIER)

Provision of services relating to electronic data information, software utility,
computer maintenance and repair, electronic transmission and similar services
by Tianjin Port Information to TPD Group
BAEBEEMREBEREERHEBEFHEES M IA &
FERE R AREIE - BFEX SRR

RMB3,200,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,596,000)
AR ¥ 3,200,000 7T (FHE 47 3,596,000 7T )

RMB1,835,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$2,062,000)
AERH5 1,835,000 7T (AHS F249 2,062,000 8 7T)
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EEEHES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERED INTO BY TPD (Cont’d)

B. Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

(i) Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

5. Container Reconfiguration Storage Services

KB RT T 2 BER 5 RISE
BRERXS ()

}‘%nﬁgaﬁgé% (IIE)

() FERRIFEFERS ()

5. SEMERMHTRE

Date of agreement:

Ak

Parties:

ISR

Term:

B

Transactions involved:

BRES

Annual cap for the year ended
31st December 2008:
HE_ZZN\E+_A

=t+—HILEFENFELR

Actual amount for the year ended
31st December 2008:
HE-TZT)N\F+=A

=+ —RALEFENERESRE

—n Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REERER AT

12th April 2007 (“Container Reconfiguration Storage Services Framework

Agreement”)

“ETRFNA+ A ((REEERRFERDE D)

(i) TPD;

(i) Tianjin Port Container Freight Company Limited, a 90.54% owned
subsidiary of Tianjin Port Group as at the date of the agreement;

(i) Tianjin Port Limited Storage and Transportation Branch Company, a
subsidiary of Tianjin Port Group;

(iv) Huahan (Tianjin) Container Company Limited, an associate of Tianjin Port
Group

((ii), (iii) and (iv), together the “Service Companies”)

() REBER:
REBEEMEE
NG

(i) REBRNERAABES AR REEREHNMBELRA

(v) 5 (R2)EMARAR  RBEEEENBZ QR

(i) ~ (i) Bz (v) FeR8 2% [ AR A A1)

R A AR EEEIES 90.54% s 2 I8

12th April 2007 to 31st December 2009 (extension on similar terms subject to
mutual agreements)
“ZETHFMA+_RE-ZE
PUERER)

NE+ A=+ B (EHEWEA LA

Provision of stacking yards and warehouses located at Tianjin Port Area for
temporary storage of containers by the Services Companies to TPD Group
RIS A RIMR BB BEREERMUN KBNS REE - NAIERRR
FEEMEZA

RMB30,060,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$33,775,000)
AR ¥ 30,060,000 7T (FRZ H4Y 33,775,000 8 7T)

RMB6,170,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$6,932,000)
AR ¥ 6,170,000 7T (FBZ 7 476,932,0007 7T)




Report of the Directors

EEEHES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND XREBREIIICHERZREE
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS RAEZX S (48)

ENTERED INTO BY TPD (Cont’d)

B. Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd) B. HEBRERS (&)
(ii) Revised/New Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions RV I S = )
1. Labour Services 1. BRI
(@) Labour for bulk cargo handling business ) BB VIR EBR LTS

Date of agreement:

e A AR

Parties:

FIA977

Term:

B

Transactions involved:

HRR 5

Annual cap for the year ended
31st December 2008:

BE-TE/\F+-A
=+—RIEFENFE LR

Actual amount for the year ended
31st December 2008:
BE_TZN\F+-A
=t RALEFENERESRE

12th March 2008 (“New Labour Services Framework Agreement”)

“ZRENF=A+-A(HBBERGHE D

(i) TPD;
(i) Tianjin Port Labour, a 33% owned associate of Tianjin Port Group as at the
date of agreement
(i) REBER
RERBBH  NHZERPRREBEEER 3% EANHE QA

12th March 2008 to 31st December 2010 (extension on similar terms subject to
mutual agreements)

—EENFATZHEZ-ZFT_A=+—H (EHEEHEFIRE
LUEFRIER)

Provision of labour of various positions to perform various services by Tianjin
Port Labour to TPD Group
KRS BIEARZE TR S E RS BG5S 75 AR H S B RTS

RMB67,430,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$75,764,000)
AR ¥ 67,430,000 7T (FRZH4Y 75,764,000 78 7T )

RMB18,525,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$20,815,000)
AR 18,525,000 7T (AR5 7047 20,815,000 87T )

The New Labour Services Framework Agreement BHA—ZTZLFNAT-_HNEK
superseded the labour services framework agreement HE 2R 17 7% (ﬁ)& HBE—_ZTTLFMA
of 12th April 2007 for the term commencing from 12th TZHREZZEZNFEFT_A=1—
April 2007 and ending on 31st December 2009. B 1E) BB BER B ERA -
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERED INTO BY TPD (Cont’d)

REBRRIT U CHAER S RIFE
FEXS (&)

B. Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont'd) B. FEBRERS (&)

(i) 15T FETHIHEARIFEFELS (F)

(i) Revised/New Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(Cont'd)

1. Labour Services (Cont'd) 1. BIERE(8)
(b) EREEYERIEESNLH

(b) Labour for container cargo handling business

Date of agreement: 12th March 2008 (“Shenggang Labour Services Framework Agreement”)

IEA=EE “EENFZA+ R ([RESBHIER D)
Parties: (i) TPD;
HESVE (i Tianjin ShengGang Container Technology Development & Services Co., Ltd.

("Tianjin Shenggang Container”), a 33% owned associate of Tianjin Port
Group as at the date of agreement

() REBERE:

(i) RBEBEEMIMAERBERAR(RRBBEEM])  RiE
HEAREBEEIER 33% RN SR A

Term: 12th March 2008 to 31st December 2010 (extension on similar terms subject to
AR mutual agreements)
CERENFZRA+ZREE-ZF T A=+ —H (EHEEHHEIRE
PUEFRIER)

Transactions involved: Provision of labour of various positions to perform various services by Tianjin

B

Annual cap for the year ended
31st December 2008:
HE_ZZN\E+_A

=T -HIEFENFE LR

Actual amount for the year ended
31st December 2008:

HE-ZZ)N\F+=A

=T HALEFENERSHE

—n Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REERER AT

Shenggang Container to TPD Group

RERRBEEMARNBERREBIRUSBANSHE N RESERS

RMB31,370,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$35,247,000)
AR 31,370,000 7T (FHE R4 35,247,000 8 7T)

RMB24,311,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$27,316,000)
AR 24,311,000 7T (FRZFHAY) 27,316,000 8 7T)




Report of the Directors

EEEHES

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ENTERED INTO BY TPD (Cont’d)

B. Continuing Connected Transactions (Cont’d)

(ii) Revised/New Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(Cont'd)

2. Integrated Services

On 4th December 2008, TPD and Tianjin Port Daily
Life Services Company Limited (“Tianjin Port Daily Life
Services”), a subsidiary of Tianjin Port Group, entered into
an integrated services framework agreement in relation
to the provision of integrated services include sanitary,
catering, warehouse building management and general
maintenance services by Tianjin Port Daily Life Services
and its subsidiaries to TPD Group for a term commencing
from 1st January 2009 to 31st December 2011, further
details of which are set out in the joint announcement of
the Company and TPD dated 4th December 2008 and the
circular of the Company dated 23rd December 2008.

C. Exempt Continuing Connected Transaction

During the year ended 31st December 2008, TPD Group had
entered into the following continuing connected transaction which
is exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules, the
disclosure of which is on a voluntary basis in order to enhance the
transparency of TPD Group's transactions with Tianjin Port Group:

Fee Collection Services

On 8th May 2006, each of Tianjin Port Container Terminal Co.,
Limited (“TCT") and Second Company entered into an agreement
with Tianjin Port Group for a term from 8th May 2006 to 31st
December 2008, pursuant to which TCT and Second Company
agreed to collect various fees, including but not limited to port
construction fees and port management fees, from their customers
and forward the fees to Tianjin Port Group. No service fee will be
paid by Tianjin Port Group to TCT and Second Company. For the
year ended 31st December 2008, the fee collected on behalf of
Tianjin Port Group amounted to RMB242,762,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$272,766,000).

REBRRI U CHER S RIFE
FEXS (&)

. BEBREXS (&)

(i) 15T FETHIHEARIFEEELS (F)

2. IRAERS

RZZEZNF+AOR - REBERHE

REBLERBER QR ([ REZELEER
B (RREEENHBAR)FILEE
IRISIER % - AR ERARZELEER
BREMBAR AR ZERREB RN
BRY% - BEBR B REYMEER

—REBERT ARHAB_FTTIEF
—A—BEE-_T——F+t-_A=1—H
1 ARAFABERARREXZBERA
PR-ZZNFT_AHBENBERER
ARRBRNA-—ZEENFT A -+=H
HOIBEN A o

C. REFEBERS

HE_ZZN\F+A=+—BILFE XEH
BREBCDAVATHERER S  RX5EH
RETRUBHBRER DM IBILIRRAERR
EoMRZHREBARME  BNARREARE
BERREEEXZTEEREIFNERE

R EFEIR

—ZETAFRANB REBERBEEAR
E(F%%%Eﬁﬁn& AR RIEXESE
BT —DHE FHHE-STAFRANAR
ETTN\F+ZA=+—HI ' Bt KXEE
ERERZATIAEMNEPRKSEER(2F
ERENEOZREENEEE)  THBRER
KEBEE - REBEEBERREEEEMER
ZRRENEAREE - BE_TENF+ZA
=ST—HIEFE  RRAEBEERUWRNERAA
ER#5 242,762,000 7T (1HF R4 272,766,000 8 TT)

i
N
E5]
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE OF
THE LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry with the Directors, all the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code throughout the year 2008.

The Company has also established written guidelines regarding
securities transaction on no less exacting terms of the Model Code for
senior management and specific individual who may have access to
price sensitive information in relation to the securities of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions except for code
provision A.2.1 as set out in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Please refer to the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 31 to 41 for details.

Details of the audit committee and remuneration committee are set out

in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

An audit committee currently comprising three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Kwong Che Keung, Gordon, Mr. Lau Wai
Kit and Dr. Cheng Hon Kwan, was established in 1998.

By reference to “A Guide for The Formation of An Audit Committee”
published by the HKICPA, written terms of reference which describe the
authority and duties of the audit committee were prepared and adopted

by the Board of the Company.

The annual results have been reviewed by the audit committee of the
Company.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Details of significant events which have been taken place subsequent to

the balance sheet date are set out in note 40 to the financial statements.

B LR A ZRETR

ARTRRA T LIRAKIS AT ABETA -
MEEELAREWE  PREFRRREN-FE
NF2FIRETEETARRINAARE -

ARBTERSRERAB LA LXK EEREARRE
HZBEFREM ZBEEIAL  BRTIRRRRE
SR EERRELABESXH 2 EmES|

RER  ARBIE BT EMRBIMEE+rE bt EE
JABIRSFRIZ PRI » MESTRIHESTE A2 1 IRBRID ©
HIEBEL2EENEEN B2 EEATRE -

BEREES
ARABR—AANFRTBREES - BB

BUIFRTEERERELE  FERTERTENE
TRTARX

ARR2EEZE2RBBETMIGRM 2 [MEKE
mEBeZiES] ST REAERZRE e 2 EER
fEE - FIRERZBENEINEML -

ARBZECERBGCENLFEE -

REERRETZEREIE - FHERR U BERKME




Report of the Directors

EEEHES

PUBLIC FLOAT

From information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company'’s total issued
share capital was held by the public at all times during the year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers

who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board

Yu Rumin

Acting Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd April 2009

NRERE

WARAMBARERRBESHAM  REEHARE
R - RRFEARR2HEBEITRAZEL25% °

B M A% BUED

A BRI LABRLBAEGHMEBRAER %
REEMER SR - YRR EIET
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g
2

1]
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B 2 EENHRE

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

BORKEEMERA

To the shareholders of Tianjin Development Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tianjin
Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 74 to
167, which comprise the balance sheets of the Group and the Company
as at 31st December 2008, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated cash flow statement and the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the Group for the year then ended, and a summary

of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince's Building
Central, Hong Kong

BREBRRERERATDRR
(REBEMAZHBRAF])

AZEREN (AT R M) EFRIENF 742167 8H
REFREBRBERDR(TERA ) WG B®RE
A MBREAEER - EZN\F+T _A=1+—08
mAEMRREEREREHEZR LFEMNFABR
® HARTRERNGAEREHR  URETEE
SR E S ELAD P AR

EERMBRBRRARENTE

BERREZARARBEESFMASHRMNTEY
BRELEYNREB( RGN EEM AT
BREFREMBERE - EETBRRER - Bl hf#
BREN B E QT 51 B R R AE B ) A AR
B AEE SR N F A R A SR M S B E
REFRRERL  EENMEREENSITEBR  RIEER
TMELAEM GRS

BB ELE

BANBEERBRERMANEXHZSEEMBERKRIE
HER - WRREECRREDDF 141 (RIEREEK
R - RN RERIEEME B - RIS
AHENATAERMEMALTE ERARERESE -




Independent Auditor’s Report

B 2 RENHRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Cont’d)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31st December 2008 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23rd April 2009

BRBENEE (&)

BAIEREEE SRS RMOBEE LR ETT
Bz o EURERERHEFIETERRE LRI LM
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Consolidated Income Statement
mEEAaR

For the year ended 31st December 2008

HE-ZT/\GF+-_A=1+—HLFE

Restated
K&y
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FERT FATT
Continuing operations: FREEEET -
Revenue WA 5 3,787,423 3,268,013
Cost of sales SHER A (2,946,266) (2,356,775)
Gross profit EF 841,157 911,238
Other income H U A 6 101,286 77,574
Other gains, net Hi W asF 58 7 172,485 117,183
Excess of fair value of net assets acquired BANBARREEENAAR
over the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries BEBLWERANZEE 1(0),(i1) 203,103 -
Impairment loss on leasehold land HE T HREEE 18 (150,000) -
Gain on toll roads restructuring SAWE BRI 1(iv) - 165,913
General and administrative expenses — MM ATE S (654,787) (496,128)
Other operating expenses Hb @ (64,669) (47,756)
Operating profit £ | 8 448,575 728,024
Finance costs W5 & A 10 (65,661) (101,130)
Share of profits/(losses) of FEMEE T /(E518)
Associates i /NG 21 253,146 220,651
Jointly controlled entities HEEH E S 22 (11,077) (9,831)
Profit before tax T Al A 624,983 837,714
Tax expense FRIEST 11 (72,955) (62,569)
Profit for the year from continuing operations BHESIEER 2 FERH 552,028 775,145
Discontinued operation: AU EEETS
Profit for the year from discontinued operation R \LEBEE 2 FERA 15 48,574 52,094
Profit for the year FEH T 600,602 827,239
Attributable to: FEAER A -
Equity holders of the Company RATIEREZE A 505,861 690,301
Minority interests DERR R 94,741 136,938
600,602 827,239
HK cents HK cents
4l il
Earnings per share BFIREF 13
Basic R
From continuing operations SEEBER 43.75 6353
From discontinued operation R BB TS 3.97 3.89
47.72 6742
Diluted e
From continuing operations SEEBER 43.75 63.02
From discontinued operation R EIB TS 3.97 3.84
47.72 66.86
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAT
Dividends [iidst 14 96,072 115,701
The notes on pages 81 to 167 are an integral part of these financial 81 % 167 A2 M At EMHBIRKR 2 EKIH °
statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HeEERER

As at 31st December 2008
W=FFN\E+=A=+—A

Restated
<=l
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETAF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FERT FABTT
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BERE 16 3,390,071 2,650,817
Goodwill EES 17 510,847 510,847
Leasehold land and land use rights TAE L & T 18 1,420,412 797,549
Toll road operating right BB 19 - 1,815,640
Interest in associates N =lNETL 3y 21 1,590,350 1,377,480
Interest in jointly controlled entities RSB i s 22 1,475,520 764,181
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEEE 33 129,395 26,759
Available-for-sale financial assets AMEHENHKEE 23 128,453 107,117
8,645,048 8,050,390
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 24 10,337 7,098
Amounts due from associates L AUNETE O] 25 2,553 23325
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities JEUS L[R2 i B BE R 25 6,858 3,205
Amounts due from related companies FEURBRE D RIFIE 26 13,000 21,748
Amounts due from investee companies ST E A R)FIA 26 162,036 127,738
Trade receivables EURER 27 756,029 714,178
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HAtEUFE - e RIBAK 27 231,028 432,739
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAREEERERIIR
R TS E E 28 472,703 306417
Time deposits with maturity over three months = {8 A LA EZIHRR E BR ATk 29 952,815 580,341
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEZEEY 29 1,845,316 2,655,841
4,452,675 4,872,630
Assets held for sale HIEHEEE 15 2,376,166 -
6,828,841 4,872,630
Total assets BEE 15,473,889 12,923,020

F81 =167 A2 M RULEMBHREK 2 B -

The notes on pages 81 to 167 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HeEERRE

As at 31st December 2008
W=FFN\E+-A=+-A

Restated
<=
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FERT FATT
EQUITY R
Equity holders BREFEA
Share capital [ 30 106,747 103,562
Reserves — others et — Epth 31 9,116,065 8,062,702
Reserves — proposed final dividend BB —REARHRE 31 32,024 57,995
9,254,836 8,224,259
Minority interests DEBRRER 2,048,064 1,928,264
Total equity HRERS 11,302,900 10,152,523
LIABILITIES =0
Non-current liabilities E =i
Borrowings BE 32 2,557,349 1,245,580
Deferred tax liabilities BRI HEE 33 90,769 57,664
2,648,118 1,303,244
Current liabilities wEEE
Trade payables ERER 34 198,168 186,592
Other payables and accruals Hip e F0E M ERE R 837,317 798,829
Amounts due to related companies [ B A RIFRIE 26 218,329 141,852
Amounts due to a minority shareholder FERT DB R TR 26 1,079 16,894
Amounts due to ultimate holding company JE S S A=Y A R)FRIA 25 15,051 =
Borrowings BE 32 33,389 223,836
Current tax liabilities BEARiIE & & 67,139 99,250
1,370,472 1,467,253
Liabilities directly associated with HSEHEEERBNAR
assets classified as held for sale 15 152,399 -
1,522,871 1,467,253
Total liabilities HweE 4,170,989 2,770497
Total equity and liabilities HMERREE 15,473,889 12,923,020
Net current assets REBEEFHE 5,305,970 3,405,377
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBEE 13,951,018 11,455,767

Wu Xuemin RE2 R
Director 2%

The notes on pages 81 to 167 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Nie Jiansheng F{#E 4

Director 2%

F81 2 167 BRI EMEHREK < ERED




Balance Sheet

BEEREX

As at 31st December 2008
R-ZEAF+-A=+—H

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
s FET FABTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEN&E 16 2,899 3,733
Interest in subsidiaries R B A AR 20 8,864,379 7,517,322
Interest in an associate ¥ A /NGIL - 2 21 206,796 194,865
9,074,074 7,715,920
Current assets TRENEE
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments H e aE - iwe RIBENZK 27 7,002 26,929
Amount due from ultimate holding company FE UL SR AR AR A BRI FRIE 25 535 -
Time deposits with maturity over three months =@EAA LR ESRFR 29 28,798 14,002
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEEED 29 105,474 81,637
141,809 122,568
Total assets BMEE 9,215,883 7,838,488
EQUITY En
Equity holders REFE A
Share capital IeN 30 106,747 103,562
Reserves — others i - Hofth 31 7,391,900 6,669,871
Reserves — proposed final dividend e - RN 31 32,024 57,995
Total equity HRERS 7,530,671 6,831,428
LIABILITIES =Fid
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Borrowings s 32 1,417,099 855,580
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASTHT B A RIFIE 201,820 75,655
1,618,919 931,235
Current liabilities RENEE
Borrowings BE 32 33,389 58,389
Other payables and accruals E A RE R IERTE A 32,904 17,436
66,293 75,825
Total liabilities FES=N 1,685,212 1,007,060
Total equity and liabilities HEZXRARE 9,215,883 7,838,488
Net current assets REBEERE 75,516 46,743
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABERE 9,149,590 7,762,663
Wu Xuemin RER Nie Jiansheng &4
Director &% Director &%
The notes on pages 81 to 167 are an integral part of these financial E81 & 167 Az Mt Rut MK 2 ERED ©
statements.

Annual Report 2008 — & )\ FF R “_



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

z?_ P Ayl — |
wh 3 IE@)JILE%‘:Z
For the year ended 31st December 2008
HE-ZT/\GF+-_A=1+—HLFE

2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE FERT AT
Cash flows from operating activities REEBCEERE
Cash generated from operations REEBREAZRE 37(a) 520,118 350,814
Interest paid ERFE (64,492) (96,612)
PRC income tax paid B BIFTSH (98,389) (90,592)
Net cash from operating activities IRESEE TS IR & R RE 357,237 163,610
Cash flows from investing activities REZEKCHERE
Interest received 2UF B 64,589 53,352
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BAYE  BEMEE (258,979) (267,891)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - BEMEE
property, plant and equipment Fr{S 518 9,698 3,266
Proceeds from disposal of HE—IHIREME
an investment property Fr{S /IR - 407,216
Proceeds from disposal of associates o S BsE & A R PTS 5RIE - 1978
Proceeds from disposal of o HRE S E S
jointly controlled entities FTiSsA - 15213
Proceeds from disposal of HERHREENBEE
available-for-sale financial assets Fr{S 518 - 20,229
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BB A ] 37(b) (667,253) -
Acquisition of additional W EE— R B AR
interest in a subsidiary 2 FEIMER (88,512) =
Disposal of subsidiaries i E T A R 37(d) - 542
Toll roads restructuring SHNEER 37(d) - (13,526)
Investment in an associate EN—KEE N A (1,425) (890)
Investment in jointly controlled entities EN LRI HIE S (570,186) (704,467)
Increase in time deposits with N =1E A LA L ZE
maturity over three months HITE BRTE SR (351,586) (155,443)
Increase in available-for-sale financial assets A SRS EE (40,053) (345)
Decrease/(increase) in amounts A /(35 N) FEU
due from associates B A R FIR 21,844 (7,027)
Increase in amounts due from 8N FE L K R ) B R
jointly controlled entities FE (175,783) (3,093)
Increase in amounts due from NI E N A
investee companies A (26,239) (18,749)
Dividends received from associates (S AYNC] s 169,749 226,801
Net cash used in investing activities & BTN &R (1,914,136) (442,834)

The notes on pages 81 to 167 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

—“ Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERAR AT

F81 2 167 BRI EMEHREK < ERED




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

AN 3= B
FAERERER
For the year ended 31st December 2008

E=-FE/\E A=t ALEE

2008 2007

—EENF —ETLF

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

[z THET BT

Cash flows from financing activities RMETHIRERE

Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRITEE (121,273) (745,525)
Drawdown of bank borrowings RRABRITEER 1,375,880 829,501
Repayment of loans from a minority shareholder BE—UILEERER (173,998) (109,581)
Decrease in restricted cash PR FIRITAE R - 28,640
Dividends paid to equity holders BIREEREAZKE (123,827) (103,562)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders B DERR 2 IR B (71,034) (60,117)
Issue of new shares BITHTIR - 5,890
Contribution from minority shareholders VEREREEE - 912
Net cash from/(used in) financing activities MEEBG/ (TR R FHE 885,748 (153,842)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents Be MBS ERERD (671,151) (433,066)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FHzEeNELEEBY 2,655,841 2,850,740
Exchange gains b W iz 144,803 238,167
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZEASRESEEY 2,129,493 2,655,841
Continuing operations BB T 1,845,316 2,655,841
Discontinued operation IR IBERS 15 284,177 -
2,129,493 2,655,841

The notes on pages 81 to 167 are an integral part of these financial

statements.

F81 =167 A2 M RULEMBHREK 2 B -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
,pf\é*&émﬁ@%

For the year ended 31st December 2008
BE-ZZN\FT-A=+—HILFE

Equity holders
RESEA
Share Minority
capital Reserves  Sub-total interests Total

D8
VN e et RRMER ]
Note ~ HKS000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Mz  TEr TET  TAT  TET  TERL

At 1st January 2007 R-TZ+F—F—H 98244 6807645 6905889 2464540 9370429
Currency translation differences EmE T - 509,19 509,196 159,870 669,066
Profit for the year FERA - 690301 690301 136938 827,239
Total recognised income for the year FRER AL - 1199497 1199497 296808 1496305
Issue of new shares: BITHRG:

- Conversion of convertible bonds - BRI ES 3031 5128 209581 214,709 - 214,709

— Exercise of share options - 1T{b B IE 3031 190 5,700 5,890 = 5,890
Share based payments LA D BB 2 3R - 1836 1836 1,088 2924
Contribution from minority shareholders PERRLE - - - 912 912
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RKBLA 37(c) = = = (8340) (8340)
Toll roads restructuring BRWBER 37(d) - - - (766627)  (766627)
Dividends 45N - (103,562) (103,562) (60,117) (163,679)
At 31st December 2007 RZBE+F+-F=1—H 103,562 8,120,697 8,224,259 1,928,264 10,152,523
Currency translation differences BinE g - 448323 448323 117,731 566,054
Profit for the year FEER - 505861 505861 94741 600,602
Total recognised income for the year FERR WA 2L - 954,184 954,184 212,472 1,166,656
Issue of new shares upon acquisition of a subsidiary 4B —% KB A MR TN 3031 3,185 164346 167,531 - 167,531
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—XHBAR 37(b) - - - 82715 82715
Share based payments PARR D BERE 2 AR - 32,689 32,689 732 33,421
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary B —K HIBA 7l 2 SBIMERS - - - (105,085)  (105,085)
Dividends K& - (123,827) (123,827) (71,034) (194,861)
At31st December 2008 RZZBZN\F+=A=+—A 106,747 9,148,089 9,254,836 2,048,064 11,302,900
The notes on pages 81 to 167 are an integral part of these financial statements. E81 2167 B2 MR EIM B RE ZAKBD °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE SRR M EE

1.

General information

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) is principally engaged in the
provision of port services, supply of utilities and operation of

commercial properties.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. The address of its registered office is Suites 7-13, 36/F, China
Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the past two years, the major changes in the Group are as

follows:

i) On 4th January 2008, the Group completed the acquisition
of the entire issued share capital of Lethia Limited (“Lethia”)
at a consideration of USS$7.5 million. Lethia’s assets mainly
comprise 50% equity interest in Tianjin First Hotel Limited
(“First Hotel"), a sino-foreign equity joint venture company
holding a five-star hotel property situated in Tianjin managed
by Hyatt of China Limited.

On 4th March 2008, the Group completed the acquisition of
a further 25% equity interest in First Hotel through Lethia at a
consideration of RMB75.5 million.

Excess of fair value of net assets acquired over the cost of
acquisition of subsidiaries of approximately HK$3,316,000
arose as a result of the acquisition (Note 39())).

(i)  On 28th March 2008, the Group completed the acquisition
of the entire equity interest in, and all the shareholders’
loan advanced to, Tsinlien Realty Limited (“Realty”) at a cash
consideration of HK$560 million and an issue of 31,850,000
new shares of the Company. Excess of fair value of net
assets acquired over the cost of acquisition of approximately
HK$199,787,000 arose as a result of the acquisition (Note
39(ii)).

1. —RREHR

REERERERAR (AR REWBRF (5
5 [ARE ) TERERME O RS - REABRIE
RMRERREHE

AARB—EEESFEMA L2 ERAR - HiEiR
FERMNEBD T BT 168-20058 1= LIBE B A
E361E7-13F ©

ARREBER AT A ERAR (B ) HiRfE
ER

BEMF  AEEZTZEHNT ¢

() R=ZZTZENF—AMA + AEELA7,500000FTT
ZRETKBEEBFRFERR A ([FEE])
ZEHEBEITRA - FINFZEEEZRENR—
RPINEEEERRREE—REERAR([E
—8RUE 1) 2 50% MR AN #E s (RZ A RIFF B — PR R
PRI ARARTEZ AERERE) °

R-ZZN\F=ZANAE  AEBFEBFEFAA
R #75,500,00070 2 B TR IS 5 —BR & 2 BB SN
25% IR AR ©

BAKBARRFEENARBERLUEERA
R ZEBH 3,316,000 78 7T (P & 39()) °

(i) RZZZNF=A=F/\RB ' ~AEBEZKIWEE
BMEZEARAB(TEE]) 223 REREMRER
REF - REARSN(E 5600000008 7T R FHIT
31,850,00008 AN A AV FTAR (7 < FEARFEENR
A BB H BB AR H Z849199,787,0007%8 7T (Kt
5 39(0) ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE SRR M EE

1.

General information (Cont’d)

(iii)  Prior to the end of 2008, management had resolved to
dispose of the Group's 83.93% interest in Tianjin Jin Zheng
Transportation Development Co., Ltd. (“Jinzheng”) which is
the operator of the Eastern Outer Ring Road (‘EORR"). Actions
had been initiated to effect the disposal and the transaction
is expected to be completed in 2009. Accordingly, the assets
and liabilities related to Jinzheng have been presented as
held for sale as at 31st December 2008 (Note 15).

(iv)  On 27th July 2007, the Group entered into 5 sale and
purchase agreements which resulted in the increase in the
Group's shareholding in Dynamic Infrastructure Limited from
78% to 100%, Coastal Rapid Transit Company Limited from
78% to 100%, Pearl Harbour Investment Limited from 50% to
100%, and decrease in Golden Horse Resources Limited from
78% to 40% (the “Transaction”). The Group entered into the
Transaction to unwind the previous group reorganisation
completed in 2003 which was effected in preparation for
the application for the separate listing of the toll roads
business of the Group and such application was lapsed in
September 2004. The gain arising from the transaction was
approximately HK$165,913,000. (Note 37(d)).

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies

—“ Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERAR AT

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") and are prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried

at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

1. —RER (8]

(i) R=TTN\FERF - EEBRATHERNEER
REZBZBEEARAR (RE]) (RAINR
B ([HMNBEREE ) (& EH) H183.93% o © &
ERLHENTHERR  MXSEFAR_ZZS
NERTE - HEREBENEERBER T
NE+ZA=+—HEEHEHEEERE (M
FE15) o

vy R=ZZTLFLA=++tH8 AEBTLAHB
BB - BUAEER Dynamic Infrastructure
Limited * BB R BIEE AR R & Pearl Harbour
Investment Limited BIRR %% Il B 78% ~ 78% K2 50%
HHNZE 100% ~ 100% & 100% * M Golden Horse
Resources Limited A% 48 BIl 5 78% P& = 409%([ 5222
1) o REEFNZRGNERR_TT=F5%
RZzEBER  BREANAEBASHRES
B ER B ETmiEL - MARRGZER
ZZTNFNAKRK - ZRGFTESE 2 Wi R
165,913,000 % 7T (FiEE37(d)) °

2. MAUEERETHE

IR B A M B REB RN T B
% o BIESBAIL - FRFAMBR S 2 BB &
-

REMBMREREBU B REER ([ FEUBRE
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BEFMRAAEBEEBERIIRNUBEERALE
EFRRMEHER]

ZIREBMISREERREM RS - AERERET
MR EsHhE  THREEEEERBASESHK
REGBIZPELHIE - PR EHE S EEHEIED
BRI G M BRRBEABRRMEENERE - 2
RBRE 4 AHREE o




Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE R R M EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont'd) 2. MAEERESTBER ()

The following interpretations to existing standards are relevant

to the Group and are mandatory for the financial year ended 31st

December 2008:

HK(FRIO)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

HK(FRIO)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

The adoption of these new interpretations has no significant impact
on the Group's financial statements and financial position nor any
substantial changes in the Group's accounting policies, except for
the change of accounting policy due to the adoption of HK(IFRIC)-
Int 12 as explained below.

HK(FRIO)-Int 11, "HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury share transactions”,
provides guidance on whether share-based transactions involving
treasury shares or involving group entities (for example, options
over a parent's shares) should be accounted for as equity-settled or
cash-settled share-based payment transactions in the stand-alone
accounts of the parent and group companies. This interpretation
does not have an impact on the Group's financial statements.

In 2008, the Group applied HK(FRIC)-Int 12, “Service Concession
Arrangements”, which is relevant to its operations. The comparatives
have been adjusted as required, in accordance with relevant
requirements. HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 applies to contractual arrangements
whereby a private sector operator participates in the development,
financing, operation and maintenance of infrastructure for public
sector services. The adoption of HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 resulted in a
change in accounting policy for the Group’s toll roads operations.
Before adoption of HK(IFRIC)-Int 12, the Group’s toll roads assets
were recorded as property, plant and equipment. In accordance
with HK(FRIC)-Int 12, the Group's toll roads infrastructure shall be
recognised as intangible assets — toll road operating right to the
extent that the Group receives a right to charge users of the public

service.

T EASERANEREER 2 RBRANEE—F
ENF+ZA=+—HILHBEERGIER

78 (BB 753

SRR BEUBHmEEFE2
ZEE)-RES

15% SRR
EERGH S
B (BRI smERE RS
ZEg) - ZBE 2R

BRTXRERRAE S (BRMBREREES

g)-REF RRMBNEHBERNEES - KA%

EMRBEI TS AREBNTBRE LB EE
FEREHEITBRRERENNE -

T (AR RERERES) —2EF R [E8
M MELERE 2R - KEREFRNRZS ] HRE
EREI I HE®- I SE R A G el SSYNGIEEE T ¢ )
EVARAD RERE RN R ER R R KB R AR E Y AR
A NESERERABEINR S EE ARG RE
BN R B IRUEIES| - RS AR E RO I 153

R-ZBTNF  AEEEAELSEAHNEE (E
BREMBRERERES) —REE 125 [RIBKTE
2] EBREFERARERTIARE - T8 (BE
MBREREREEG) —REE 2TEARALAE
EBR2ENERBERREHNER  BE  EENE
FEMERNEOURE - RBEE (BRRY RS
BEZEE) REF NRERAEEWEERZE
B BENER - BB (BRVBERERERR
) —REE 2 ARERNREEREERY
¥ BELEE - BEEE(BRVBREREES
) —2BE 2% - MAKEENGERLEREH
WEE  ANERERWEERERRE T UERRETE
E-WEEREETE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE SRR M EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

The adoption of HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 resulted in a reclassification of the
infrastructure of toll road under service concession arrangement
with a net carrying value of approximately HK$1,815,640,000 from
property, plant and equipment to toll road operating right as at 1st
January 2008 (1st January 2007: approximately HK$1,707,451,000).
Other than the effect set out above, the adoption of HK(IFRIC)-Int 12
does not have significant impact to the financial statements for the
year ended 31st December 2008.

The following new standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards have been published and are relevant to the
Group's accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January 2009
or later periods but are not effective for financial year ended 31st
December 2008 and have not been early adopted by the Group:

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)

HKAS 27 and
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIO)-Int 17

—“ Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERAR AT

Presentation of Financial Statements

Borrowing Costs

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

Financial Instruments: Presentation
Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements and First-time
adoption of HKFRS — Cost of
an Investment in a Subsidiary,
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate
Share-based payment
Business Combinations
Financial Instruments: Disclosure
Operating Segments

Distribution of Non-cash Assets
to Owners

2.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE R R M EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

The following improvements to HKFRS will be effective on 1st

January 20009.

HKAS 1 Amendment

HKAS 16 Amendment
HKAS 19 Amendment
HKAS 23 Amendment
HKAS 27 Amendment

HKAS 28 Amendment
HKAS 31 Amendment
HKAS 36 Amendment
HKAS 38 Amendment
HKAS 39 Amendment

HKFRS 5 Amendment

Presentation of Financial Statements

Property, Plant and Equipment

Employee Benefits

Borrowing Costs

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

Investments in Associates

Interests in Joint Ventures

Impairment of Assets

Intangible Assets

Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement

Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of

these new standards, amendments and interpretations but is not yet

in a position to state whether they would have a significant impact

on its results of operations and financial position.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to

31st December.

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose

entities) over which the Group has the power to govern the

financial and operating policies generally accompanying

a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights.

The existence and effect of potential voting rights that

are currently exercisable or convertible are considered

when assessing whether the Group controls another

entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date

on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-

consolidated from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE SRR M EE

2. MAUEER S HE ()

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)
(a) Consolidation (Cont’d) (a) %REFRE ()

(i) Subsidiaries (Cont'd) () KTERA](E)

—“ Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERAR AT

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost
of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in
the consolidated income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are carried on the balance sheet
of the Company at cost together with advances by the
Company which are neither planned nor likely to be settled
in the foreseeable future, less provision for impairment.
Provision for impairment in a subsidiary is made when the
recoverable amount of the subsidiary is lower than the
Company's respective cost of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis

of dividend income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE R R M EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(a) Consolidation (Cont’d)

(i)

(iif)

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with
minority interests as transactions with parties external to
the Group. Disposals to minority interests result in gains and
losses for the Group and are recorded in the consolidated
income statement. Purchases from minority interests
result in goodwill, being the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the

carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and
are initially recognised at cost. The Group's investment in
associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net
of any accumulated impairment loss. See note 2(h) for the

impairment of non-financial assets including goodwill.

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the

associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(a) Consolidation (Cont’d)

(iii)

(iv)

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X322 REZERER AT

Associates (Cont'd)

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses (note 2(h)). The results of associates are accounted for

by the Company on the basis of dividend income.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity which is subject to joint control and none
of the participating parties has unilateral control over the

economic activity.

The Group's share of its jointly controlled entities’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income
statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its
interest in the jointly controlled entity, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made

payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entities.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the extent
of the Group's interest in the jointly controlled entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of jointly controlled entities have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in jointly
controlled entities are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend

income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B EE R R M EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(b) Segment reporting

(c)

A business segment is a group of assets and operations

engaged in providing products or services that are subject to

risks and returns that are different from those of other business

segments. A geographical segment is engaged in providing

products or services within a particular economic environment

that are subject to risks and returns that are different from those

of segments operating in other economic environments.

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Group's presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company and the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC is Renminbi.

The Directors consider that presentation of financial
statements in Hong Kong dollars will facilitate analysis of

the financial information of the Group.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or revaluation where
items are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
held at fair value through profit or loss is reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary available-for-sale financial assets is included in

equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE SRR M EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont'd) 2. MAEEERESTBER ()
(c) Foreign currency translation (Cont’d) (c) IERE (&)
(iii) Group companies (i) EE N A]
The results and financial position of all the Group entities e EREZ2EE TR ZMEER QA
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary (BT HRESBREERREZER) 2 ¥ER
economy) that have a functional currency different from the BMISARRIBA T AR RER2TIE -

presentation currency are translated into the presentation

currency as follows:

- assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented - BREERBERFEIZEERARRE
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that HHZWHERRE
balance sheet;

- income and expenses for each consolidated income - BRAEBmEZBARFATIZRFEHES
statement are translated at average exchange rates BE (RIFZTHERL IR 5HE AER
(unless this average is not a reasonable approximation HRBEHE 2 AR ERIER TR
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the ARFRZEERERZBNERKRE) &

transaction dates, in which case income and expenses

are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

— all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a - BIRZBEREZREERRER 2B
separate component of equity. DHER ©

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the RERE ABRE - MEIINETEH FIRE T

translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and EEREMBELAERRENEETAMR

of borrowings and other currency instruments designated EEMERZEI AR c B0 REX

as hedges of such investments, are taken to equity. When a HEBINETERT » 5T AR B X Z TN

foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange SIERRER R HEREIEIEN —F D °

differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part of the gain or

loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the AW G ERBMEEZHERAREED
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and B HEERZBIEBZEERAER
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing B WAKHE B 2 WHERFE -

rates at the balance sheet date.

—“ Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERAR AT



Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE R R M EE

2. MUEER ST HE (&)

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (d) Y3 - BERZE

Buildings comprise mainly office premises. All plant and
equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and
impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance expenses
are charged in the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of building, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 10 — 40 years
Port facilities 35-41 years
Plant and machinery 3 -35years
Leasehold improvement,

furniture and equipment 3 - 10years
Motor vehicles 5-12years
Others 5 years

No depreciation is provided for construction in progress.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater

than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2(h)).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in the

consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE SRR M EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

—“ Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERAR AT

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable
assets of the acquired subsidiary, associate and jointly controlled
entity at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions
of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on
acquisitions of associates and jointly controlled entities is
included in investments in associates and jointly controlled
entities. Separately recognised goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. It is tested for impairment
annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses on separately recognised goodwill
are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units ("“CGUs") for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made to
those CGUs that are expected to benefit from the business

combination in which the goodwill arose.

Leasehold land and land use rights

The upfront prepayments made for leasehold land and land
use rights are expensed in the consolidated income statement
on a straight line basis over the period of the operating lease or

when there is impairment, it is recognised immediately.

Toll road operating right

Toll road operating right is carried at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Amortisation of toll road operating right is calculated to write
off their carrying values on units-of-usage basis whereby the
amount of amortisation is provided based on the ratio of actual
traffic volume compared to the total projected traffic volume
over the remaining toll collection periods. The projected traffic
volume of toll road is reviewed regularly with references to both
internal and external sources of information and adjusted if

appropriate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE R R M EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(h) Impairment of non-financial assets

(i)

(0

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill,
are not subject to amortisation and are at least tested
annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (i.e. CGUs). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets
held-for-sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following three
categories:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;

(ii) Loans and receivables; and

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets.

The classification depends on the purpose for which the

financial assets were acquired. Management determines the

classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE SRR M EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(j) Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i

(i)

—“ Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERAR AT

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term. Derivatives are also categorised
as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this catergory are classified as current asset.

Assets in this category are initially recognised at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement, and are subsequently remeasured at
their fair values. Gains and losses arising from changes in
the fair values are included in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they arise, except where
the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge accounting,
in which case recognition of any resultant gain or loss
depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of other income when the Group's right
to receive payments is established.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. They are included in current assets, except
for maturities greater than twelve months after the balance
sheet date which are classified as non-current assets.

Loans and receivable are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B EE R R M EE

2. MUEER ST HE (&)

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)
(j) Financial assets (Cont'd)

() HHEEE (&)

(i) AT R A E

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated in this category or not classified in any
other categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless management intends to dispose of the investment
within twelve months of the balance sheet date. Assets
in this category are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs and are subsequently carried at fair value.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value are

recognised in equity.

When available-for-sale financial assets are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in
equity are included in the consolidated income statement

as gains and loss from available-for-sale financial assets.

Dividends on available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in the consolidated income statement as part of
other income when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the date of trade when the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

The fair values of quoted investments and derivative
financial instruments are based on current bid prices. For
unlisted securities and when the market for a financial
asset is not active, the Group establishes fair value by using
appropriate valuation techniques. These include the use
of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other
instruments that are substantially the same and discounted

cash flow analysis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE SRR M EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont'd) 2. WAEEERESTBER ()
(j) Financial assets (Cont'd) G) BIBEE (&)
(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets (Contd) (iif) AT ERIE S EE (4B)
The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether REEeRNSAERTHELFEREE
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group BH-—BUKEESK — AV BEED fﬁﬁ
of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities B WA BINWERMEHERAES - AR
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged REZFERHBMER  BEERELFE
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is BHEARBERGANRIRAEREKEL
considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. TR - WEERERHEENTBEED
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial BUR(E - B RETEE (BB ARERE AR
assets, the cumulative loss measured as the difference BEZEZR) RZMBEENEREEER
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value HEWTJEEEZ{EETEHEWEH‘JE*E*EPE'J@ NI
less any impairment loss on that financial assets previously BE@RANER - Fﬁ?éiéﬁﬁﬁﬁqﬂ R H
recognised in the consolidated income statement, is ﬁ{ﬁlﬁﬂﬁﬁfﬂzéﬁ?é BRAP M -

removed from equity and recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement on equity instruments are
not reversed through the consolidated income statement.

(k) Inventories k) #&
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable FERA KAl S EMENRIEETIER - 5K
value. Cost comprises materials, direct labour and an REEME - BEESTIRAEERS CERES
appropriate portion of production overheads calculated on TEANMEFHEESE - ETEFEEEKRAE -
a weighted average basis but excludes borrowing costs. Net AR ERGFT SIS HRIE - BT T I
realisable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales BARARHEBERAMETE

proceed less estimated cost to completion and selling expenses.

—“ Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X322 REZERER AT



Notes to the Financial Statements

B EE SRR M EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

()

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.
The amount of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement. When a trade
receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to the consolidated income
statement.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs

directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are

shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE SRR M EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont'd) 2. MAEEERESTBER ()

(o) Borrowings (o) BE

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for

at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

EEARABEIRR SRAVFHER - EERE
RIZEHERAINER - FTSFOR (R HRAIR)
B OI(E 2 [ VR Z5E - A ERNTERE
EHNERS BRRPER -

BRI BRBA S - HAEEG R
A AR R ERE R f o+ A
AERI -

(p) Convertible bonds (p) THERES

(i) Convertible bonds with equity component

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holders, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received do not vary,
are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity

component.

At initial recognition, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is determined using a market interest
rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond. The remainder
of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option as
equity component. Transaction costs that relate to the
issue of a compound financial instrument are allocated to
the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost, calculated using the effective interest
method, until extinguished on conversion or maturity. The
equity component is recognised in equity, net of any tax
effects.

When the bond is converted, the relevant equity
component and the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion are transferred
to share capital and share premium for the shares
issued. When the bond is redeemed, the relevant equity

component is transferred to retained earnings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B EE R R M EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(p) Convertible bonds (Cont’d)
(i) Convertible bonds without equity component

All other convertible bonds which do not exhibit the
characteristics mentioned in (i) above are accounted for as
hybrid instruments consisting of an embedded derivative

and a host debt contract.

At initial recognition, the embedded derivative of the
convertible bonds is accounted for as derivative financial
instruments and is measured at fair value. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the
derivative component is recognised as liability under the
contract. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bond are allocated to the liability under the
contract.

The derivative component is subsequently carried at
fair value and changes in fair value are recognised in
the income statement. The liability under the contract is
subsequently carried at amortised cost, calculated using the
effective interest method, until extinguished on conversion

or maturity.

When the bond is converted, the carrying amount of
the liability under the contract together with the fair
value of the relevant derivative component at the time
of conversion are transferred to share capital and share
premium as consideration for the shares issued. When the
bond is redeemed, any difference between the redemption
amount and the carrying amounts of both components is

recognised in the income statement.
(q) Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE SRR M EE

2. MAUEER S HE ()

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(r) BIRIR AR E

(r) Current and deferred income tax

—m Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERAR AT

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date in the countries where the Company, its subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of

amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities, except where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B EE R R M EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(s) Employee benefits

(i

(i)

Retirement scheme obligations

Employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China (the “"PRC") are members of state-
managed employee pension scheme operated by the
Tianjin Municipal People’s Government which undertakes to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired employees. The Group’s obligation is to make
the required contributions under the schemes. In addition,
the Group also contributes to a mandatory provident fund
scheme for all Hong Kong employees. Both schemes are
defined contribution plans. All these contributions are
based on a certain percentage of the staff's salary and are

charged to the consolidated income statement as incurred.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans, under which the entity receives
sevices from employees as considerations for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, excluding the impact of any non-market
service and performance vesting conditions. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to vest. The total
amount expensed is recognised over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
of original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are exercised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(t)

(u)

—m Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERAR AT

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is

recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and rendering of services in
the ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown
net of value-added tax, business tax, returns and discounts.

Revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered to

customers.

(ii) Toll revenue is recognised when services are rendered.

(i) Port service income is recognised when services are

rendered.

(iv) Sales of electricity, water, heat and thermal power are

recognised based on meter readings of actual utilisation.

(v) Government supplemental income is recognised on
accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant

documents from Government.

(vi) Rental and management fee income is recognised on

accrual basis.

(vii) Interest income is accrued on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

(viii)Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive

payment is established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B EE R R M EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont’d)

(u)

(v)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

(ix) Hotel revenue from room rentals, food and beverage sales
and other ancillary services is recognised upon provision of

services.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Other

borrowing costs are expensed.

(w) Operating lease

(x)

(y)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the

period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the

Company's shareholders.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot

be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,

they will then be recognised as a provision.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BrEE SRR M EE

2. Basis of preparation and accounting policies (Cont'd) 2. WAEEERESTBER ()
(y) Contingent liabilities and contingent assets (Cont'd)

) HABERAALE (&)

SRBEERASBESHMARELZEE - £

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past

events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the BEEEEKBUAR —H % IE B &g (s
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events g )B4 B WIS E 2 EIE I € E A A 2 T
not wholly within the control of the Group. BASE -

3. Financial risk management 3. I EREE

3.1 A% R EE

3.1 Financial risk factors

REBEBEAZ X BUBRR: Ti5RR(BE
market risk (including currency risk, price risk and interest rate R - BREREFERRE)  EERRR
TEESRR AEEMNEENBRBREESES

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

risk), credit and counterparty risk and liquidity risk. The Group's

—m Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X322 REZERER AT

financial risk management focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance by actively
managing debt level and cash flow in order to maintain a strong
balance sheet and minimising refinancing and liquidity risks by
attaining healthy debt repayment capacity, appropriate maturity
profile and availability of banking facilities. The Group adheres
to a policy of financial prudence and did not use any derivative
financial instruments or structured financial products during the

year.

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The principal subsidiaries of the Group operate in
the PRC with almost all of the transactions settled in
Renminbi and did not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange risks during the year.

The actual foreign exchange risk faced by the Group
therefore primarily with respect to bank balances and
deposits, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, receivable and payable and borrowings made by
the Group which are denominated in non-functional
currency mainly Hong Kong dollars (collectively “Non-
Functional Currency Items”).
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3. Financial risk management (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(a) Market risk (Cont'd)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Cont'd)

At 31st December 2008, with all other variables
held constant, if Hong Kong dollars had weakened/
strengthened against Renminbi by 5% (2007: 5%), the
Group's post-tax profit would have been increased/
decreased by approximately HK$120,453,000 (2007:
HK$50,048,000) as a result of the translation of those
Non-Functional Currency Items.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because the Group’s investments in listed shares
and unlisted funds are classified on the consolidated
balance sheet as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss specified in note 28. The Group is not
exposed to commodity price risk.

To manage its price risk arising from investments in
equity securities, the Group diversifies its portfolio
and invests in relatively low-risk funds such as money
market funds. Since the amount of the investments
in listed shares is not significant to the Group,
management is of the view that the exposure to
equity securities price risk is limited. For the Group's
investments in unlisted equity funds and money
market funds, due to the difficulty in estimating the
correlation with the market indexes of the underlying
equity securities of the funds or the correlation with
the interest rate trend of the underlying money market
investments and the diversified nature of the funds, no
sensitivity analysis for price risk is performed as it cannot
be reliably estimated.
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3. MBERERE (&)

3. Financial risk management (Cont’d)

3.1 HEBEpEEE ()

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(@) Market risk (Cont'd) @) AR (&)

(ili) Interest rate risk (i) F= @B

—m Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X322 REZERER AT

Other than bank balances and deposits (the “Interest
Bearing Assets”) specified in note 29, the Group has no
other significant interest-bearing assets.

The Group's interest rate risk arises from borrowings
(the “Interest Bearing Liabilities”) as set out in note 32.
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at
fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group's policy is to maintain a mixed
portfolio of borrowings subject to variable and fixed
interest rates. The Group also analyses its interest rate
exposure periodically by considering refinancing,
renewal of existing positions and alternative financing.
The Group’s Interest Bearing Liabilities were entirely
borrowings at variable rates of HK$2,590,738,000 (2007:
HK$1,303,969,000 at variable rates and HK$165,447,000

at fixed rates).

At 31st December 2008, with all other variables held
constant, if the interest rate on HK dollar-denominated
borrowings at variable interest rate, bank balances and
deposits had increased/decreased by 50 basis points
(2007: 100 basis points), the corresponding increase/
decrease in net finance costs (representing interest
income on the Interest Bearing Assets less interest
expenses on Interest Bearing Liabilities) would have
resulted in a decrease/increase in the Group's profit
after taxation by HK$10,730,000 (2007: HK$4,777,000). At
31st December 2008, if the interest rate on Renminbi-
denominated borrowings at variable interest rate, bank
balances and deposits had increased/decreased by 100
basis points (2007: 50 basis points), the corresponding
decrease/increase in net finance costs would have
resulted in an increase/decrease in the Group's profit
after taxation by HK$22,709,000 (2007: HK$9,447,000).

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
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3. MBERERE (K)
3.1 HBmEpEEE (F)

3. Financial risk management (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(b) Credit and counterparty risk b) EEEE

(©

Credit risk mainly arises from cash deposits and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss maintained with
banks and other financial institutions, as well as credit
exposures to jointly controlled entities, associates, related
companies, minority shareholders, investee companies
and customers (including outstanding trade receivable
balances). The carrying amounts of these balances
substantially represents the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit and counterparty risk as at 31st December 2008.

A significant portion of the Group's cash deposits and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
placed with state-owned and listed banks. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales of services are made
to customers with an appropriate credit history and the
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers.
The Group's historical experience in collection of trade and
other receivables falls within the recorded allowances and
the Directors are of the opinion that adequate provision
for uncollectible accounts receivable has been made in the
financial statements.

As at 31st December 2007 and 2008, over 70% of the
Group's financial assets were cash deposits and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, which were placed
with state-owned and listed banks and other financial
institutions. For trade receivables, over one-third of which
were supplemental income receivable from the Finance
Bureau of Tianjin Economic-Technological Development
were (“TEDA") with settlements throughout the years.
The residential, commercial and industrial customers of
the segment of supply of utilities demonstrated good
credit quality in general as residential customers settled
in cash while there are established relationships with key
commercial and industrial customers with long business
track record. Most of the customers of the segment of port
services and the receivables of toll roads demonstrated
continuous settlement track record.

Liquidity risk

The Group adopts prudent liquidity risk management which
includes maintaining sufficient bank balances and cash and
having funding through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities. The Group aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping committed credit lines available.
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3. Financial risk management (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(c) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

—m Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERAR AT

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's
liquidity reserve comprising undrawn borrowing facility and
cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash
flow.

As at 31st December 2008, the Group maintained a net
cash position (Note 3.2) with only approximately HK$95
million of the contractual cash outflow related to borrowing
(representing less than 4% of the total balance) maturing
within one year. The refinancing and liquidity risks was
minimal to the Group.

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities
that will be settled into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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Between1 Between 2
Less than 1year and2years and5years Over5 years
—FURN —FEWMFE WMEERF BERE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FHE T FHET
At 31st December 2008 R=ZZNFE
+=-A=+-—H
Group AEHE
Borrowings B8 95,027 60,237 2,623,683 -
Amounts due to related EABEEAR
companies, a minority —BLERRR
shareholder and RAEEZERAT
ultimate holding company 1§ 234,459 - - -
Trade payables, other EHER - HfitESRE 1,061,724 - - -
payables and accruals REGTER
Company NG|
Borrowings P 84,911 50,211 1,461,807 -
Other payables and accruals E At EMFRE R E:HE A 32,904 - - -
At 31st December 2007 RITTLF
+ZA=+—H
Group REE
Borrowings B 278,039 52,532 1,361,636 -
Amounts due to related FERTRRE R A &
companies and a minority — A VHRE
shareholder A 158,746 - - -
Trade payables, other payables fEf &R « E bR z0E 985,421 = - -
and accruals RIEHER
Company PN
Borrowings (9= 96,670 36,611 924,791 =
Other payables and accruals Hih N FIE R EFHE R 17,436 = - -
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3. Financial risk management (Cont’d) 3. BiEEBER (&)

3.2 EXEGEE

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

AEEEREARNENRREREHEFEL
& URBEREHRDRY SEMAEHEBA LR
MR - AR R T B AR LAORUE B AR

stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to o BENIRIGEEEABERMEANERTE
reduce the cost of capital. Total capital is calculated as equity as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

RERHRABEARZE - AEERRRRERRIK

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group

may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return HERRE - MRERREIER « BFTHRILEER
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce ELUR METS -

debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors MEMAE 1 AEELVFEEABLERIER

ﬁtﬁﬁ@’iﬁ"]ﬁﬁ o FEER B RIRERFRER
N E - B FRREEE (REEREEE
BERMBNRBDRIFRDEES) RERE RER
borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less STFEREREFHE - RZTTN\FA - NEBHER
total cash and cash deposits. During 2008, the Group's policy, T EFNECR  BFEEAGBLERERTS
which was unchanged from 2007, was to maintain a net gearing R 40% °

capital on the basis of the net gearing ratio. Net gearing ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by equity. Net debt is calculated
as total borrowings (including current and non-current

ratio of not more than 40%.

As of the end of 2008 and 2007, the Group had a net cash BE_TT)\GFR-ZTLFER AEBREF
position. WEAMR ©

2008 2007

—EENE ZETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FATT

Total borrowings EEs 2,590,738 1,469,416

Less: total cash and cash deposits B B RIS TR B 3,082,308 3,236,182

Net cash IR ERE (491,570) (1,766,766)

Shareholders' funds PRER 9,254,836 8,224,259

Net gearing ratio EEERGBHE Net cash Net cash

FRERR FHREAN
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3. Financial risk management (Cont’d)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The determination of the carrying amounts of the financial

instruments of the Group are as follows:

(i)

(iii

(iv

—m Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERAR AT

The fair value of listed investments including available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is based on quoted prices in an active market
at the balance sheet date.

The fair value of unlisted investments including available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is determined by reference to the
market prices of the underlying investments, the current
market value of similar investments or the estimated future
cash flows generated from the underlying net assets
discounted at a rate that reflects current market assessment
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
assets.

The fair values of long-term borrowings are estimated using
the expected future contractual payments discounted at
current market interest rates available to similar financial

instruments.

The fair values of cash and cash deposits, trade receivables,
other receivables, deposits, trade payables, other payables,
accruals, current borrowings and balances with associates,
jointly controlled entities, related companies, minority
shareholders and investee companies are assumed to
approximate their carrying amount due to the short-term

maturities of these assets and liabilities.

3. MBERERE (&)

3.3 AR EEEE

AEENERTEZREERTEMNT

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

EREREBEAHEEMBEEREAAE
BEBRSIIRNMBEENA A BERES
BHZERTSREEE -

FETREBFEAHEEUBEERRAA
BEEBERINRNVHEEENAAEBTZ
IRIBARENTEIRLRENRITHISE
ESERDF B EMTRT ARREMARITE
RIHRETE - 2R R RS EE
KEEREEZHERR -

A EATRHIR R A #52 HiRAR

EMmSHEREHE -

BT

ReRReFR - BURER - HME KK
B RE - BNER - EMEMNFR - st
2R HEEREREENEZERF - K
REZEHIEE  BEQR - PERRERERE
RABHNAAEREELRRERE - R
RARZEEERARNZIMBSEH -
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4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based

on historical experience and other factors, including expectations

of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances. The estimates and assumptions that have a

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities of the Group are discussed below.

(a) Property, plant and equipment

(b)

(c)

Management determines the estimated useful lives and
residual values for the Group's property, plant and equipment.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where useful
lives and residual values are different to previously estimated,
or it will write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategy assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Toll road operating right

As stated in note 2(g), the total projected traffic volume of toll
road is reviewed regularly with reference to both internal and
external sources of information and adjusted if appropriate.
Independent professional traffic studies are performed
periodically and appropriate adjustment will be made should
there be a material change. The Directors of the Company
consider that these are the best current estimates on the total

projected traffic volume.

Impairment of assets

Non-financial assets including goodwill are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In addition, the Group tests at least
annually whether goodwill or assets that have indefinite useful
lives have suffered any impairment. The recoverable amounts
of assets or CGUs have been principally determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates, such as discount rates, future profitability and growth
rates.

4. BARETHEETRAVE

ARABERBRIAMRAR (BEHBREMHES
Z A BT PR AT IR EERA A st S AIET - AT
REERRREHASEEENBEZ REEAER

EARBZ A5 RER

(a)

(b)

St -

HE - BERRE

AEEZ W% - BERREBZABERRRSE
EREREETE - M BFARFIREELLR
HEER  ARESEFTITERS - RiEHHK
MOR BT EE AR EARE R Z FRBIEE
o

WEEEEEE

HTEE 2(0) B - B ARE 2 FEEHE BT B AR
PN E R B T AR - AR R R
BRI BESRTBIREBREN
% MBEAEANERfEHEY B - AR
CEERAKEIHENSSBRE S RTRE
fikst o

(c) BERE

HNEMIFMTBEE (BERE) - EAFMHHR
FIEARERREREESN A RS RER - E8
SUREETTIRGT ° Uh » AEEHRHERLEHE
EERFMEESFRIET A - A
EERBHIRE - EERELR S B2 I
EeETBEREEREEIFEERMET - Ik
FEEARME TR - fIIrRE - KA
BENRIEREK -
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5. Segment information

The Group is principally engaged in provision of port services,

supply of utilities and operation of commercial properties.

The associates of the Group are principally engaged in the

manufacturing and sales of winery products, elevators and

escalators.

(a) Primary reporting format - business segments

5. pEER

AEET2EEREORE  REAARBREE
PEEEHE -

REEMNBZER

TS -

REERNEBEER  FEERIRT

(a) TEZH G - FHB5H

For the year ended 31st December 2008
HE-RBN\FT-A=1-RLEE

Discontinued
operation
(note(ii))
AaltgE
Continuing operations £%
FEEERR (HE i)
Supplyof  Operation Elevator
utilities of commercial and Operation
Port services (note(i))  properties Winery  escalator Others Total of EORR
REOR g
FE e R#F e
EOEE  (WEo) E#E BB el -4 5% NRRH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Thn Tén TEn TEn Tén TEn TEn
Revenue WA 1220576 2,463,311 103,536 - - - 3787423 127,905
Segment results NERE 180,686 198,154 (174,333) - - - 204,507 56,273
Brcess of fairvalue of EAHBLRAN
net assets acquired FEEN
over the cost of PMEE
acquisition of AL
subsidiares RANES - - 203103 - - - 203,103 -
Interestincome FSEA 63,552 4,609
Net corporate expense NAXLFE (22,587) -
Operating profi iyl 48575 60,882
Finance costs §%EE (65,661) -
Shae of profits{osses) of FE(RET/ (i)
Associates Bend 1495 - - 64128 184,108 3415 253,146 -
Jointly controlled entiies AREHEE 8,755 - (2,105) - - om) -
Profit before tax FuanaAl 624,983 60,882
Taxexpense RESH (12955 (12,308)
Profitfor the year T 552,028 48,574
Capital expenditure ERER 55687 275929 1,601 - - 203 335251 16
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 135,030 74,901 251 - - 3,663 242,105 26,413
Provision for impairment EHER
oftrade receivables ERE - 23,019 2 - - - 23,040 -

m Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X322 REZERER AT
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5. Segment information (Cont'd) 5. 2 EER (&)
(a) Primary reporting format — business segments (Cont'd) (a) ZEZH o= — K54 (&)
Restated
s

For the year ended 315t December 2007
RE-FRLEL-A=-AIER

Discontinued

operation

(note(i)

Continuing operations E37S

FELERH (BsE )
Supply of Elevator

utilties and QOperation

Port services (notef) Winery escalator Others Total of EORR
RUAA T

B R#F me

AR (BzE() £ 3] e A % NERH

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS 000
TR ThEL THTL TETL THEL TR T

Revenue WA 1157430 2053077 = = 57,5060 3268013 119650
Segment results NEEE 269820 198579 - - 34590 502,989 58887
Gain on tol roads restructuring BRNEERIR 165913 -
Provision for impament of R-FHELNT

investment in an associate REZHERE - - - - (38261) (38,261) -
Gain/(oss) on disposal of subsidiaries,  H/ERTBAR

associates and jointly BenaREREs

controlled entities ERWE/ (BR) 139 S 5 - (18817) (18678) -
Interestincome WA 50884 2468
Net corporate incorne NABAFE 65,177 =
Operating profit oyl 728024 61355
Finance costs B%EE (101,130) -
Share of profits/(losses) of B/ (BR)

Assaciates BENA 79 - 56576 159293 399 20651 -

Jointly controlled entites HARHER - - - - 9831) (9831) -
Profit before tax AR 837,714 61355
Taxexpense FES (62,569) 9.261)
Profitfor the year ERmT 775,145 52004
Capital expenditure AR 4914 75032 - - 631 130406 -
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 121463 63,42 - - 23684 208389 803
(Reversal of)/provision for EUEHE

impaiment of trade receivables (Bm) /Bl (5812) 2101 - - 103 16392 =
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5. Segment information (Cont’d)

(a) Primary reporting format - business segments (Cont’d)

Notes:

0]

(ii)

—m Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERAR AT

Utility supply business is carried out by Tianjin TEDA Tsinlien Electric
Power Company Limited (“Electricity Company”), Tianjin TEDA
Tsinlien Water Supply Company Limited (“Water Company”) and
Tianjin TEDA Tsinlien Heat & Power Company Limited ("Heat &
Power Company”).

The Finance Bureau of TEDA has confirmed to grant to Electricity
Company, Water Company and Heat & Power Company quantity-
based government supplemental income calculated at RMB 0.02
per kWh of electricity supplied, RMB2 per tonne of water supplied
and RMB50 per tonne of steam supplied for the year ending 31st
December 2009.

Revenue generated from the supply of utilities includes
approximately HK$49.2 million (2007: HK$41.1 million), HK$101.3
million (2007: HK$80.9 million) and HK$165.2 million (2007:
HK$137.9 million) of quantity-based government supplemental
income granted to the Electricity Company, Water Company and
Heat & Power Company respectively.

The results related to Jinzheng, which operates the EORR in Tianjin,
have been presented under discontinued operation as actions had
been initiated prior to year end to dispose of the Group's interest
in it and the transaction is expected to be completed in 2009 (Note
15).

5. 7RER(K)

(a) TEZ2HA —FEH7H (F)

M :

0]

(i)

RAREHEEESDEBREREEMENERR
A(EARAF])  REFERKERKAERAR
(TEHRARE]) RRRFERHATERAF ([2
BRR K -

KERAERVBBEERNBE_TTNE+ A
=+t BHIE—FANREGHE I TRERENEARE
0027C * BHE 1R KKEARK 2T REHE
WEZ AR S0 LA BIREHRR ~ BRKAR
RREB QAR TENEEABATRHBIRA -

HEARSENRABES R TFENAT - AR
KA A REE A 7] H) B R L FE 2 A9 BT R B A
#949,200,00078 7T (=TT £ : 41,400,000/ 7C)
101,300,000 7t ( = Z T+ £F : 80,900,000 7T ) &
165,200,000 770 (ZZZ-L4F 1 137,900,000 787T) °

BN F R ERFATEIA L EANKE R RE (R
RBEZINRRR) R - RRXSEHR_FF
NERTK  REMERNEESER LEBET
25 (KfFE15)
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5. Segment information (Cont’d) 5. 2 EER (&)
(a) Primary reporting format — business segments (Cont'd) (a) ZEZH 5= — K54 (&)
Operation of
Supplyof  commercial Elevator
Port services utilities  properties Winery and escalator Others  Unallocated Group
RULR  SEEx HIEHER

EORH Rk BME BE heEs B FUs# 15
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
TRn  TEAR  TEn  TEx  TER  TEr  fEn  TEn

As at 31st December 2008 R=BENE+=F=1-A
Assets BE 2816002 2216828  1,140919 - - 309748 3,548,356 10,031,853
Associates S ING 28513 - - 775321 479,521 306,995 - 1,590,350
Jointy controlled entites AREHEE 1,430,037 - - - - 45,483 - 1475520
Assetsheld for sale (Note 13 PR E AR (Kt 19) - - - - - 2001989 284177 2376166
Total assets BEE 4274552 2216828 1140919 775321 479,521 2754215 3832533 15473889
Liabilities A 127,900 773,207 47,845 - - 92513 2977125 4,018,590
Liabilities directly associated with assets B {EREEE
assified asheld for sale (Note 15 B ERIE B (K 15) - - - - - 6239 126160 152399
Total Liabilities BaE 127,900 773,207 47,845 - - 118752 3,103,285 4,170,989
Operation Supply Elevator
Portsevices  oftollroads — of utities Winery  and escalator Others  Unallocated Group
\ mEWE  REDNR _ HRER ‘
B0k s Rife BE HFER i TUsE  A5E
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK000
TR TEL TR AL TEL TEL Thr  TiEn
As at 315t December 2007 R-EZ+E+-A=1-H
Assets BE 2721959 2088477 1,945,707 - - 301,346 37238710 10781359
Associates Bend 24581 192638 -6 415B 50151 - 1377480
Jointly controlled entities HEpEER 704467 - - - - 59,714 - 764,181
Total assets EEE 3451407 2281115 1,945,707 697,187 41253 arm 3723810 12923020
Total liabilities ek 87,763 31494 79822 - - 75546 1778872 2770497
Unallocated assets under business segment reporting primarily FEEREBHETH TS BEEEARBIER
include available-for-sale financial assets, deferred tax assets, HEEMBEE BLEHIBEE - RAABES
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, time deposits BIEmEYIBRMIEEE - =@ A LR EM E
with maturity over three months and cash and cash equivalents. FRARBE 2 RReEEY - TASBEEER
Unallocated liabilities primarily include borrowings, current and PEEE  SHREERIEAE -

deferred tax liabilities.
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5. Segment information (Cont’d)

(b) Secondary report format — geographical segments

5. 2EEFR (&)

(b) XEZ2#H I - HESH

Revenue Operating results
ON P
Restated Restated
K& 45
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENF —ETF —EEN\F —ETF
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
FHExT T FHET AT
PRC mainland 5 (R 3t 3,741,418 3,268,013 367,547 502,989
Hong Kong &5 46,005 - (163,040) =
Continuing operations B R s Sk 3,787,423 3,268,013 204,507 502,989
Discontinued operation IR PR 127,905 119,650 56,273 58,887
Restated
=
2008 2007
—ZEN\F —ETF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Total assets: WERE -

PRC mainland PR A, 9,022,345 10,555,284
Hong Kong a5 1,009,508 226,075
10,031,853 10,781,359
Associates NG| 1,590,350 1,377,480
Jointly controlled entities HEHEHIEEE 1,475,520 764,181
Assets held for sale (Note 15)  #3F{EHEEZE (H5E15) 2,376,166 -
15,473,889 12,923,020

Capital expenditure: BARR
PRC mainland =a)ilvNGiif 335,075 129,209
Hong Kong a5 176 1,197
Continuing operations BIELEER 335,251 130,406
Discontinued operation IR E TS 16 -

—m Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERAR AT
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6. Otherincome 6. HfbWA
Restated
&5
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Interest income F B A 63,552 50,884
Dividend income from investee REFLMIEERTZ
companies — unlisted A% B U A 26,274 18,750
Sundries HMETH 11,460 7,940
101,286 77,574
. Other gains, net 7. Hiblzs 558
Restated
&5
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss 2 A7 (BESE BIBZRIIERHB B EE
— fair value (loss)/gains — listed —ARBE(EE) Wis—tm
(realised and unrealised) (B2 3H R REIR) (7,900) 72,089
— fair value gains — unlisted (realised) — AR BEKE —IELT (B #IR) 34,468 9,151
Gain on disposal of investment property SR E Y 2 W - 10,309
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERIHEENBEE
financial assets ZUEs - 10,429
Reversal of loan interest payable to a B — R BRI E TS
minority shareholder o] % 20,349 -
Reversal of over-accrued expenses Zie 8 AR 22,853 -
Net loss on disposal of subsidiaries, associates HEMB AR « BE AR &
and jointly controlled entities HEZEGIER 2 BT - (18678)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEME  MELEHEZ
and equipment E1R%ER (2,122) (13,788)
Loss on deemed disposal of partial interest BIEHE—RARIEHIEE
in a jointly controlled entity oz EE (1,034) =
Gain on acquisition of additional interest W EE—RETE A BB IME RS
in a subsidiary Z Wz 16,573 -
Net exchange gain b 3 Wz 28 89,298 47,671
172,485 117,183
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8. Operating profit

Operating profit is arrived at after charging:

8. RREEA

BERMNTHR TIER RES ¢

Restated
K&y
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FABIT
Employee benefit expense including Directors’ ~ {EE@FIH X (BIEEEMSE)
emoluments (Note 9) (M5 9) 732,108 543,016
Purchase of electricity, water and steam for sale  $REEE /] » RK &K E 1,875,313 1,537,940
Depreciation mE
~ charged to cost of sales — FESHE B ANHIBR 169,323 166,187
- charged to administrative expenses —FEATIECE HHIBR 23,362 22,920
— charged to other operating expenses —fEE A& B 0k 23,335 =
Amortisation b 26,085 19,282
Provision for impairment of trade receivables FEURE FORE B 23,040 16,392
Impairment loss of available-for-sale AR EMEEE
financial assets BIEEE 25,253 =
Provision for impairment of investment R—KBERAIEEZ
in an associate HERE - 38,261
Operating lease expense on LEFAAF S
— Plants, pipelines and networks —E - Bl kA% 101,237 67,944
- Land and buildings — T REF 12,496 9,636
- Others —Efth 3,986 2,833
Auditors’' remuneration ZEEB & 6,980 5479
. Employee benefit expense 9. EERFIMX
Restated
KE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Wages, salaries and social security costs I& HFehkateREER 646,271 495,806
Pension costs — defined contribution plans RS - EREHKET S 55,403 44,286
Share option expenses (note) BEASAEE BB (BIEE) 30,434 2,924
732,108 543,016
Note:  The Company and its listed subsidiary, Tianjin Port Development MizE : ARRREETMHBARKESERIERERAH
Holdings Limited (“TPD") operate share option schemes whereby ([RzdER ) LEERETE Bt ma &R
options may be granted to eligible employees and directors, to EBERESRLEDRIFIREARR R RREEERER
subscribe for shares of the Company and TPD respectively. ard e
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9. Employee benefit expense (Cont'd) 9. EEEFIBX ()
Details of share options are as follows: BREFBWT

Number of share options

EREHAE
Exercise Price 1st January Lapsed/ 31st December
Grantor Date of grant HK$ 2008 Granted Exercised Cancelled 2008 Note
E —BBNF BEA¥/  -BENF
ZdiA & A BT —fB—H 2&it 217 B t—A=t—A M=
The Company 19th December 2007 8.04 - 11,900,000 - (1,100,000) 10,800,000 (i)
AR “ETEFTZATAH
TPD Tst August 2006 228 10,000,000 = = - 10,000,000 (i)
REBER “ZTFNA—H
TPD 3rd February 2007 2.74 1,900,000 - - - 1,900,000 (ii)
RNEBER “TE+F-A=H
TPD 25th January 2008 424 = 1,300,000 = - 1,300,000 (i)
AEBER T N\F-A=+AH
TPD 21st July 2008 345 = 1,000,000 = - 1,000,000 (i)
AEBER “ETN\FLAZF+—H
Notes: B &E
(i) A total of 11,900,000 share options were granted on 19th December () A2£11900000RERIEEN ST tF+_A+NAK
2007 and accepted by the grantees on 17th January 2008. The share o WR=ZFTZNF—ATtABERAER - AAH
options of the Company is exercisable from 17th January 2008 to 24th WEREATR T N\GF—A+EtBE-T—tFHA
May 2017. ZHPHE FUAfTRE
(i) The share options of TPD are divided into 4 tranches with exercise price (i) REEBRMNBIIED BIEITRE 22887 274 87T
of HK$2.28, HK$2.74, HK$4.24 and HK$3.45 respectively and exercisable 4248 T R 345 BT WAL H - 2 FHBRIE D BT R
from 1st February 2007 to 1st August 2016, from 3rd August 2007 to 3rd —EEHF A -BREZ—RFENA—R =TTt
February 2017, from 25th July 2008 to 24th January 2018 and from 21st FNA=ZBE=Z—+tF=-A=H - ZTTN\FtA
January 2009 to 20th July 2018 respectively. —THEEEE-N\F-AZTEER=ZTTNF—A

“t+—BEZ-N\FEtA-THATATE -
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9. Employee benefit expense (Cont’d)

The estimated fair value of share options granted is based on the

9. EERFBX ()

ERBREN G DA BERE _RAGERAG
C:3

Binomial model. The significant inputs into the models are as H o HAZEANEZL2E0T ¢
follows:
The Company ¥ N

17th January 2008
Date of grant 2 A5 —ZEEN\F—A++tH
Exercise price TE(E HK$8.04
Standard deviation of expected share price return ~ FTEHARR B O A IZHE =R 37%
Expected option life T8 B A e 2 AR Approximate 1 ~ 10 years

#K1~105F

Annual risk free interest rate [ R b I R 1.870% ~ 2.726%
Dividend yield (semi-annual) EEE(KFH) 0.84%
Fair value NREE HK$0.9676 ~ 2.7894

The expected volatility measured at the standard deviation is based

on the historical data of the weekly share price movement of the

R B 2 FHDRIE DB AR TSR B
BB 2 2% -

Company.

TPD KFBBE
21stJuly 2008 25th January 2008  3rd February 2007
—EENF —EENE —EELEF
Date of grant & B H +tB=+—H —B=Z+EH —H=H
Exercise price 1TERE HK$3.45 HK$4.24 HKS2.74
Expected volatility TREARR BIR IR 43% 4% 34%
Expected option life TEERRERRRESF R 3.8 years 1.9 & 1.7 years 2 years
385 19K 175 26
Annual risk free interest rate FEERBRFIR 3.685% 1.527% 4.06%
Dividend pay out rate KB 40% 40% 40%
Fair value DAEE HK$0.9883 HK$0.79 HK$0.54

The expected volatility measured at the standard deviation is based
on statistical analysis of the volatility of companies’ shares of similar
industry.

RIFEEGTE 7 TREDR IR Y E R T A BRI
B2 ARSI -
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9. Employee benefit expense (Cont'd) 9. EEEFIBX ()

(@) EEREREEANSHE

(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

BEENBE_ZT \F+_A=1t—HLFE
HBEEZI T

The remuneration of each Director for the year ended

31st December 2008 is set out below:

Salaries
and other Share based

Fees benefits (i) payments Total

we HABER (i) ERHAR et

Name of Director HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEME FHET THET FHET FHET
Wang Guanghao FEEY 125 389 - 514
Ren Xuefeng " Fe24e 0 - 485 3,068 3,553
Yu Rumin TER 1,600 510 2,101 4,211
Wu Xuemin [BR O - 1,009 - 1,009
Nie Jiansheng miEs 1,540 2,018 2,381 5,939
Dai Yan RN - 1,430 2,147 3,577
Hu Chengli BAB A - 1,430 2,510 3,940
Wang Jiandong FTER - - 1,674 1,674
Bai Zhisheng HEE - - 827 827
Zhang Wenli o S| - - 793 793
Sun Zengyin TRIZE] - - 290 290
Zong Guoying REE Y - - 837 837
Zheng Daoquan BEE - 1,108 1,580 2,688
Cheung Wing Yui oK EH 318 - 1,395 1,713
Kwong Che Keung, Gordon G 382 - 1,395 1,777
Lau Wai Kit El[EXES 382 - 1,395 1,777
Cheng Hon Kwan B 85 382 - 1,395 1,777
4,729 8,379 23,788 36,896
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9. Employee benefit expense (Cont’d) 9. EEEFBEX (&)
(a) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (Cont’d) (a) EEREREZEANSHME (&)
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended BEENBE_STtHF T _A=1T—HILFE
31st December 2007 is set out below: eI
Salaries
and other Share based
Fees benefits (i) payments Total
ek VAR AD 7 ‘

we EAbAaH () AR IR 4ast
Name of Director HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EENE T T FATT FATT
Wang Guanghao TEE 1,500 2,290 338 4,128
Ren Xuefeng FeEse 0 - 1411 - 1411
Yu Rumin FrE 1,300 695 1,035 3,030
Nie Jiansheng EmEA 1,400 2,524 417 4,341
Dai Yan T - 1,639 - 1,639
Hu Chengli AR A - 1,639 - 1,639
Wang Jiandong FER - - - -
Bai Zhisheng AE4E - - - -
Zhang Wenli IRICAH - _ _ _
Sun Zengyin FRIEEN - - - -
Zong Guoying (iv) %?EQ (iv) _ _ _ _
Zheng Daoquan BE = = = =
Cheung Wing Yui oK 300 - - 300
Kwong Che Keung, Gordon e 360 - - 360
Lau Wai Kit (RS 360 - - 360
Cheng Hon Kwan g% 360 - - 360

5,580 10,198 1,790 17,568
(i) Other benefits include leave pay, insurance premium and club () EHiEMNEEEFHERS REBRERGHMEE -

membership.

(i) Resigned on 31st January 2008. (ih RZZBENF—A=+—HEHE -
(i) Appointed on 31st January 2008. iy R=ZTZN\F-—A=+—HEZ(E-
(iv) Resigned on 1st April 2009. vy R=ZETNFMHA—BEFHE
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9. Employee benefit expense (Cont’d) 9. EEEFIBX ()
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EVEREFHFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the RER  AEBRUSSHATBERV(ZE
Group for the year include five (2007: three) directors whose THF: =()ESE - HHFSER EXEFNAN
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The R e RZBELFR - ERNEBRMLA L2
emoluments payable to the remaining two individuals in 2007 ST :

were as follows:

2007
—ETLF
HKS'000
THEIT
Salaries and other emoluments HAFH € RHME e 2,794
Share-based payments LARR D B AR 3R 616
3,410
The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals fell within hEGEEH AL ZEHMN T N5IEE -
the following bands:
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETF
Emolument bands (HKS) <& E (BT)
HK$ 1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T — 2,000,000 % 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T — 2,500,000 7 7T - 1
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 77T — 3,500,000 78 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 77T — 4,000,000 78 7T 3 -
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7 7T — 4,500,000 % T 1 2
HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 77T — 6,000,000 78 7T 1 -
10.Finance costs 10. 1% EH
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Interest expenses: FIESER :
— bank borrowings —iRITIEE 65,661 88,777
— loans from a minority shareholder —— PR ER - 9447
— convertible bonds (notional charge) — AR ES (ZRER) - 2,906
65,661 101,130
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—m Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERAR AT

11.Tax expense M. BHIEXH

Restated

el

2008 2007

—BB\E  —TTH

HKS$’000 HKS'000

FET T

Current taxation BNHARS 18

PRC income tax o B AT IS A 118,879 82,951
Deferred taxation (Note 33) EFERLIA (BMI5E 33) (45,924) (20,382)
72,955 62,569

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as there is
no estimated assessable profit for the year for the Group (2007: Nil).
Provision for the PRC income tax has been made at the applicable
rate of taxation on the estimated assessable profit for the year for
each of the Group's subsidiaries.

On 16th March 2007, the National People’s Congress approved the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the
“New CIT Law") which was effective from 1st January 2008. Under
the New CIT Law, both domestic and foreign invested enterprises
will be subject to a single income tax rate of 25%. For those
subsidiaries of the Group which are applying 15% tax rate, namely
Tianjin Harbour Second Stevedoring Co., Ltd., Tianjin Port Container
Terminal Co., Ltd, Jinzheng, Electricity Company, Water Company
and Heat & Power Company, the tax rate will gradually increase to

25% over five years.

el A S B 4 P S A 5 SRR R - M A B
FIGBIEHRAR (2L « @) - REAEHER
THRERE A RS A ) 2 B FIAE
B -

RZZZLF=A+AH 2EARKKRASEB
TCHEARKAMBERXMSETE) (HEEMRSEH
A BTETNFE A BBAEM - REFEER
UL - AR RINE RN B EMEHEBLR —
7% 25% ° FLE BIHE 15% BiREMTIA 2 A L T8
AR E - AIREEE BIERRAR - REEEE
FEISSEAR AR EK - BHRE - BARKAERE
BRAE PRGN RRAFEESEINE 25% °
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BrEE SRR M EE

11.Tax expense (Cont'd) MN.HE\EXZE (&)
The income tax expense on the Group's profit before tax differs from ANEBEBIRADERZ AR Y 1S BREEAERR
the theoretical amount that would arise using the applicable tax R (AIRNEEFENBATLKE TEMRIRIT 2 Nk
rate, being the weighted average of rates prevailing in the territories TR R ) MEtE 2B FisE  Z5EmT

in which the Group's principal subsidiaries operate, as follows:

Restated

e

2008 2007

—BENEF ZETHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHERT T

Profit before tax AR A 624,983 837,714

Less: share of profits less losses of B E AR R

associates and jointly controlled entities HRZEHIEESFRNER (242,069) (210,820)
382,914 626,894

Calculated at applicable tax rates IRERAMRE 218 73,578 110,184
Change in PRC tax rates due to New CIT Law BRI EE A Bz P B R & - (24,403)
Income not subject to taxation EIBRR 2 A (57,774) (70,612)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes A HFE 2 X 54,690 43313
Tax losses not recognised REERZBIEES 2,461 4,087
Tax expense HREY 72,955 62,569
The weighted average applicable tax rate is 19.2% (2007: 17.6%). The I EMBER 192% (ZFFLF 1 176%) ° B
increase is caused by the change in PRC tax rates due to the New CIT Law. RIBINZ PR RFEBUASI Bl R BB R EBFT

B o
Y2
12.Profit attributable to equity holders 12. RERA ARGERF

The profit attributable to equity holders is dealt with in the financial AR BB R MR 2 AR A A (SR A 4
statements of the Company to the extent of profit of approximately 206,376,000 /8 7T (= F B4 1 1,08427400078 7T * &
HK$206,376,000 (2007: HK$1,084,274,000, including a gain of TR B B AN R B 2 W 821,299,000 78 7 (HiY
HK$821,299,000 arose from the toll roads restructuring (Note 1(iv)). ) - BEAMLTREERE YRS MRE
WARNRNEARIWE 2 RERARBEERER

The parties to the restructuring entered into the transactions at a
nominal consideration whereas the investments, now acquired by A2 A BHMRPIIR) -
the Company upon restructuring, were accounted for on a fair value

basis in the financial statements of the Company).
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13.8REF|

13.Earnings per share

TRIRFEGREARRN FEER N TRERF AR
A AR s N % B BT AR 2 I 10 AR B

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity holders and weighted average

number of shares with adjustments where applicable as follows: (BERTURE)
Restated
LED|
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLHF
Continuing  Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
operations operation operations operation
BEEEER RKRUEREER BESEER KRIELEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
FExT FTHERT TAT THITT
Profit attributable to equity STEERERET
holders for the purpose &
of basic earnings per share bl 463,757 42,104 650,475 39,826
Adjustments arising from FTE KRB R AR EH
all outstanding convertible B SR D
bonds being converted 2 A% - - 2,906 -
Adjusted profit for the purpose SHEGREE R AT
of diluted earings per share 2B RN 463,757 42,104 653,381 39,826
Thousand Thousand Thousand Thousand
Number of shares ROHE TR TR T Tk
Weighted average number of SEERERETNZ
ordinary shares for the purpose LA < Ik
of basic earnings per share TR 1,059,899 1,059,899 1,023,825 1,023,825
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary 1TIEEBARHE N a4
shares from the exercise of AR ESEE
share options and conversion TR S
of convertible bonds o7 - - 12923 12,923
Weighted average number of AEHEREEEAR
ordinary shares for the purpose TR 2 hntE
of diluted eamings per share AR 2K 1,059,899 1,059,899 1,036,748 1,036,748

The share options have no dilutive effect on basic earnings per share

for 2008.

—m Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERAR AT
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14.Dividends 14.RE

2008 2007
=20 —TTLF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FAT FATL

2008 final, proposed, of HK3.0 cents BRRE ST \FRAREER30E(L
(2007 final, paid, of HK5.6 cents) per share (Z2Z+F : ERRBREFR6/5) 32,024 59,778

2008 interim, paid, of HK6.0 cents RZZZNFERF RS TR 6.0

(2007: HK5.4 cents) per share (ZETLF : FR545) 64,048 55923
96,072 115,701

At a meeting held on 23rd April 2009, the board of directors
proposed a final dividend of HK3.0 cents per ordinary share. This

REBENFHA-+=HRTNEFSSHL &
FRHRETREBROBIERARS - EFK
SIARAER SRRV FERTERER P - MEFRE
EERAF A=+ B IEFEARRARE S
MK °

proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these
financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of
retained earnings for the year ending 31st December 2009.

15.Discontinued operation and assets held for sale 15. 8 ILEBERRBFELHEEE

The assets and liabilities related to Jinzheng have been presented BARFRAICERITHALESINRRENEE - WA
BAEBMEERBBEEERELEEERE - X518
FRZZEZNFERNTK °

as held for sale as actions had been initiated prior to year end to
dispose of the operation of the EORR. The transaction is expected to
be completed in 2009.

2008 2007
—®TNE = —TTLH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Discontinued operation R
@) Results @ F&E
Revenue WA 127,905 119,650
Cost of sales $HE AN (66,819) (60,572)
Gross profit EA 61,086 59,078
Other income HAb A 4,609 7179
Other losses HAbEsa (112) (414)
General and adminsitrative expenses —RRITH X (4,701) (4,488)
Profit before tax At A 60,882 61,355
Tax expense FIESZ (12,308) (9,261)
Profit for the year FEZmA 48,574 52,094
Attributable to: EAERF -
Equity holders of the Company RATIERERRAE A 42,104 39,826
Minority interests DER R 6,470 12,268
48,574 52,094
(o) Cash flows b) REm=E
Net cash from operating activities LB SIS F5E 47,374 94,862
Net cash from investing activities WEREMBHESFE 4,593 2,760
Net cash used in financing activities BMEEBMARESFRE (41,511) (153,693)
Total cash inflows/(outflows) LFESRA (L) 10,456 (56,071)
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15. Discontinued operation and assets held for sale (Cont'd) 15. 8 FEBEBRBEFHEEE ()

2008
—EENF
HK$’000
FHET
Assets held for sale BIEHEEE
(@ Assets @ BE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB Ki&E 67,103
Toll road operating right B B e 1,906,679
Trade receivables U E R 77,665
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HibEU TR « 12E RTENEK 40,542
Cash and cash equivalents HERESEEY 284,177
Total assets BEE 2,376,166
(b) Liabilities b BE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIEBFE 55,931
Other payables and accruals H A RIE R IERTE A 26,239
Current tax liabilities BIEAfiB & & 70,229
Total liabilities FEN=L 152,399
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
(¢) Cumulative income or expense © ENEARBEHELEN
recognised directly in equity relating to HEMAEEENERER
disposal group classified as held for sale T P RER R 2EHIRA K S
Foreign exchange translation adjustments PE 5, % 313,570 206,398

—m Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERAR AT



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS AR MY EE

16.Property, plant and equipment 16. 9% - BEREE
Group REE
Leasehold
improvement,
Port Plantand ~ furniture and Motor  Construction
Buildings facilities ~ machinery  equipment vehicles  in progress Others Total
HENE
&6 58
Be  ADRE HERES R AE REIR At it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TEn TER TR TERL TR TERL TR
Cost B
At Tt January 2008 RZEF\E-A-H 842326 674933 1878310 63,055 4,739 112,788 B84 3639995
Exchange differences EXEE 55,989 38,737 110,870 4,146 2,385 8323 1,816 222,266
Additions NE 32,709 351 30,465 12,716 3,926 253471 1,629 335,267
Acquisfion of WENB AR
subsidiaries (Note 37(b)) (HE37) 412,233 - 79,936 47,939 2,563 - - 542,671
Transfers B 7,054 (7,054) 93,090 - - (93,090) - -
Disposals HE (13,554) (40) (2.241) (1,119) (11,951) - (2,880) (31,785)
Classfied as assets held ARARELEEE
for sale (Note 15) (Bzk15) (96,108) - (25,300) (128) (1,839) - (625) (124,000)
At 315t December 2008 W= \E+-A=1-H 1,240,649 706,927 2,165,130 126,609 39,823 281,492 23,784 4,584,414
Accumulated depreciation 2RIE
At Ist January 2008 RZEFN\E-A-H 192446 91,558 642,941 31,062 18986 - 12,185 99,178
Exchange differences EiER 11,668 5,390 38,596 1932 1,029 - 831 59,446
Charge forthe year TEEHE 5971 15,063 133,982 17,008 6,280 - 3,987 222,491
Disposals HeE (4,155) (1) (1,784) (1,020) (10312) - (2,593) (19,875)
Classfied as assets held NEAREIEEE
forsale (Note 15) (RtzE1s) (31,679) - (23839) (78) (1,301) - - (56,897)
At 31t December 2008 R-BENET-A=1-H 214,251 112,000 789,896 49,104 14,682 - 14410 1,194,343
Nethook value REFE
At 315t December 2008 R-BENET=A=1-H 1,026,398 594,927 1,375,234 71,505 25141 281,492 9374 3,390,071
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16.Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d) 16.91% - BER&E (B)
Leasehold
improvement,
Port Plantand ~ fumiture and Motor ~ Construction

Buildings Toll roads faclites  machinery ~ equipment vehicles  inprogress Others Total
HEnZ
%6

BF  WEDR  AORE HRREE  GARRE nE ERIE iy aif

HSOD  HOOO0 RSO0 HOD0 HKSO0 MO0 MO0 MKW LS00
Thn  TEn  TEn  TAn  TEn TR TEr  TEr  TEn

Cost i
At 1t January 2007 RZZ3tE-F-A I 375588 6494 1694473 57549 50702 L) 14890 6962689
Reclssication according wEA (ERyRRLAEZEE)-
toHK(FRICHnt 12 (ote) REZNFNEAR () 836 (2064840) - 20 - - - - (195829
Restated ] 4710 1690997 64964 1716675 57549 50702 B0 14892 500439
Bichange differences EXZE 60399 61015 4183 129876 4 306 5510 1726 3347
Additons % 6667 - 6670 30059 418 2081 70066 78% 130406
Disposalof subsidiaries Note37(c) ~ tHEMBAR (Mik3710) (11316) - - (663) (1.5%) 781 - - (14559)
Tolloads restructuring Note 37() BB (B 370) - (7500 - - (1,192) (47) - - (175763)
Transfers it 51 - - 60% 543 - (66%) - -
Disposals ik (18189) - (4534 (5.533) (650) (6852) - 69 (638
At31st December 2007 RoEE+E{-B=1-R 84230 - 6749 1878310 63055 #4730 112788 BYU 363995
Accumulated depreciation 2RE
At It January 2007 RZF5tE-A-H 133340 4470 73668 475601 1575 21,140 - 90% 1149120
Reclssfication according B (ERe a5 ERRE)-
toHK(FRICHnt 12 (note) REFNFNEAE(H) 21734 (288822) - 16241 - - - - (508)
Restated HET] 155,074 12589 T3668 491862 21575 21,40 - 9%  8BIB
Bichange differences ERzE 12829 4545 6170 414% 1901 1419 - 920 69280
Charge for the year KEFNE 30674 1839 13937 113264 9476 475) - %1959
Disposalof subsidaries Note 37(c) ~ HEMBAR (i33710) (07) - - (47 (860) (299 - - (3580)
Tollvoadsrestuctuing (Note 37d) ~ EANEBRE (i 3700) - (48 - - (439) (2349 - - (56)
Disposals e (6054) - 217) (334 (59 (5680) - B4) (18424
At31t December 2007 R-EE+EL-R=1-R 192446 - 91,558 642041 31062 18986 - 1185 989178
Net hook value FERE
At315t December 2007 W-BEtEL-B=1-R 649880 - S35 1235369 31993 5753 112768 1659 2650817
Note: The infrastructure of the EORR at net book value of HK$1,707,451,000 MisE: IMANES (BB BHREREEZES) -REF 125 - &
was reclassified as toll road operating right upon adoption of HK(IFRIC)- EFE 1,707,451,000 B TTHIINR R B < HIERREED
Int 12 (Note 19). RN EEREERE (M9 -
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16.Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d) 16.91% - BER&ME (&)
Company VN
Leasehold
improvement,
furniture and
equipment Motor vehicles Total
AEMEES -
ERRRE "= a5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FERT FET
Cost 5%
At 1st January 2008 RZZEZTN\F—HA—H 4,195 4,766 8,961
Exchange differences [E 5 =58 257 283 540
Additions INE 176 - 176
Disposals HeE (100) (1,000) (1,100)
At 31st December 2008 R=BBENE+=A=+—H 4,528 4,049 8,577
Accumulated depreciation Z2RITE
At 1st January 2008 RZZEZENF—H—H 2,879 2,349 5,228
Exchange differences PE V=58 180 140 320
Charge for the year REZHTE 658 572 1,230
Disposals = (100) (1,000) (1,100)
At 31st December 2008 R-BENF+=-A=+—H 3,617 2,061 5,678
Net book value REFE
At 31st December 2008 R-BENF+=-A=+—H 911 1,988 2,899
Cost R
At 1st January 2007 RZZEZTtLF—H—H 3,808 4211 8,019
Exchange differences e Z5 284 319 603
Additions NE 103 1,094 1,197
Disposals = - (858) (858)
At 31st December 2007 R-ZEEtE+=A=+—H 4,195 4,766 8,961
Accumulated depreciation ERINE
At Tst January 2007 RZZEZTLF—H—H 1,670 2,623 4293
Exchange differences PEH =58 161 177 338
Charge for the year REETE 1,048 407 1,455
Disposals HE - (858) (858)
At 31st December 2007 R-TBTtE+=-A=+—8H 2,879 2,349 5,228
Net book value BREFE
At 31st December 2007 R-BZEtFE+=-A=+—H 1,316 2417 3,733
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17.Goodwill 17.5H8
2008 2007
—BENFE —ETLHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
At st January ®n—A—H 510,847 586,050
Exchange differences PE 5 ZRE - 806
Toll roads restructuring (Note 37(d)) SHEKEBERE (MFE37d) - (76,009)
At 31st December R+=A=+—8H 510,847 510,847

Goodwill is related to the segment of supply of utilities in the PRC.

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on value-
in-use calculations.

For the segment of supply of utilities, the calculations use budget
for the first year and cash flow projections based on financial
forecast prepared by the management covering the remaining
39-year operating period. The key assumptions include revenue,
cost of raw materials, staff costs and other production costs and
unchanged government supplemental income policy which were
determined by management based on the past performance and its
expectations on market development. The growth rates of revenue
for the CGUs range from 5% to 15% for the next year, 5% to 7% for
the second to fifth year, 5% for the sixth to tenth year and nil for the
years thereafter. The present value of cash flow projections for the
CGUs are calculated by using pre-tax discount rates ranging from
13.8% to 15.2% (2007: 13.1% to 14.8%).

Based on the assessment test of goodwill, in the opinion of the
Directors, no impairment against the Group's goodwill as at 31st
December 2008 is considered necessary.

BN B AR R e A -

ReEEBMNMATREEDREEAEENTEER
METE °

HRERARZENEM S - AENTEERE—F
WIEE KREAEEEUNAR T =T EEEHR
M ETEAMFIENRERERN - TEREZEE
A~ BRI « B TARAREAMAEERA © ARk
BRFHBRARRFRETE - ERERIFBFERAR
HEHMSEENTEARECHEEIERSE - ReEE
BRAIRAKRFEERNTF5% £15%  F_FEFH
FRSNET%  BRNFEFETFR % HEAW -
REeELBMNZRSRERAZABEERN T 13.8%
Z 152% (ZETHF:13.1% & 148%) HIBATHTIR R
FTE

REHHENIR  EFARBRAUAEEN T
NE+Z A=+ —ROEEELRERE
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18.Leasehold land and land use rights

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent

prepaid operating lease payment as follows:

18. HE T T b fE A

SFIRMT:

REBPAEE -3 % 3t MR iR TR R S

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET AT
In the PRC, held on: RHBE - ATFARIFE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years NF10ES0FMHEE 1,045,854 797,549
In Hong Kong, held on: REE - LT REA -
Leases over 50 years RS0 FREE 374,558 =
1,420,412 797,549
2008 2007
—EENF —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT BT
At 1st January nR—HA—H 797,549 761,516
Exchange differences MEH =5 53,644 57,391
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37(b)) W BT B A R] (FI3E37(b)) 745,304 =
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 37(c)) HEH B AR (HI5E37(0) - (2,076)
Impairment loss (note) SEEE (MiFE) (150,000) -
Amortisation ey (26,085) (19,282)
At 31st December R+=A=+—8~ 1,420,412 797,549
Note: Bt 5 -

—BEUREBNRE LR - FEN\FE A=+ — B @B
TABREERG B FTERATDETHE - HENH2
ERBEZ TR S RARMRATERT -

A leasehold land situated in Hong Kong was revalued at 31st December 2008
by independent professionally qualified valuer, Knight Frank Petty Limited.
Valuation was based on market value basis, by reference to comparable
market transactions for similar assets and on the basis of capitalisation of net
income for the relevant leasehold land.

150,000,000 % T B0 (BB 18 B iER - @2 E A ARE
BEEEAINEE (BTE R BEREEXA) —2

Impairment loss of HK$150 million was recognised to bring the carrying value
of the leasehold land to its recoverable amount which is its fair value less
costs to sell.
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19.Toll road operating right 19. REBERKER

Restated

e

2008 2007

—EENF —ETF

HK$’000 HKS'000

FE T T

At 1st January n—HA—H 1,815,640 1,707,451
Exchange differences b = %A 110,981 125,250
Amortisation 5 (19,942) (17,061)
Classified as assets held for sale (Note 15) DEEAEFEHEEE (Mi:E15) (1,906,679) -
At 31st December R+-=BA=+—H - 1,815,640

Toll road operating right represents the operating right in EORR
located in Tianjin. The operating right will expire in 2027, extension
of the operating right could be applied to Tianjin Municipal
Government three years before expiration.

W BB SRR N IR INRIR IR L2 HE - B
EERBR 202738 BERELHR - FEEE
HmAl =S MRR M BUFIR I RE

20.Interest in subsidiaries 20. AMIB A Bl R
2008 2007
—EENE —TTF
HK$'000 HKS'000
FET FAIT
Unlisted investments, at cost JEEMIRE (FRAKAK) 4,278,569 4,031,729
Advances to subsidiaries BRTFHEBAR 4,585,810 3,485,593
8,864,379 7,517,322

The advances to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free except
for the amount of approximately HK$750,495,000 (2007: Nil) which
carries interest rates ranging from 1.57% to 5.31% and have no fixed
repayment terms.

Details of principal subsidiaries, which in the Directors’ opinion,
materially affect the results and/or net assets of the Group at 31st
December 2008 are set out in note 43.

BHRTHER R AEER - 8 FR%750,495000/% 7T

el

EERA/UAEBMZEER SR FENF+=A

=T —RZREEBKEAYEZ T EMB AR 2
BT 43 ©
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21.Interest in associates 21.ABE A RS
Group Company
A5EE NG|
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EZN\E ZETHE —BEN\F —ZTE
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET AT T BT
Group’s share of net assets AEEEEFEE
~ Listed shares in Hong Kong of ~HERELTZ
Dynasty Fine Wines Group THEXEEERAR
Limited (‘Dynasty’) ((E2EN ) 775,321 697,187 - -
~ Listed shares in Hong Kong of ~HERELTZ
Wah Sang Gas Holdings ERMRERER AT
Limited ("Wah Sang") (note (i) (TEEL4 ) BRAD (PR () 158,261 158,261 - -
~ Unlisted shares of Otis Elevator —BHEER(PE)
(China) Investment Company REARNR ([ RAET
Limited (“Otis China") ) 2 I TR 479,521 412,523 - -
— Other unlisted shares (note (i) —Et3E EmRRA (HIRE i) 335,508 267,770 206,796 194,865
1,748,611 1,535,741 206,796 194,865
Impairment of investment REL 7 BRERE
in Wah Sang (note (i)) (K= ) (158,261) (158,261) - -
1,590,350 1,377,480 206,796 194,865
Market value of listed shares EiRHpTE
- Dynasty —FEEE 647,280 1,729,800 - -
- Wah Sang — 4 Notel(i) Note(i) - -
BHEE (i) g - -
Notes: Bt e -

(i)  The unaudited financial statements of Wah Sang for the nine months
ended 31st December 2008 was published in February 2009. Provision
for impairment of investment in Wah Sang of HK$158,261,000 had been
made due to the equity holders’ deficit of Wah Sang as at 31st December
2008. As of the date of this report, the trading of its shares remained
suspended. Wah Sang is continuing its business operations and actively

seeking a resumption of trading of its shares.

(i) Other unlisted shares include approximately HK$202,098,000 (2007:
HK$192,638,000) representing the Group's investment in 40% equity

interest of Golden Horse Resources Limited.

() ELBE_TZENF+-_A=t—BUINABAZREE
BMBERERER-ETNEFE_AQH ERELR_-F
TN\F+ZA=+—AZESHEAEE  BRELY
KA B FHERERE L 158,261,000 T - BZEAHRE R
B RMDREEEE - ELRBHEEEE - WEK

FREEBHEE -

(i) AEEHEAIE EHRG 21E49202,098000F T (ZFF
4 : 192,638,000 #7T) + HEE R Golden Horse Resources
Limited 40% AR ANz 218 E ©
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21.Interest in associates (Cont’d) 21. A& A R RER ()
Interest in associates as at 31st December 2008 included goodwill REZZZNF+ZA=1+—8 ' REERRZEDE
of HK$4,072,000 (2007: HK$4,107,000). Share of associates’ taxation FERTE 4,072,000 7T (ZTZ L4 © 4,107,00087T) °
for the year ended 31st December 2008 of HK$83,810,000 (2007: HEZTT ) \F+ZA=1+—HILFE ' BHBER
HK$56,860,000) are included in the consolidated income statement A){1E 83,810,000 7T (ZFZE 4 : 56,860,000 % 7T)
as share of profits of associates. BEIIERE(LEE S AR FT ASRAEBEK °
The Group's interest in its associates is as follows: AEENHBERRNERIT

Profit/(loss) % interest
attributable attributable

Assets Liabilities Revenues to the Group to the Group
TEBEEMN rEH
Name =18 BE =R WA SEFR(ER) FEfhfER
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 %
FET FE T FET FET
2008 —ZETNF
Otis China Cdspliifes 1,414,619 935,098 2,309,828 184,108 16.55
Dynasty BN 965,061 189,740 609,937 64,128 44.82
Others Al 1,010,876 679,440 279,527 4,910
3,390,556 1,804,278 3,199,292 253,146
2007 —EEF
Otis China BEyHTHR 1,381,323 968,800 1,867,453 159,293 16.55
Dynasty FEAEZE 837,147 139,960 503,475 56,576 4482
Others Hth 966,411 702,748 213,669 4,782
3,184,881 1,811,508 2,584,597 220,651
There is no contingent liability relating to the Group's interest in the REBREE AR ERSIESIARE  BEARA
associates, and no contingent liability of the associates themselves. SIMESABLE o
Details of associates, which in the Directors’ opinion, materially affect EERBHALEZEER /SR _TEN\F+ A
the results and/or net assets of the Group at 31st December 2008 =T —RAZFEEBRERTE ZMERNTZFIEH
are set out in note 44. BT FE44
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22.Interest in jointly controlled entities

2. AHEEFIEEES

2008 2007

—SENFE - TTLF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAIT

Group's share of net assets AEEELFEE 1,395,174 764,181
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity FEUR— R A B2 I E g8 58 80,346 =
1,475,520 764,181

Amount due from a jointly controlled entity is unsecured, interest
bearing at LIBOR + 1.5% and repayable in 2013.

The Group's interest in its jointly controlled entities, all of which are

unlisted, is as follows:

R —RERNEFIE BRI AEER - R HIZERITRE
¥R BN 15%FHE, W 2013 F(EE -

THRAKERNKRAEHER (2ERIFLT) M

B

Net loss

Current Non-current Current Non-current attributable

Assets Assets  Liabilities  Liabilities Revenues to the Group

AEEERL

RBEE FRBEE RBEE FRBDEE WA ERFE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

T TET FET TET AR TR

As at 31st December 2008 R-ZENF+=-A=+—H 137,106 2,781,406 819,760 703,578 312,057 (11,077)
As at 31st December 2007 R-ZZ+F+-A=1+—H 177,790 812,865 226,461 13 124,444 (9,831)
There is no contingent liability relating to the Group's interest in the REBRHAEZEHEROESMEIAGE - LREE

jointly controlled entities, and no contingent liability of the jointly

controlled entities themselves.

Details of the principal jointly controlled entities are set out in note
45.

HEEAFIRERAREE -

Annual Report 2008 —Z& )\ FF R m_



Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R MY EE

23. Available-for-sale financial assets 3. M HEMKEE

2008 2007

—EENE 2T

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FET THET

At st January w—HA—H 107,117 108,161
Exchange differences b W =5 6,536 8,195
Additions NE 40,053 345
Impairment loss HEEE (25,253) =
Disposals e - (9,584)
At 31st December W+=-—A=+—H 128,453 107,117
Market value of listed shares Rz HE 14,800 -

The available-for-sale financial assets are principally unlisted equity
in certain entities established and operating in the PRC. They are

mainly denominated in Renminbi.

During the year, the Group acquired listed shares at a cost of
approximately HK$40 million. Based on the market price as at 31st

December 2008, the Group has recorded an impairment loss of

AHEENBEELTERETERIREENETE
BAOZE Lk - TRUAARKIIE -

FR - AR S B U K AN 4940,000,0007%8 7T 2 T A%
B BRBER-ZZEZENF+-A=+—HNTBER

REFE RS 1B RIS 4 25,000,000 B TTHYRE

approximately HK$25 million to the consolidated income statement. &8 -
24.Inventories 24.778
2008 2007
—EBENF —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABT
Raw materials FEAE 5,702 5,863
Work in progress RS 69 47
Finished goods RN A 260 250
Consumable stocks HEFE 4,306 938
10,337 7,098

25.Amounts due from/to associates, jointly controlled
entities and ultimate holding company

The balances are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed repayment
terms and are mainly denominated in Renminbi.

As at 31st December 2008 and 2007, all the receivable balances

were fully performing.

25. Bl EABENT  HEEZEFEERE

RERDTRE

LG AELN - R NTEEFEEFY X2

AAREIIE

R-BP \FR-FTLE+=A=+—A  HEH

TNRKFIRISE TR R -
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26.Amounts due from/(to) related companies, a minority 26.JEW (B BEAT » —PBRER

shareholder and investee companies EZRENRRE
2008 2007
—EENEF —ETAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET BT

Amounts due from related companies FEUSEEE A RIFIR 13,000 21,748

Amounts due from investee companies (note (i) FEWZIHE N TIFZIA (FIEE (i) 162,036 127,738

Amounts due to related companies FEfTRE A R FIE (218,329) (141,852)

Amounts due to a minority shareholder JE—{L DB AR R Il (1,079) (16,894)

Notes: B aE:

(i) All the balances are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed repayment () FTEREBAERIR RERTEETEEFH 2N
terms and are mainly denominated in Renminbi. All the receivable ARBIIE R_ZBZNFR_BZLF+_A=+—
balances were fully performing as at 31st December 2008 and 2007. B FAREAESREOE TE2EH -

(i) The amounts due from investee companies are of good credit quality (i) BREZRERAZKERIENRBIEFEZR TR
in view of their operational profitability and sufficiency of cash for BE  BRZREARNBAERIZEEER -
settlement.

27.Trade receivables, other receivables, deposits and 27.EINER - HEWFIE - RERFERLR
prepayments

Group Company
rEE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE —ETEF —EEN\F —ETHF
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT FET T
Trade receivables FEE R
Fully performing (note (i)) TEEA (FIFE @) 445,129 525,389 - =
Past due but notimpaired (note (i)) B EB ARBIE (B EE (i) 310,900 188,789 - -
Impaired (note (iii)) 2IRVE (MR (i) 76,000 94323 - -
Trade receivables - gross NS - s 832,029 808,501 - =
Less: provision for impairment B R E RS (76,000) (94,323) - =
Trade receivables - net (note (iv))  EUWE R - /F58 (FTEE (v) 756,029 714,178 - -
Other receivables, deposits H e U FoE
and prepayments (note (v)) B RFENAE (HE W) 231,028 432,739 7,002 26,929
987,057 1,146,917 7,002 26,929
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27.Trade receivables, other receivables, deposits and
prepayments (Cont’d)

Notes:

(0]

(ii)

The various group companies have different credit policies which are
dependent on the requirements of the markets and the businesses
which they operate. In general, credit periods of about 30 to 90 days
are granted to customers of the segment of port services and credit
periods of 30 to 180 days are granted to corporate customers of the
Group's hotels in the segment of commercial properties. No credit terms
are granted to customers of the segments of supply of utilities and
operation of toll roads.

As at 31st December 2008, the Group was entitled to government
supplemental income of HK$321,125,000 (2007: HK$285,288,000) which
is receivable from the Finance Bureau of TEDA as referred to in note 2(u)
(v). Annual supplemental income receivable does not have credit terms
and the amount of which is to be finalised by the Finance Bureau after
year end. Continuous settlements have been received by the Group in
the past years.

Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired relate to a wide
range of customers and management believes that no impairment
provision is necessary as there has not been a significant change in the
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

27. BRER - HtbEWRTE - RERFAARK
(&)

P aE:

() SEAZRABHFTETROEERE ST RELS
MMSEEEBREME - —RM = BTEARBDE
EEMEESNG 30 RE 0 X ATHEFHES TR
REEENEEEFNEERMLR30REI0K ° Kk
B S TIREARRERELREERIENEFE
{8 -

RZTEENF+-_A=+—"8B AEEEHERXZE
5 2% & B R B BAS B A 2(u) (v) BT it 2 TR 7S # B MR A
321,125,000/ 70 ( =T Z 4 : 2852880008 7T) ° F/E
FERHBBRAN EEER - MRENSBEERTVED
RELEEZME - AEBEEBEFEFERTFEIRA S
gﬁ °

iy BHERREZEEERERZESERM  BNMERE
RWEEANE - BEKDEAAN 2 RE - WER
EBARELRERZSFRIELRERE - ZFRKER
ZIRERDITIAT

2008 2007
—EEN\F —TTAF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHET FAET

Within 30 days 30 KR 219,711 111,389

31 to 90 days 31 RENK 34,366 20,931

91 to 180 days 91 XE 180K 17,769 14,799
Over 180 days B3 180 K 39,054 41,670
310,900 188,789

(iiiy As at 31st December 2008, trade receivables of HK$76,000,000 (2007: (il R=ZZZNF+=A=+—0 ' EIKEZ76,000000% T

HK$94,323,000) were impaired. The age and settlement track record of
individual receivables are considered in the review for their impairment.

The ageing of these receivables is as follows:

(ZZTE4 £ 94,323,000/87T) ERIE ° RREHE R EK

FBZRER - EZEIIERR R

FEMGRIE 2 BRER AN

RS - %%

2008 2007

—BENF —TTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHT

Within 30 days 30RIAA - 1,164
31 to 90 days 31 REOXR 19 169
91 to 180 days 91 RE 180K 1 342
Over 180 days A 180 K 75,980 92,648
76,000 94,323
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27.Trade receivables, other receivables, deposits and 27. BE R - HttEWRIE - HERBEARK

prepayments (Cont’d) (#&)
Notes: (Cont'd) BsE (&)
(iii) (Cont'd) (i) (%)
Movements on the provision for impairment of trade receivables are as B REREEEST
follows:
2008 2007
—sTNE B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHET
At 1st January W—A—H 94,323 74,712
Exchange differences [ 5 =58 5,550 6,012
Provision made in the year FRNEE 23,040 16,392
Write off against receivables FE ORI i B (46,913) (2,793)
At 31st December W+—_A=+—8 76,000 94,323
The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have 2R A FEBGRIRRTIE R bR 2 B B st ABaERR 2
been included in general and administrative expenses in the income —RRITRX M - REERTFHRNSE - RREHT
statement. Amounts charged to the provision account are generally BRI EEINR S o
written off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.
(iv) The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables (net of provisions) is (v) AEEEREROREBER) ZREATIAT -
as follows:
2008 2007
—EENF L
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHT
Within 30 days 30 RAA 505,666 503,446
31 to 90 days 3T REIOKXR 54,637 32,768
91 to 180 days 91 RE 180K 18,447 14,814
Over 180 days i@ 180 K 177,279 163,150
756,029 714,178
(v) As at 31st December 2008 and 2007, all other receivables and deposits v RZZEZENELR_ZTTtF+-_A=+—H  FiEHM
were fully performing. BRHEBERZEHETEREL
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other receivables and EWER - i EREIE MRe 2 REEEE AR E
deposits approximate their fair value and are mainly denominated HE  TEUAREYE - RIRERH - BRSHR
in Renminbi. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting BiEERER 7 EUGIRRREE o bR B AR AT
date is the carrying value of the receivable mentioned above. Except BIRASN - AEENESEETOEERR - T ER
for the government supplemental income receivable, the Group has BERBERERZ R -

no significant concentrations of credit risk and does not hold any

collateral as security.
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28.Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 8. BAARBEERBERIIRNIEEE

2008 2007

—EENE —ETF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAIT

Listed shares in Hong Kong ESza A il 5,633 15,091

Listed shares in the PRC R E_E Rk 37 13,813

Unlisted funds in the PRC HEZE LM ES 467,033 277,513

472,703 306,417

Market values of listed shares LWkt 2z mE 5,670 28,904

The balances are denominated in Renminbi except for ZEERAAREESIE © 14563300087 (ZFF
approximately HK$5,633,000 (2007: HK$15,091,000) is denominated +4 : 15,091,000 7T) LA TTHI(E ©

in Hong Kong dollars.

The fair value of all listed shares are based on their current bid prices in B LTk 2 AR BEREENERTIS 2 ERFE
active markets. The fair value of unlisted funds are based on their net asset BEE - FLEMESZ AN BERBEREGHEE
values quoted by the relevant investment trust/securities companies. Bt/ BHFARTHRZEEFETE -

29.Cash and cash equivalents and time deposits with . RERFAEEEYR=ERA A LIHNE

maturity over three months BMEXK
Group Company
S 3] /N
2008 2007 2008 2007
—BENF —ETLEF —BENE —EEAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET THET TAT
Cash at bank and in hand PITRFERS 1,674,670 2,193,298 41,100 20,100
Time deposits in bank with =18 A AR EIHRE)
maturity less than three months SBITEEIER 89,776 438,054 46,366 61,537
Balances with other REA S RIS
financial institutions ZER 80,870 24,489 18,008 -
Cash and cash equivalents e MBRLEEY 1,845,316 2,655,841 105,474 81,637
Time deposits in bank with =1 A LA - BIHAHY
maturity over three months RITEHIFR 935,525 580,341 28,798 14,002
Time deposits in other financial =B A L2IHH
institutions with maturity HAth s
over three months TEHFER 17,290 - - -
Time deposits with maturity =B A LBIHARY
over three months EHER 952,815 580,341 28,798 14,002
2,798,131 3,236,182 134,272 95,639
Maximum exposure to creditrisk  BAS RS EEER 2,797,180 3,235,958 134,259 95,619
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and time RekReSEMR=(EA K 2N T BEROER
deposits with maturity over three months approximate their fair HERAARBERE - TRUARKIIE -
value and are mainly denominated in Renminbi.
The effective interest rates on cash at bank and time deposits in RITRE RRITEIFRZBRFMENT 030% =
bank range from 0.30% to 5.85% per annum (2007: 0.72% to 4.14% 5.85% (ZFTLF + FRRNF 0729% = 414%) - it
per annum); these deposits have maturity from 6 to 365 days. SHEHZBBENT6RESK ©
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30.Share capital 30. R A

Number of shares

R EE
thousands HK$'000
TFhx 5T
At 1st January 2007 RZZEZT+F—HF—H 982,438 98,244
Conversion of convertible bonds (note (a)) SBR[ ES (Mt () 51,282 5128
Exercise of share options (note (c)) TTEREARHRE (B EE (0 1,900 190
At 31st December 2007 R-_EE+F+_HA=+—H 1,035,620 103,562
Issue of shares (Note 39(ii)) BT (BTRE 39(i) 31,850 3,185
At 31st December 2008 RZZZNF+=A=1+—H 1,067,470 106,747

The authorised share capital of the Company is HK$300,000,000,
comprising 3,000 million shares (2007: 3,000 million shares) with a
par value of HK$0.10 per share (2007: HK$0.10 per share). All issued

shares are fully paid.

(@) On 19th December 2005, the Group issued zero coupon

convertible bonds with an aggregate principal amount of
HKS$400 million (which was subsequently changed to RMB400
million on 28th December 2006) (the “Bonds”). On 2nd February,
6th March and 7th May 2007, holders of the Bonds with face
value of RMB200 million exercised their option to convert the
Bonds into shares of the Company by subscribing for a total of
51,282,049 new shares of the Company at HK$3.9 each.

The Company had an equity settled share option scheme (the
"Old Scheme”) approved in an extraordinary general meeting on
22nd November 1997. The Old Scheme was terminated on 25th
May 2007 but the share option granted continued to be valid
and exercisable until the expiration of the share options on 21st
November 2007.

The Company has adopted an equity settled share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) on 25th May 2007 under which
the Directors may, at their discretion and within 10 years from
the approval date, offer to grant options to the participants
pursuant to the criteria set out in the New Scheme. The
Company operates the New Scheme for the purpose of
providing the Company with a flexible means of giving
incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/
or providing benefits to the participants. The total number of
shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the New Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares of the Company

AN/
H010B T (=F

A Z A T AR & 300,000,000 7T © B &AL E
THE: FREE 0108 T) &

3,000,000,000 f% (ZZZ+4F : 3,000,000,000 A% ) #A5K °
FIEEBITROHBEERE -

(@)

RZZTRF+_A+NAB FEEHTAS
4 /5400,000,000 8T (HER BT RE+ =
B =+ /\ B &K A K% 400,000,000 7T ) 2 Z%
EABRRES ([EF])  RZETLF_A=
H -ZAXNABERAALH: HEEEAARE
200,000,000 JTZ EHFFFHE ATERERISES K%
RARBRG » WIRERIBTARBAR
51,282,049 A& #TAR ©

l:|/\

RABREUBRAEE 2 BRE S (&5
g BEER—NNAEF+ AT RET
ZBRFRIAE LR - BFFEIER T
FRAZTHBKLE - ERTRE 2 BRED R
BEBI AT TIATE - EEBBER T LF
+-ﬂ:+—5@ﬁ2%ﬂ: ©

ARNAR =TT F A A=+ 7 B RN AL

B BRESE([FEE ] Bt EFAH
B HEE B HR1& B - ARSRFT 5t B AT &L 2 16
1¢ﬁ/,\/\t§%@#ﬁﬁ%m& RNABIHELTHT
T8l - BEARNR TR AT E L - ALK
By B3R - B - W R SIRMER T 2R
& o BITERIBF T8 R AN D BME(A E A BE AR AE
ST TR 2 A BARE M Al 817 2 ifn 42
- SHTRBBAARMENTEE BERET
A&t 42 10% ° ETTREREF T8 R AR RME
] EL B AR 51 B B 452 1 1 AR AT (68 2 BB AR AEE
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30.Share capital (Cont’d)

(b) (Contd)

—m Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERAR AT

in issue as at the date of approval of the New Scheme. The
maximum number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the New Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue from time to
time. The subscription price shall be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet (the “Daily Quotation”) on the date of
grant; (i) the average of the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Daily Quotation for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (i) the nominal value of a
share. The cash consideration payable for each grant is HKS1.
The life of the New Scheme will expire on 24th May 2017.

On 19th December 2007, 11,900,000 share options were
offered to Directors and employees and accepted by them on
17th January 2008, with an exercise price of HK$8.04 and are
exercisable from 17th January 2008 to 24th May 2017.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding during
the year are as follows:

Average exercise
price in HKS per share

30. BR A (48)
(b) (#&)

ARITZRNEE - A ETBBBTHEETR
DHBEZ 30% ° REBBEZE DR ()RR B H
RETEARER ([FRREX D A2 BHKT
B () BEEFE RS AEALEASRRERM
51| 2 B URTI{E RO SF 9 f84% © R (i) —RRAR(R 2
B UEeERE - BESHNERERNZRE
RERIBIT - FET B2 BN T —+F
AAZtTHEER °

RZZEZTLF+=A+NE
BE#%) 11900000 B - HER_ZTN\EF
— ATt REAZERERE  ZERREZITE
B4 04Tt RZEEN\F—A+LtRAE_Z
—tFH A=+ B EE T o

TEBREERE

@ FA - HATEBRERE 2ZSHMT

2008
= e

2007
—ETE
Average exercise
price in HKS per share

Number of options Number of options

BRRHB2FITHE Bk FEEE

BT BRELE BT ElkEZ
At 1st January w—F—H - 3.100 4400000
Granted BRI 8.04 11,900,000 =
Exercise (note(i) [y - 3.100 (1,900,000)
Lapsed BAMK 8.04 (1,100,000) 3.100 (2,500,000)
At 315t December W+=R=1+—H 10,800,000 -
() From 11th to 21st May 2007, options for 1,900,000 shares ) RZZEZLFRA+—HEZE=+—8"

were exercised at the price of HK$3.1 each. The related
weighted average closing share price at the date of
exercise was HK$7.84 per share.

1,900,000 A& A% 10 2 B AR 1R AR 3.1 B2
ERETE - RITEEHE - BEZ’RMD N
T E BT 7.84 BT ©
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31.Reserves 31.f#E
Group REE
Share
based
Capital Share  General Statutory payment Exchange Retained
reserve premium  reserve  reserves  reserve  reserve  earnings Total
URBAH
BARE ROBE -REFE LTRHE ERNIR ERRE REERA &t
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TAr TEx THzx TEx TEx TExn TExn TEx
At 1st January 2007 “TTtH—-f—H 9338 4,624,860 87,389 238418 2377 331,058 1514205 6,807,645
Issue of shares #1lktn
— Conversion of S APy
convertible bonds B5 - 209,581 - - - - - 209,581
~ Exercise of share options ~{TE R - 5,700 - - - - - 5,700
Profit for the year ERRF - - - - - - 690301 690301
Dividends e, = = = = = - (103562  (103,562)
Transfers b - - - 53,848 - (53849)
Share based payments PARR R BT R 3 - - - - 1836 - - 1836
Currency translation differences EBHMEZEE
- Group -£8 - - - - - 08 - 2108
— Associates NN = = - - - 83448 - 83448
— Jointly controlled entities -HREHEE - - - - - 4730 - 4730
At 31st December 2007 —TT+F+-A=1-H 9,338 4,840,141 87,389 292,266 4213 840,254 2,047,096 8,120,697
Issue of shares BIIRG - 164,346 - - - - - 164,346
Profit for the year FERT - - - - - - 505861 505,861
Dividends RE, - - - - - - (123,827) (123,827)
Transfers R - - - 72,886 - - (72,886) -
Share based payments MR BERB N
- Group -£§ - - - - 29702 - - 29702
- Associates -BE N - - - - 2,987 - - 2987
Transfer upon lapse of share options PR B AR & Sk i - - - - (3,068) - 3,068 -
Currency translation differences ERhEEE
- Group -£§ - - - - - 296,423 - 296,423
- Associates N YN - - - - - 79,641 - 79641
~ Jointly controlled entities - R EE - - - - - 72,259 - 72,259
At 31st December 2008 —EZ\F+=-A=1+-H 9,338 5,004,487 87,389 365,152 33,834 1,288,577 2,359,312 9,148,089
2008 proposed final dividend “ZT\FEEAERS 32,024
Balance after 2008 TG \5Ex
proposed final dividend KRB HEH 9,116,065
9,148,089

R EH AN B RRER BT & 2R B HREHE R R 218
185 7l 5616860000 7T (ZZZH4F : 5340930007%7T)
1523090007870 (ZFZH4F : 43337,000787T) © ANEE
2 B EAMEEINAR R R B A R Z ISR
}E o

Retained earnings attributable to associates and accumulated losses
attributable to jointly controlled entities amounts to HK$616,860,000
(2007: HK$534,093,000) and HK$52,309,000 (2007: HK$43,337,000)
respectively. All other reserves of the Group are dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

%E%ﬁ&—%%ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ%$E@WF“ﬂz
o B BRI TR T2 GG - BRI AL
/)f@?ﬁﬁﬁﬂx,% °

Statutory reserves and general reserves are reserves required by the
relevant PRC laws applicable to the Group's subsidiaries and cannot
be used for distribution in the form of cash dividends.

Annual Report 2008 —Z& )\ FF R E_



Notes to the Financial Statements

Br RS R MY EE

31.Reserves (Cont'd) 31. 7% (&)

According to the articles of association of each of the Group's BB EBIER B 2 B AR 2 B ER4RA
subsidiaries established in the PRC, a percentage, as stated in the FEHRBEVEEREB RZ2RNAN N EEE Dt (A
articles of association or as approved by the board of directors of the ERMAMSIKMB ARz ESSHEZE D) A
subsidiaries, of net profit as reported in the PRC statutory accounts BARBEREOXEERES BRRAEERE) o 18
must be appropriated to reserve fund and enterprise expansion BAEOLBEEMNBARMNESENEETE - FES
reserve, both of which are classified under statutory reserves. The ATAEEREREER - MeXEERESTRERRA
percentage of appropriation is determined at the discretion of the ERBSIEINER »

board of directors of the respective subsidiaries. The reserve fund
can be used to set off accumulated losses whilst the enterprise
expansion reserve can be used for expansion of production facilities
or increase in capital.

Company AATFE
Share based
Share payment Exchange Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
DR E
RIDEE  EEHAR B iR REEF L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THEx TET THT TET
At 1st January 2007 R-EZt+F—F—H 4,624,860 - 261,667 216,284 5102811
Issue of shares -G
~ Conversion of convertible bonds - BB ES 209,581 = = = 209,581
— Exercise of share options ~{T{EBE AR 5,700 = = = 5,700
Profit for the year EREF - = - 1,084,274 1,084,274
Dividends s - - - (103,562) (103,562)
Currency translation differences e - - 429,062 - 429,062
At 31t December 2007 RIEZLF+-A=+—H 4,840,141 - 690,729 1,196,996 6,727,866
Issue of shares BITIRG 164,346 - - - 164,346
Profit for the year EERF - - - 206,376 206,376
Dividends s, - - - (123,827) (123,827)
Share based payments PARRAD BB RE 3R - 28,391 - - 28,391
Transfer upon lapse of share options (R B& A A Sk S 7 - (3,068) - 3,068 -
Currency translation differences BRnEEE - - 420,772 - 420,772
At 31st December 2008 RZZZ\F+=A=+—H 5,004,487 25,323 1,111,501 1,282,613 7,423,924
2008 proposed final dividend T )\FEERARS 32,024
Balance after 2008 proposed NG -2 \FiEz
final dividend R BB AR 7,391,900
7,423,924
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32.Borrowings 32.f68
Group Company
rEE AN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—ZEZEN —EEL —Z2EN —EZL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET BT FHET BT
Non-current FEENER
Bank borrowings RITIEE
~ Unsecured — EAEHR 2,557,349 1,245,580 1,417,099 855,580
Current BNER
Short term bank borrowings R HISRITEE
- Unsecured — B 33,389 58,389 33,389 58,389
Loans from a minority RE—BLHKRE
shareholder (note) K E R (I E) - 165,447 - =
33,389 223,836 33,389 58,389
Total borrowings (R Eaks] 2,590,738 1,469,416 1,450,488 913,969
The carrying amounts of all bank borrowings approximate their fair FrERTEEZEREEEERA A BERE °
values.
Note: HzE :
Loans from a minority shareholder were unsecured, had no fixed terms of RE—BLERENEFAERR « BB T E K MR
repayment and carried interest at 6.4% per annum. Interest payable totalling FEHR64%ETE o JENF B AEZE20,349,000/8 T E B ER
HK$20,349,000 was subsequently reversed in 2008 (Note 7). ZET ) \FHEE (7))
The maturity of bank borrowings is as follows: SRITIEE ZEMERNT ¢
Group Company
rEE PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
=—ZEEN —TEL —=2EN —EZL
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T BT FHET AT
Bank borrowings: RITEE :
Within one year —FR 33,389 58,389 33,389 58,389
In the third to fifth years F=FZFRF
inclusive (BERMEBEERN) 2,557,349 1,245,580 1,417,099 855,580
2,590,738 1,303,969 1,450,488 913,969
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32.Borrowings (Cont'd) 32.fBE (&)

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the BEEMREEN T EB5)E :
following currencies:

Group Company
rEE N
2008 2007 2008 2007
—=EN =T+ —EEN —EEL
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAIT FET FAIT
Bank borrowings: RITEE -
US dollar e 23,250 = - =
HK dollar BIT 2,567,488 1,303,969 1,450,488 913,969
2,590,738 1,303,969 1,450,488 913,969
Loans from a minority RE—RDHIRER
shareholder: B
Renminbi AR - 165,447 - =
2,590,738 1469416 1,450,488 913,969
The effective interest rates of bank borrowings at the balance sheet REER  RITEEZBRAEMAT
date are as follows:
Group Company
rEE NG|
2008 2007 2008 2007
—=Z2N =T+ =EEN e
% % % %
Bank borrowings: RITEE :
US dollar e 2.01 N/A N/A N/A
INigE A FiE A iE A
HK dollar BT 2.37 4.20 3.57 426
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33.Deferred taxation 33 RERIE
Restated
L&D
2008 2007
—EENFE —ERF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET T
Deferred tax assets: EEFIHEE
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered after — R+ =@ A&
more than 12 months ZIEERIHE = 129,395 26,759
Deferred tax liabilities: RERIARE ¢
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after —#BR+ZERAEEEZ
more than 12 months FERIEE E (90,769) (45,258)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be settled within —#BR+ZEAREEZ
12 months FERIEE E - (12,4006)
(90,769) (57,664)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) — net EIERIBEE (BF)F58 38,626 (30,905)

EREBERAAEERGHMNEAREREEER K
EEAEZHFMER 2HE (NEEAERMRE
B ER B -

Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under
the liability method using tax rates of the relevant subsidiaries
applicable to the period when the asset is expected to be realised
or the liability to be settled, based on tax rates that have been
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

BAREERN A AT E R T A A F R
5 - MEER IR A B SR IE A B B I [F — 5

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally

enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax

liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to AR - —RERB ARSI R ERT AR AR
income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either the REELOF RS - BIR] R R IR & B BRI B (R
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention B R -

to settle the balances on a net basis.

BIETIRAR B 2 REFENT

The net movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

2008 2007

—EENEF —ETLF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET R

At 1st January n—HA—8 (30,905) (88,836)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 37(b)) U RE R A ) (T 5E 37(b)) (27,772) =

Toll roads restructuring (Note 37(d)) SR E B (T 37d) - 53,520

Transfer from/(to) tax payable wEa (2) ENTRIE 5,078 (11,701)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to income statement  ZEIBaSBRET A/ (F0BR ) HYEEFEIE

Continuing operations (Note 11) HELEES (M) 45,924 20,382

Discontinued operation IR EET (4,651) =

Exchange differences PEH =58 (4,979) (4,270)

Classified as assets held for sale (Note 15) DEAFHIEHEEE (Mt 15) 55,931 -

At 315t December R+=ZA=+—H 38,626 (30,905)
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33.Deferred taxation (Cont'd) 33 EREBIIE (&)
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, B IEEERABRFR 2 Z8) CREF RN ER &
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within TREAEHZ SR AT

the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities BEEBEEE
Accelerated Accrued Revaluation of
depreciation income property Total
R E FEGTIBA B &t
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET TET
At Tst January 2007 RZEZLF—-F—H 73,879 49,871 5,290 129,040
Toll roads restructuring BHRREER (53,520) = = (53,520)
Transfer from/(to) tax payable A /(2)ENTE 28,774 (11,593) (5,480) 11,701
Deferred tax charged to B RIRE
income statement (note) ERERIE (P 3E) 368 10,360 = 10,728
Exchange differences BEHER 4,564 3,632 190 8,386
At 31st December 2007 RZZEZ+F+-A=+—H 54,065 52,270 - 106,335
Acquisition of subsidiaries i) =NG|
(Note 37(b)) (FH5E 37()) 3,646 - 132,423 136,069
Transfer to tax payable HEREENTIE (5,078) - - (5,078)
Deferred tax charged/(credited) EBRENGR/ (GIA) K
to income statement (note) RIERA (F) 4,651 (19,121) (26,740) (41,210)
Exchange differences EHER 3,306 3,027 3,230 9,563
Classified as assets held for NEARELERE
sale (Note 15) (FfzE15) (55,931) - - (55,931)
At 315t December 2008 RZEZNF+-A=+—H 4,659 36,176 108,913 149,748
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33.Deferred taxation (Cont’d) 33 EERIIE ()
Deferred tax assets ELEBIRERE

Accelerated

depreciation Provisions Tax loss Total
MEFE BB BEEE &t
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TATL TAL TAL TAL
At Tst January 2007 RZEZ+E—F—H 2,906 37,298 = 40,204
Deferred tax credited to income EiERERT AR
statement (note) EIERTE (Pt sE) 2,174 28936 = 31,110
Exchange differences M ZRE 294 3822 = 4116
At 315t December 2007 RZZET+LFE+-A=1—H 5374 70,056 - 75,430
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B AR
(Note 37(b)) (Fft3E 37(0)) - - 108,297 108,297
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to  7ERBZSERFT A/ (3B ) &
income statement (note) ERERIE (P aE) 181 (118) - 63
Exchange differences A= 330 4,254 - 4,584
At 315t December 2008 RZZZENF+=R=1—H 5,885 74,192 108,297 188,374
Note: BieE

The net deferred tax credited to income statement of 2008 was mainly
related to the impairment loss on a leasehold land.

The net deferred tax credited to income statement of 2007 was mainly
related to the change in PRC tax rate according to the New CIT Law effective
from 1st January 2008 for certain subsidiaries of the Group.

Under the New CIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared
in respect of profits earned by the subsidiaries in the PRC from 1st January
2008 onwards. Deferred taxation of HK$32,804,000 has not been provided in
respect of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the
PRC subsidiaries as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

SFAZRENFNRARBECHRFEEIZAN —REE
THERORUERSIR

AAZERRLFENESROAEH B FEI ERNAREE
THEBRARZPEREHNTEEAETRER ST NGF—
A—RAERRBE 2

RBFEEMGHE - ABARERAE="2Z\F—A
— B RATHE AT EATE IR S EMRINHATEH - 57
It S A A R AR D ELFE AT B A B i = 2R ET
F1832,804, 00078 LA ARVEL B + ToE AREE AT ARSI
FFER BRI MEREEAEABERERERIETSE
@ o
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34.Trade payables

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables is as follows:

34, FEfF

12 Ep

1=E9N

AEBRNEROBRESTIT

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET BT

Within 30 days 30 RLAR 22,479 18,354
31 to 90 days 31 REOKXR 74,272 24,081
91 to 180 days 91 RE 180K 356 7419
Over 180 days HB3A 180K 101,061 136,738
198,168 186,592

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their fair value

ENERNREEEEAABERE  T2UARE

and are mainly denominated in Renminbi. (& -
35.0perating lease commitments 35. REHAAIE
Group Company
rEE KAF
2008 2007 2008 2007
==EN =T ==ZEN =T
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET BT FHET BT
Land and buildings T RAEF
Not later than one year T —F 13,752 6,547 6,971 2923
Later than one year and HBim—FE
not later than five years AR E 14,138 1,854 3,665 688
Over five years HBimAE 776 - - -
28,666 8,401 10,636 3611
Plants, pipelines and networks /= * & 8 M A4S
Not later than one year THEA—F 121,449 25,270 - =
Later than one year and iR —FE
not later than five years AR E 26,849 48,005 - -
148,298 73,275 - -
176,964 81,676 10,636 3611
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36.Capital commitments 36. EAEE
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HKS'000
FERT FABIT
Authorised but not contracted for in respectof ~ BIREBRETL
— Improvements on plant and machinery — R MR 7 = T2 183,011 424,561
Contracted but not provided for in respect of BRI #EREEE
— Property, plant and machinery — W - BB MRS 84,923 48118
— Investment in a jointly controlled entity —R—RERZEHEEZIEE 175,340 562,226
— Acquisition of hotels — U BB - 865,950
260,263 1,476,294
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37.Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

37.FEREREBRME
(a) A& HFEBERL R HAFHELIR

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash generated from

operations
Restated
gl
2008 2007
ZEENF —ETLEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T T
Operating profit — continuing operations BER 448,575 728,024
Operating profit — discontinued operation Em il - R EEIEER
(Note 15) (Fft&E15) 60,882 61,355
509,457 789,379
Adjustments for: FTHIEL TR
Interest income FBUA (68,161) (53,352)
Depreciation e 222,491 195,249
Amortisation B 46,027 36,343
Impairment loss on leasehold land and TAE i R Al
available-for-sale financial assets WIS EERERK 175,253 -
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME - BERZEZ
plant and equipment (note) B85 RE (k) 2,224 14,202
Gain on disposal of investment property HEREYE 2 W - (10,309)
Unrealised gain on financial assets WIFEEL
at fair value through profit or loss REH W 7,568 =
Provision for impairment of FEW B RORE
trade receivables B 23,040 16,392
Reversal of loan interest payable to FEAT—(L D EAR R Y
minority shareholder BRAI S E# (20,349) -
Reversal of over-accrued expenses HEIZIRE A (22,853) -
Net exchange gain bE 5 W a F 58 (89,288) (47,671)
Excess of fair value of net assets BAKBARNFEE
acquired over the cost of WA BEBH
acquisition of subsidiaries I A AN Z= 58 (203,103) =
Loss on deemed disposal of RIEHE—K
partial interest in a jointly HEEH B
controlled entity o iEm 2 EE 1,034 =
Gain on acquisition of additional U iE — XM B A BB M=
interest in a subsidiary ZWEs (16,573) =
Net loss on disposal of subsidiaries, HEMBAR - BEQR K
associates and jointly controlled entities H R B 8 518 - 18,678
Provision for impairment of an associate R—REEE R RIRE 2 BB - 38,261
Gain on toll roads restructuring SHKEER 2 W - (165,913)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHEEMEEE
financial assets Z Wz - (10,429)
Share based payments VARR 19 R B BE B 53R 30,434 2,924
Changes in working capital: LBESEE)
Inventories FE (204) (1,121)
Trade receivables FEME X (105,258) (227,002)
Other receivables, deposits and EfbEGRIE ~ RE
prepayments &EINES 252,244 (236,872)
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEBEBRERYEK
profit or loss KIS E = (156,377) (117,419)
Trade payables JERTE X (901) (50,495)
Other payables and accruals E b fEATFE K FERT B A (159,499) 108,656
Amounts due to ultimate A B A1 AR A ]
holding company KIE (536) -
Amounts due to and from related JERT 2 PR B A A
companies and a minority shareholder k—&VEIRRHKIA 93,448 51313
Net cash generated from operations A EIBPEIR & F R 520,118 350,814
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37.Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

(Cont'd)
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash generated from (a) A%
operations (Cont’d)

Note: Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment

37.ZERTREBRME (H)

LR EB 2 RERAFHRE R ()

MiaE - HEWE  BERRBZMERARE -

comprises:
2008 2007
—EEN\FE e s
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT TAT
Proceeds from sales HEFTS A 9,698 3,266
Less: Net book amount B BREFE (11,910) (17,939)
Exchange differences N R (12) 471
Loss on disposal HEER (2,224) (14,202)
(b) Acquisition of subsidiaries (b) WEERE 2 A
2008 2007
—EENE LR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Net assets acquired BEBAFEE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) W - S KRR (FHEE 16) 542,671 =
Leasehold land and land use rights (Note 18) THE T4 Jo & {5F AR (FT5E19) 745,304 =
Inventories 7& 2,898 =
Trade receivables U E TR 1,249 =
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HEWGIE - Re REMNK 115,711 =
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEED 38,055 -
Trade payables FERER (2/442) =
Other payables and accruals H e mRIE R gt B (113,419) =
Amounts due to jointly controlled entity JEA R4 ) 2 BE RRIE (98,808) =
Amount due to ultimate holding company [N R AR R R RN RRIE (15,041) =
Borrowings aE (29,749) =
Net deferred tax liability (Note 33) EERA A &S (M 33) (27,772) =
Net assets BEFE 1,158,657 =
Minority interests DHRFE R (82,715) =
1,075,942 -
Excess of fair value of net assets acquired BAFEENRREE
over the cost of acquisition FBHUER AR E (203,103) =
872,839 -
Satisfied by: FRAR
Cash paid BEfHRE 705,308 -
Fair value of shares issued BEIROZARER 167,531 =
872,839 -
Analysis of net cash outflow in respect of BRKERBARZ
acquisition of subsidiaries: RembFEH
Cash paid [BANEEEA (705,308) =
Cash and cash equivalents acquired EREARSKREEEY 38,055 =
Net cash outflow in respect of BRKEREARZ
acquisition of subsidiaries RenmdFeE (667,253) =
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37.Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement 37.EHERERMT(E)

(Cont'd)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

(c) HEHBAA

2008 2007
—BENE  —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T TT
Net assets disposed BHEEEFE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) I ER B GACE R - 10,975
Land use rights (Note 18) b A (BT EE 18) - 2,076
Inventories FE - 7,520
Trade receivables FEUCE R - 797
Other receivables, deposits and HMEUGRIE - e
prepayments ISEIDEN - 9,216
Cash and cash equivalent ReERREEEY - 20
Trade payables FERTERR - (337)
Other payables and accruals H T RUE R FERT B A - (5,681)
Minority interests DEAR R - (8,340)
Net assets disposed BHEFEE - 16,246
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries ST A R 2 B8 - (15,684)
- 562
Satisfied by: XA
Cash received BR e - 562
Analysis of net cash inflow in respect of ERHENBARZ
disposal of subsidiaries: WERANFHEDT :
Cash received BH3RE - 562
Cash and cash equivalents disposed EHERS RESEEY - (20)
Net cash inflow in respect of disposal EHHENRBARZ
of subsidiaries REMAFE - 542
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37.Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

(Cont'd)

(d) Toll roads restructuring

(e)

37.ZERTREBRME (H)

(d) EAWEER

2008 2007
—BENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T TT
Net assets disposed BHEFEE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) L ER B G E R - (1,606,011)
Goodwill (Note 17) EEICIERND - (76,009)
Amount due from associates JELES: & A B 5RIA - (7,186)
Trade receivables FEME X - (5,623)
Other receivables, deposits HMEUGIE - e
and prepayments EEIDEN - (2,533)
Cash and cash equivalent ReERREEEY - (13,526)
Other payables and accruals H T RUE R ERT B A - 47,080
Amounts due to minority shareholders FE DB R RIA - 204,121
Borrowings BE - 620,361
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 33) EIERIIE 8 & (I3 33) - 53,520
Interest in an associate Nk l/NCIL s - 3,552
Minority interests DB R M A - 766,627
Net assets disposed BHEFEE - (15,627)
Interest in an associate acquired BUEER — KB A R R - 188,035
Exchange reserves released R 2 BB R - (6,495)
Gain on toll roads restructuring BHWE B 2 W - 165,913
Analysis of net cash outflow in respect fHEHKEER
of disposal of subsidiaries: ME M FREIN
Cash received B ER € - -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed BEHERe MIEEEY - (13,526)
Net cash outflow in respect of FHWEBER
toll roads restructuring W FeE - (13,526)

Non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group acquired entire interest in Realty.
The acquisition was satisfied by the issue of 31,850,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company and cash of
HK$560,000,000, as included in cash paid on acquisition of a

subsidiary in note 37(b).

(e) #¥BEELXE

FR - AEERES N2 ER o STEBIEH
EEITZAA 7] 31,850,000 R B AR EE 01078 T2 L3l
& %% 3R € 560,000,000 % 7T (5 A M 73 37(b) A
BB ARMNERS) X1 -
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38.Related party transactions 3B.EAEALRS
The following are significant related party transactions and balances AT ARRMIEE21 222 225 R26FIHBRINGBIZE TS
during the year ended 31st December 2008 in addition to those NETZA=+—HIEFEANERBEATRS :

disclosed in notes 21, 22, 25 and 26:

(a) Transactions with related parties of the Group (a) ZXEBZEHEALRS
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAIT
(i) Acquisition of a subsidiary from () MIREIERRA FUEE
the ultimate holding company —XMBAA
(Note 39(ii) (B =E 39() 727,531 =
(i) Transactions with the Group's associates (i) EEAREBEEENF 2R S
— Bulk cargo handling income received —EEE A REZ
from associates FERMENREE 65,065 43,597
— Wharf cargo handling service —[AlE & A RIS 2 ISR E Y
charges paid to associates FRIEARTS B 24,486 20,529
— Labour services paid to associates — A& AR 2 B8 A 48,024 -
(i) Transactions with other related parties (i) BEAREEEAMEEALT
of the Group ZR5
— Rental of land —THE T 1,925 2,011
— Rental of plants, pipelines —HEBE - B8
and networks P& 99,167 65,309
— Purchase of steam for sale —FEARELNE 446,661 358,321
(b) Key management compensation (b) TEEEZEANSHME
2008 2007
—EENE —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
Fees wE 7,817 6,990
Salaries and other emoluments e REMBe 14,069 15,683
Share based payments LARR (7 A L RE A ST R 19,003 2,624
40,889 25,297
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39.Business combinations

(0]

On 4th January 2008, the Group completed the acquisition
of the entire issued share capital of Lethia at a consideration
of USS$7.5 million. Lethia’s assets mainly comprise 50% equity
interest in First Hotel, a sino-foreign equity joint venture
company holding a five-star hotel property situated in Tianjin
managed by Hyatt of China Limited.

On 4th March 2008, the Group completed the acquisition of
a further 25% equity interest in First Hotel through Lethia at a
consideration of RMB75.5 million.

The acquired business contributed revenues of HK$57,531,000
and net loss of HK$9,926,000 to the Group for the period from
4th January 2008 to 31st December 2008. If the acquisition
had occurred on 1st January 2008, contributed revenue and
contributed loss for the year would have been HK$67,723,000
and HK$ 15,030,000 respectively.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill of the above

acquisitions in aggregate are as follows:

39. £ G5t

(0]

R=ZTZN\F—AMA  A&EELL7,500000%F70
ZREFTRUEBRIRG G 2 2200 BT o Filks
FZRAEFEORR —RPINEEEGERRE—
B8R 2 S0% AR AN HE 2 (2R RIFE B — FTI A K
HEYUHARAAEE AR BSE)

R-ZZN\F=ANE  AEBFEBFEFAA
R ¥75,500,0007T 2 R B FER IR BE 55 — B S 2 ZBHN
25% AR AN #E S ©

RZEZENF-AONBE-_ZTZTN\F+=H
=E+—H BURBEXEBALAEETEREA
57,531,000/ 70 & JE518 9,926,000 78 7T © i W
“TEN\F-A—BELE  FRMERZEAR
&85 Bl /& 67,723,000 47T F 15,030,000 57T ©

s RIEBAREFELREE ZFBN
T~

HK$’000
FET
Purchase consideration: BEMNIE
— cash paid —BffRe 141,029
— direct cost relating to the acquisition — BRAWEEEIE 2 BRI 2,000
Total purchase consideration BERERRE 143,029
Less: fair value of net identifiable assets B BAREREEFERN
acquired (shown as below) NAEEITXER) 146,345
Excess of fair value of net assets acquired BANBARRFEENAAEE
over the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries B U R AR Y = 5 3,316
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39.Business combinations (Cont’d)

(i) (Contd)

The assets and liabilities as of the completion date arising from

the acquisition are as follows:

39. (B A6 ()

MK BHRBREE 2 EERBBT

Acquirees’ Acquirees’

carrying amount fair value

Gt YNl WU A T

HARE(E(E AR EE

HKS'000 HK$'000

AT BT

Cash and cash equivalents Re RBSEEY 14,913 14913
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB R 29,295 188,806
Land use right =+ b A 21,699 220,304
Inventories 3 2,898 2,898
Receivables FEHFRIE 115,208 112,620
Payables FERTRRIA (191,203) (191,203)
Borrowings BE (29,749) (29,749)
Deferred tax liabilities EERRIBAE - (89,529)
Net assets BEFE (36,939) 229,060
Minority interests DEIR R R (15,569) (82,715)
Net assets acquired BABESE (52,508) 146,345

(i) On 28th March 2008, the Group completed the acquisition

(ii)

RIZZENF=ZA-+/\B  AEETKYESE
FZ2HMBEREMBERRER  KEARER

—m Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X2 REZERAR AT

of the entire equity interests in, and all the shareholders’ loan
advanced to, Realty at a cash consideration of HK$560 million
and an issue of 31,850,000 new shares of the Company.

The acquired business contributed revenues of HK$46,005,000
and net loss of HK$12,900,000 and one-off impairment loss on
leasehold land of HK$125,250,000 to the Group for the period
from 28th March 2008 to 31st December 2008. If the acquisition
had occurred on 1st January 2008, contributed revenue and
contributed loss for the year would have been HK$46,005,000
and HK$28,262,000 and one-off impairment loss on leasehold
land of HK$125,250,000 respectively.

18 560,000,000/ 7T K& 2447 31,850,000 B AN A & AT

Bt o

REZTEZENF=A=Z+NBEZZETNF+=
A=+—H BUEEBALAEEFTEREA
46,005,000 7 7T K% 548 12,900,000 75 7T K — X 1 &)
FHE A bR (B B 18 125,250,000 87T © %5 WEER
—TENF-A—BEL  FAMERMZEAR
&8 5 51l A 46,005,000 7 7T K 28,262,000 7 7T K —

R & - MR (B &5 18 125,250,000 4 TT ©
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39.Business combinations (Cont’d) 39. XK S0 ()
(i) (Cont'd) (i (#&)
Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows: BABBEFERGEZFBNT :
HK$’000
FERT
Purchase consideration: BEMNRE
— cash paid —BfEE 560,000
— fair value of shares issued —BEIROZAREE 167,531
— direct cost relating to the acquisition — BRAWEESEIE 2 EEKA 3,000
Total purchase consideration BEREEE 730,531
Less: fair value of net identifiable B BRI EEFER
assets acquired (shown as below) NABE(GITIXTR) 930,318
Excess of fair value of net assets BA—RMNBRAIMNFEENDR
acquired over the cost of acquisition BB LU A =58 199,787
The fair value of the shares issued was based on the closing BEITRM AR BEDERWESEIETHK BB
share price as at the date of completion of the acquisition. Z IR UTAE o
The assets and liabilities as of the completion date arising from R BB FTEE 2 EERBENT ¢
the acquisition are as follows:
Acquirees’ Acquirees’
carrying amount fair value
WU A A U VNG
HARE(E(E AR EE
HK$'000 HKS'000
AT FATT
Cash and cash equivalents RERBFSEED 23,142 23,142
Property, plant and equipment L E Y ] 353,791 353,865
Leasehold land THE L 265,111 525,000
Deferred tax assets RERRIBE E 104,651 61,757
Receivables FEWGRIA 4,340 4,340
Payables FETFRIA (37,786) (37,786)
Net assets acquired BABEFE 713,249 930,318
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40.Events after the balance sheet date

41

On 16th March 2009, TPD, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, its wholly owned subsidiary, Grand Point Investment Limited
and Tianjin Port (Group) Co., Ltd., a connected person to the Group,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
TPD, through Grand Point Investment Limited, conditionally agreed
to acquire from Tianjin Port (Group) Co., Ltd. its 56.81% interest
in the registered share capital of Tianjin Port Holdings Co., Ltd.,
a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code:
600717) for a total consideration of HK$10,961 million to be satisfied
as to HK$7,031 million by the issue of the shares of TPD and as to
HK$3,930 million by cash.

Upon completion, the Group's interest in TPD will be diluted to
approximately 20% and TPD will cease to be a subsidiary and
become an associate of the Group. The Group will adopt equity

accounting in respect of its interest in TPD.

The Group expects to recognise a gain or loss on deemed disposal
of its interest in TPD, which is to be calculated based on the fair
value and the carrying value of the shares of TPD held by the Group
on the date of completion.

.Ultimate holding company

The Directors of the Company consider Tsinlien Group Company
Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong, as being the

ultimate holding company.

42.Approval of financial statements

—m Tianjin Development Holdings Limited X322 REZERER AT

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on
23rd April 2009.

40.FHHEEBE

41

RZBZNF=A+8 REELE(REEBZHE
2EMBAR) - REAERZ Z2EWBRAEEIKR
BERAREXES (EE) GR AR (KEE 2 #HE
AL ZBiTEE R BUXEEERFBELIRE
BRABERGEHRBERES (KE) ARA G
BHABE DEEFR S EMNREBRNHER R
Al (BREARHES : 600717) TEH & 2 89 56.81% #E 2
42 (E7210961,000000 % 7T © (B LAZE 1T K2 %
& &5 K95 2 X 1 7,031,000,00078 70 R IA R € A+
3,930,000,000 T °

MR HTTRIE  NEBERZEERNOERFEEE
E£4920% - MAZEERBTIBRRAEEHMBR
A MRAAEEZBENTE - ARERRBEDS
FOERBEARZEEROER °

AEBEFERERBERERAER BB RER T
SR —IANRSEE - EeBEERR SR BEAE
BB AR ERROOAAEEEREENE -

RAREZER D F]

ARREERR  EREEMKL 2 EZHERERA
Bl ARARIERRT]

42 FM P BHRRK

BEEeRN _TTENFHA-T=HERIB®RE -
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43.Principal subsidiaries 43. T EME AR
Percentage
Bl
Issued and
paid up capital/ Attributable
registered capital tothe Held by the Held by
Name Principal Activities BRTRER Group Company subsidiaries
£ TERHY B/ EmER FEBEL NNTES Y] WEARRE
Established and operating in the PRC
EFERTREE
Tianjin Harbour Second Provision of stevedoring RMBB815,180,100 65.66 100
Stevedoring Co, Ltd. and storage services
RNEBEBEERAR REBERRERS AR 8151801007
Tianjin Port Container Provision of containers transportation RMB1,021,230,000 65.66 100
Terminal Co, Ltd. and storage services
REBERAEBEERAR RESEBEXRFHRE ARE1,021,2300007
Tianjin Heavenly Palace Investment holding RMB80,018,400 100 100
Winery Co, Ltd.
AEREREREAR AT REER AR 800184007
Tianjin Tai Kang Investment holding RMB1,030,269,400 82.74 82.74
Industrial Co, Ltd.
AREFREXERAA REER AR 10302694000
Tianjin Development Assets Investment holding RMB32,076,000 100 100
Management Co, Ltd.
REERAEEERARAR REER AR 3207600070
Tianjin Jin Zheng Transportation Operating and management of RMBT,104,596,200 83.93 83.93
Development Co, Ltd. Eastern Outer Ring Road (note a) (note a)
AEEREERAR AT BERERINRRE ARE1,104596,200 70 (Mzta) (Hfzta)
86.67 86.67
(note b) (note b)
(MzEb) (MzEb)
Tianjin TEDA Tsinlien Electric Supply of electricity RMB 314,342,450 94.36 94.36
Power Company Limited
RERERHENBRATA HEEN AR 3143404507
Tianjin TEDA Tsinlien Water Supply of water RMB 163,512,339 91.41 91.41
Supply Company Limited
ARFERY B KBRAT 1A B K AR 1635123397
Tianjin TEDA Tsinlien Heat & Supply of steam and thermal power RMB 262,948,258 90.94 90.94
Power Company Limited
RERERBATERATA HEZTRAE ANE# 262948258 T
Tianjin First Hotel Ltd. Operation of Hyatt Regency Tianjin Hotel 1S$9,000,000 75 75
REE-HEFRAT meR s HER 90000007
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43.Principal subsidiaries (Cont’d)

3. EEMBATE (F|)

Percentage
BAt
Issued and
paid up capital/ Attributable
registered capital tothe Held by the Held by
Name Principal Activities BRTRAR Group Company subsidiaries
& ITERH RE/ZREL rEEEE NG WEAREE
Established in the British
Virgin Islands and operating
in Hong Kong
EXRBRRHENT
Dynamic Infrastructure Limited Investment holding USs5 100 100
REER SETL
Leadport Holdings Limited Investment holding US$1 100 100
REER 1%7
Famous Ever Group Limited Investment holding US$1 100 100
REER 1%7
Established in Cayman Islands,
operating in and shares listed
in Hong Kong
EHSHERY EEE
HERROETELT
Tianjin Port Development Investment holding HK$178,710,000 65.66 65.66
Holdings Limited
REBERERERAR RARR 178710000 7C
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43.Principal subsidiaries (Cont'd) 3. FTEHEAR (F)

Percentage
Bl
Issued and
paid up capital/ Attributable
registered capital tothe Held by the Held by
Name Principal Activities BRTRER Group Company subsidiaries
£ TERHK B/ EmER FEBEL EAARE WEARKE
Established and operating
in Hong Kong
EEBATRAEE
Tsinlien Realty Limited Operation of Courtyard by HK$200,000 100 100
Marriott Hong Kong
EHERARAH EeRBENEE 200000 /57T
Lethia Limited Investment holding HK$300,000 100 100
MEFERAR REER 300000 87T
Godia Holdings Limited Investment holding HK$15 100 100
ERARERAR REER 1587
Notes: Bt
(@) Represents equity interest in the paid up capital of the subsidiary () IBRKMIBRTEERAZ s
(b) Represents profit sharing ratio in the subsidiary (b) ERMBARZAES ==
44.Principal associates 44, T EREE N T
Percentage
BAt
Issued and
paid up capital/ Attributable
registered capital to the Held by the Held by
Name Principal Activities ERTRAR Group Company subsidiaries
£ TEXH RE/EMER rEBEL ARERE WELRRE
Established and
operating in the PRC
EHER T RASE
Otis Elevator (China) Investment Investment holding US$79,625,000 16.55 20
Company Limited
BOSER(PE)REAERAR  REEK 7962500037
Tianjin Tian Fa Heavy Design, manufacture, sale and RMB180,597,627 28.14 34.0
Electric Equipment provision of advisory services for
Manufacturing Limited equipment used to generate
electricity by water
REMABEAKE Rt REHKNEER AR 180597627 T
RBEERRAT
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44.Principal associates (Cont’d)

44. T EBE N T (18)

Percentage
BAt
Issued and
paid up capital/ Attributable
registered capital tothe Held by the Held by
Name Principal Activities BRTRAR Group Company subsidiaries
£ ITERH B/ EmEA rEEEE FRAREE WEARRE
Established in Cayman Islands,
operating in and shares listed
in Hong Kong
EHSHERY  EEE
HERROEZE LT
Dynasty Fine Wines Investment holding HK$124,500,000 44.82 44.82
Group Limited
IHEREEERAA REER 124500000757
Established in the British
Virgin Islands and operating
in Hong Kong
EXRBRRHEHNT
Golden Horse Resources Investment in joint ventures which S510,000 40 40
Limited operates Jinbin Expressway in Tianjin
REERZLERE 10000 %70
BRNBZAEZRF
Incorporated in Bermuda,
operating in and shares
listed in Hong Kong
EAFERT  REBEE
RIRGEZE LT
Wah Sang Gas Holdings Limited Investment holding HK$21,770,000 22.79 22.79
ELMRRRERAR RERR 21,770,000 7T
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45, Principal jointly controlled entities 45. T EH[E LIS
Percentage
BAl
Issued and
paid up capital/ Attributable
registered capital to the Held by the Held by
Name Principal Activities ERTRAR Group Company subsidiaries
£ TEEH BRA/ERER FEBEL ONEIEST | WRARKE
Established and operating
in the PRC
EREL T RS
Tianjin Port Alliance International Container and cargo handling services US$160,000,000 26.26 40
Container Terminal Co, Ltd.
KB BB RESERRSMRERE 160,000,000 7T
ERREEAR AN
Tianjin Port Euroasia International ~ Container and cargo handling services RMBT1,260,000,000 26.26 40
Container Terminal Co, Ltd.
PG REEEBREMRERS ARE 126000000070
ERREEAR AN
Tianjin Port Haifeng Bonded Logistics relates services RMB300,000,000 3349 51
Logistics Co, Ltd.
RNEEGSRVIRERAR  WREERY AR 3000000007
Tianjin Haihe Dairy Manufacturing and sale of dairy products RMB200,000,000 40 40
Company Limited
R EERAT EERHENER AR 200,000,000 7
46.Comparative figures 46. LEBREF

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with
the current year presentation or restated to disclose the results of

discontinued operation.

ETHBRBFREEN D EAES  UHEAFEZ
SIHAFR I EEETS 2 FERE -
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—TTME —TTRE ZTTAEF “TTHE —EENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET T FET FHT
Results £
Revenue WA 2102473 2,239,102 2688457 3,268,013 3,787,423
Operating profit less finance cost BRI E R 924,903 565,659 533,798 626,894 382,914
Share of profits/(losses) of: E(EEF] (B5E)
Associates d=y/NG] 77,764 146,095 181,215 220,651 253,146
Jointly controlled entities HEEHER (1,981) (13.859) (11,779) (9,831) (11,077)
Profit before income tax AT 1,000,686 697,895 703,234 837,714 624,983
Income tax expense BIESZ 137,156 73015 66,053 62,569 72,955
Profit for the year from SEICEER
continuing operations FREHM 863,530 624,880 637,181 775,145 552,028
Profit for the year from BRI
discontinued operation FERT - - = 52,094 48,574
Profit for the year 863,530 624,830 637,181 827,239 600,602
Attributable to: FE(E& T :
Equity holders of the Company PRIERA A 563,803 573,169 552,751 690,301 505,861
Minority interests DR R ER 299,727 51,711 84,430 136,938 94,741
863,530 624,830 637,181 827,239 600,602
Dividends RE 62,592 80,665 92,241 115,701 96,072
Assets and liabilities BERAEE
Total assets BEE 9,701,631 10,379,680 13,231,526 12,923,020 15,473,889
Total liabilities BAR 3,039,988 3,261,043 3,861,097 2,770,497 4,170,989
Total equity ol S 6,661,643 7,118,637 9,370,429 10,152,523 11,302,900
Notes: bz
(i) The effect of adopting new HKFRSs in 2005 was included in 2005 and the () R-ZTRF  FEPFEBUBREERN I EFAEN -
amounts prior to 2004 have not been restated to reflect this change. ZZTFUARTZ SR B AR L IEEE) o
(i) The results of discontinued operation prior to 2007 have not been restated or (i) RIEEEXBR T HFURMMEERERIIRES -
reclassified.
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